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31 March 2019
20193 H31H

A7 GLOBAL DISTRIBUTION NETWORK

NORTHERN CHINA 4t
Self-operated B &k : 61 (72)
Licensed & &5 : 505 (436)

EASTERN CHINA # 5
Self-operated B & Ji : 31 (29)
Licensed & & JE : 239 (190)

No. of shops JE&i#X B : 566 (508)
SOUTHERN CHINA 7

No. of shops JE&# B : 270 (219)
CENTRAL CHINA #

Self-operated B & J& : 0 (0) Self-operated H & & : 49 (56)
Licensed & k&5 : 580 (535) Licensed k& /K : 290 (243)

No. of shops &£ B : 580 (535) No. of shops /452K E © 339 (299)

1,755 (1561)

MAINLAND CHINA

hEIR It
KOREA
CANADA e
nax 0%)
2©
THE UNITED STATES
£
4 @

THE PHILIPPINES

2rmsu1,828 (1,631 s

Worldwide total number of shops 1o
CAMBODIA @ HONG KONG
ERGES MACAU &3
1 () MALAYSIA MBS 49 g
* Figures as at 31 March 2018 are shown in brackets SRR 11 (o
RSB RN2018F3A31H 2 HF
** This network included Lukfook shops only SINGAPORE AUSTRALIA
4848 R BN TR IS 4 M0 SEN
10 )
o zm 31 March 2018 Y-0-Y Change
Lukfook Shops ~REH Gl
Hong Kong &% 49 48
Macau %P9 11 10
Self-operated 5 & /&
- Tier | —#&4 T 35 30 +5
— Tier | =43 \ 66 72 -6
—Tier Il & IV =% J [0 48 5 T 40 55 -15
\ainand China Sub-total /JNEF 141 157 -16
il Licensed & & 5
PR - Tier | =& ™ 258 225
— Tier | — &3 494 432
—Tier Ill & IV = &5 % IO 483 T 862 747
Sub-total /J\&t 1,614 1,404
Sub-total /J\&t 1,755 1,561
Other locations  Self-operated & & [ 11 10
Hibin = Licensed &n k& /& 2 2
Total & 1,828 1,631

3D-GOLD Shops & E& 5 &

Mainland China  S¢lf-operated B # /&

- — Tier Il 43 4 6 2
RN —Tier Il & IV =& [ [0 4& 3 T 1 5 -4
Total & £ 5 11 -6

Remarks: During the year under review, the Group operated 5 3D-GOLD self-operated shops established by a joint venture (in which the Group held
a 51% equity interest). As at 31 December 2018, total number of 3D-GOLD points of sale operated by China Gold Silver Group Company
Limited through self-operating and franchising models was approximately 400.

G REEFEN  AEBEUAEDQR (R EEGS1%ER) A 2 EHEEE 85 - 12018F12A310  PESREEARAAINEE
RS g A KFEROI00E S ZE T ES -



A7 OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
2BME

REVENUE AND PROFIT ANALYSIS ks mion) | YA B RO AT (mmsn

II REVENUE BY MARKET II REVENUE BY BUSINESS II SALES' BY PRODUCT
WA (AT5E2) WA (AEKES) HE (UERESD)

9,853 1729’212 e 7,798
4 —_— .5% 0,
ﬂ Reta;ré _%‘
.19 Hong Kong, - c
(gg_;é:) oﬁacgﬂ%‘ 76.1% _ Platinum
Overseas (75.4%) 807 EER#HAE
e 51% _ 123.5%
' (4.5%) Licensing
REES

37.9%
6,007
(k) 118.6%

Mainland China
REIA

18.8%

2,978
(20.1%)

11.6%

Wholesaling
#E

48.2%
(44.5%)

I SEGMENT PROFIT BY MARKET II SEGMENT PROFIT BY BUSINESS I GROSS PROFIT2BY PRODUCT

AEEF (UHEE D) AEEF (LB E D) EF (UERES)
941
50.7% 964 gl 19.8% 35.0% 1,214
(53.2%) 7.8% (B Retailing (36.2‘%‘:) ﬂ
Hong Kong, & Gold &
Macau & Platinum
Overseas BEeR#AS
&AM
Kigsh
937 406 S 20.2% 554
49.3% 119.1% 16.0% . (26.2%) 125.7%
(46:8%) Mainland China ~ Wholesaling Licensing
hER AR
Remarks: Comparative figures for the year ended 31 March 2018 are 1 Sales = Revenue - Licensing Income
shown in brackets HE I - REEBRA
[ BE2018F3 A1 A L FE 2 L BBFRIER AR R

2 Gross Profit = Consolidated Gross Profit — Gross Profit of Licensing Income

EN=FAEFN - REXBRAETF

RETAIL SALES PERFORMANCE | ZTE&HERIR

For the year ended 31 March

HESAIBILFEE
| 2019 2008] 2019 2018

Y-o-Y Change
REE L
Overall 2f8 +10% +14% +3% +9%
Gold & Platinum &= % &€ +11% +12% +4% +7%
Gem-set K E +8% +18% +1% +13%
Hong Kong & Macau & i & P9 +10% +9% +5% +9%
Gold & Platinum =& M & +13% +5% +7% +6%
Gem-set A E +7% +15% +1% +14%
Mainland China /i El A it +9% +34% -3% +5%
Gold & Platinum & % & & +6% +37% -6% +7%
Gem-set & +16% +28% +6% 1%

* Same store sales growth (“SSSG”) represented a comparison of sales of the same Lukfook self-operated shop having full day operations in the
comparable periods and such data did not include sales of licensed shops, and Mainland China’s e-commerce business.
AEHEER ([FAEHEER) A -—HNEEEERITERPNTEALENHERLE FRSBEL N eEREERPENMETE
BEBHHER -



A7 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B o5 47 22

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE | B1f5%IR

For the
year ended
31 March 2018
HZE2018%F
3H31H Y-0-Y Change
HK$ m B&B T HFE BES(L
Revenue YA 15,860 14,578 +8.8%
Gross Profit 7| 4,034 3,741 +7.8%
Operating Profit 4% & | 1,853 1,621 +14.3%
Profit for the Year 4F A1 5| 1,504 1,370 +9.7%
Profit Attributable to Equity Holders #5454 A FE {534 7 1,493 1,369 +9.0%
Basic Earnings per Share &k £ A& F HK$2.54# 7T HK$2.337% 7T +9.0%
Final Dividend per Share &% 7 2% 8. HK$0.607# 7T HK$0.55/8 7T +9.1%
Annual Dividend per Share &% 2 F % & HK$1.15#% 7T HK$1.1078 7T +4.5%
Dividend Payout Ratio J& &t & 45.3% 47.2% 19pp. BEDE
Gross Margin £ 7l & 25.4% 25.7% 0.3 p.p. BEDE
Operating Margin £% & F & 11.7% 11.1% +0.6 p.p. [EE B
Net Margin J% | = 9.5% 9.4% +0.1p.p. EESE
EBITDA R&MFI.8 - B8 97 & R 551 & A 1,937 1,719 +12.7%
EBITDA Margin AR5+ 8 - B35 - 78 KB A &A= 12.2% 11.8% +0.4 p.p. BB E
Total Operating Expenses to Revenue Ratio
B R L & 15.4% 15.9% 05pp. BEDE
Effective Tax Rate B FS i & 16.8% 15.1% +1.7pp. BEDE
KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS | FZ&W5iEi2
Financial
Year 2018 Y-o0-Y Change
2018 B E & BEBL
Inventory 7 & (HK$ m) (BE&HT) 9,322 7,992 +16.6%
Average Inventory Turnover Days' F1577 & [E# A &' 273 257 +16
Cash and Bank Balances 3 & & R1745 8 (HK$ m) (B EBTT) 2,087 2,098 -0.5%
Bank Borrowings & Gold Loans
RTEZRESEE HSm) (BEBTL) 2,306 726 +217.5%
Net (Borrowing)/Cash /% (B3) /8% (HK$m) (E&EHT) (219) 1,372 -116.0%
Net Gearing Ratio? /% f& 75 t, &2 21% - N/A T~ A
Debt-to-Equity Ratio® & {&## 25t &3 36.7% 21.3% +154pp. AESH
Return on Equity (ROE)* % 5 4 % [0 3R %4 14.2% 13.6% +06 p.p. BEDE
Return on Total Assets® 4 & 7 3] 3 &5 10.4% 11.2% -0.8 p.p. AEHE
Current Ratio 7 8 b, & 3.3 5.4 2.1
Net Asset Value per Share BT & EE HK$17.993& 5t HK$17.1778 7T +4.8%
CAPEX BARY (HK$m) (AEBHIT) 934 213 338.5%

1 (Opening Inventory + Closing Inventory) = 2 = Cost of Inventories Sold* Number of Days for the Year
(N FEE+ HREE) -2 - DEFEREKFREH
2 (Long-term Bank Loans + Short-term Bank Loans + Bank Overdrafts + Gold Loans — Cash and Bank Balances) — Capital and Reserves Attributable
to Equity Holders of the Company
(RERITESR+ EHRTER+ RTEX+ B2 BE-RSRRTER) AR ARERFEARGERRERS
3 (Long-term Liabilities + Short-term Liabilities) + Capital and Reserves Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company
(RBBE+ EHEE) - ARARRHEARGEARRHE
4 Profit Attributable to Equity Holders + Capital and Reserves Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company
BRFAAREERN - ARAREHEARIEERRER
5 Profit Attributable to Equity Holders = (Long-term Assets + Short term Assets)
BRFAEARESN - (RPEE + EHEE)
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CORPORATE PROFILE
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Established in 1991, Luk Fook Holdings (International) S o i Vi

Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) is one of the leading jewellery
retailers in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The Group principally
engages in the sourcing, designing, wholesaling, trademark
licensing and retailing of a variety of gold and platinum jewellery
and gem-set jewellery products, with a total of over 1,800
Lukfook Jewellery shops in 10 countries and regions across Hong
Kong, Macau, Mainland China, Singapore, Malaysia, Cambodia,
the Philippines, the United States, Canada and Australia.

The Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in May 1997.

NEEE (BEBR)BRAA ([ARR]) REMHBAR (F#fF A
£/ AT MF  BREAERTFEANGEBHETERH 2 —-
AEETERESEENCEHMERE ahER 2 FE  &£:h-
I mERERTEER SEBRKERE B PR -
PN - BARPEE R JEARE  ER - MEAREMNE10ME
B 5 M 4 [ 1 7 801,800 N IR R E TEE o

RARRI997F5 AEER S REMBM AT ER LT
CORPORATE VISION
TRE=

The corporate vision of the Group is to be the “Brand of Hong
Kong, Sparkling the World”. This is also our core brand value. The
Group always puts forth maximum effort for Lukfook to reach its
goal of becoming a globally recognised and desired brand, and
as one of the Hong Kong’s most renowned brands in the luxury
industry, the Group commits to crafting the finest jewellery for
customers to further establish its reputation in the international
market.

[BARNE « B RE] ﬁﬁﬁlmﬁﬁﬁﬁ%&ﬁzhﬁ?/mﬁ@
AEE-—HEFTH FEO0BNEAEBRAEHRBALE
miE AEREBBMEBEZME AEER N A RERRM ﬁ%ﬁ
B LOE— PR HRERTS LHBE-

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75852 (B2 ) HRAS



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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WONG Wai Sheung #{&%
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer = & 3& 1T B 42 &%
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”), | hereby present the Group’s annual results for the year
ended 31 March 2019 (“FY2019” or the “Year under review”).

During the Year under review, with promising performance in the
first half but flat in the second half due to the adverse impact of
the US-China trade war on macro-economic environment, both
the Group’s revenue and profit attributable to equity holders for
FY2019 therefore recorded high single-digit growth.

The Group’s total revenue for the Year under review amounted to
HK$15,859,990,000 (2018: HK$14,578,410,000), representing
an increase of 8.8% over the corresponding period of last
year. Profit attributable to equity holders increased by 9.0% to
HK$1,492,747,000 (2018: HK$1,369,393,000), with earnings
per share of HK$2.54 (2018: HK$2.33). The board of directors
of the Company proposed a final dividend of HK$0.60 per share,
together with the interim dividend of HK$0.55 per share paid
in December 2018, the total dividend for FY2019 amounted to
HK$1.15 per share (2018: HK$1.10 per share). The dividend
payout ratio is 45.3% (2018: 47.2%) on a full year basis.

Despite the slowing economic growth in Mainland China, given
the favourable growth potential of the middle-class population,
the Group continued to actively pursue further development in
the Mainland China market. During the Year under review, the
Group opened a net total of 194 Lukfook shops in Mainland
China, added 1 Lukfook shop in each of Hong Kong, Macau,
Malaysia and the Philippines, and closed 1 licensed shop in
Korea. As at 31 March 2019, the Group had a global network
of 1,828 “Lukfook” shops (of which 1,616 were licensed shops
and 212 were self-operated shops). Together with 5 “3D-GOLD”
self-operated shops in Mainland China, there were 1,833 shops
in total globally, spanning over Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland
China, Singapore, Malaysia, Cambodia, the Philippines, the United
States, Canada and Australia.

BRIRR

KAABREAEEER (BEBR)ERAR ([AA
al)MEMBAR (KB AEE])ERIER
KEBEH E£2019F3A31H IEFE (201984
FlHIBBFE]) 22FEE-

CEFEER Ly FHExE=E BET+FHA
PREFBUZBRERRELARTE R
BEMEFE T AR - AN B 70201981 F B I R 2
FAARGGRNELE RS EMBER-

7R & B 7 Bl R F 2 /Y AU A &15,859,990,000
7 7T (20184 1 14,578,410,000/8 7T ) * & =
FRIEA I IN8.8% - 2 5 A A FE (h % F Bl
#H19.0% %= 1,492,747,0007% Jt (20184 :
1,369,393,000% L) + &R A F| £2.54% T
(2018F :2.33% L) A RAIEFEE B
TR B B & R%0.607% 7t » iE A B 720184
12 AR Ry A HA B 2 & A%0.5578 It + 201987
FREAHKEFR1ASE T (2018F : K
1.107870) * 2F R B Ik & A45.3% (20184F :
47.2%) °

AP B AMEERRRE HERFEAOR
FHIERBENT  REBNEERGIRES
Wi T35 - BEEFE R - AP B A F 8 58194
7 NtaE4s  ERE R BRARRIFRE
FI MRS fE R4 W AR R SR B SR AU o
M2019F3A31H  AEB R 2Bk H 51,828
[NfE] JE4E (Erh1 616/ AREE 2125
BE)E) MESEURPEALN £ EE |
BEE 2EE183B3MEH BMES B
P9~ R Bt - 7003 - SR PE 20 - RIS - 3F
BE R NEREM -

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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During the Year under review, overall profit still recorded growth
despite that the market sentiment was suddenly worsened under
the adverse impact of the US-China trade war in the second
half of the financial year. However, SSSG in the Hong Kong and
Macau markets of the Group recorded a low double-digit drop
for the period from April to the first 3 weeks of June 2019, while
same store sales for Mainland China’s were a mid single-digit
drop and a low single-digit growth for self-operated and licensed
shops respectively. With the continuing uncertainties on the
macro-economic environment arising from the US-China trade
war, together with the high base effect in the first half and low
base in the second half of the financial year, therefore, the Group
expects its business performance to be flattish in FY2019/20 and
looks for maintaining its profitability. As Mainland China remains to
be a market with promising growth potential, the Group remains
optimistic about the mid- to long-term business prospects.

The Group has set up its new three-year corporate strategy with
Supply Chain Management, Mainland China Market Expansion
and Strategic Growth as its three main focuses so as to foster its
future business growth.

In order to further enhance its competitive edge, the Group
will focus on strengthening supply chain management through
various means. The Group will try its best endeavor to identify
right product, set right price and offer products to market at right
time by implementing higher level of automation and big data
management; improving factory productivity; shortening inventory
turnover period; establishing strategic partnership with suppliers;
streamlining logistics on distribution and intensifying support to
licensees, with a hope that all these would help promote business
development and strengthen operational efficiency.

The implementation of policies on promoting the domestic
consumption and pushing forward urbanisation in Mainland China
has led to continuing increase in the middle-class population. In
light of the strong growth potential in the Mainland China market,
the Group will continue to actively pursue further development
in the Mainland China market, and the Group’s target for net
shop additions including the newly developed new brands in
Mainland China for the new financial year will be at least 150
shops. Moreover, given the outstanding performance of the
Group’s e-commerce business in Mainland China and the
active consumption of consumers from younger age group on
online sales platforms, the Group will continue to develop the
e-commerce business and further strengthen cooperation with
e-commerce platforms in Mainland China. The Group targets to
grow e-commerce revenue by 20% in the coming year.

REBEER BETLHEDBANTHE
ESRNTRPERAEE HEERABMD
BHEE - MR EE A B RORPI TS 2 7S 24
£ 8 R 201954 A 568 & = BHMEGE
EMF B TR E RIS EEE RS
b 15 2 IR $45 55 R B R BB i B kR R R 28
RIBFFIE - BB EE B BY EEE AR
BYENRETREMER FLIEY SEY
U BT B M (R B AR R L TR
2019/2084 FH BRI B R FIBMAE -
WHL B RIRE - R E N BRE
HE V8 FTE - R B R R AR RS AR
TSR

AR EE TR H0=F 0 RER [
RETE] - [p BN TSR] R (R
B EB=AED LA EE TR 5K
5 -

RE—FRARNEENHFES  NEE KA
ERERZEEREEHNEREIE ARES
BEMEERERESKFEDLRABEE
B BeBELEEN ®EFEEY - BHER
B BREAERHEER BEOHERENIN®S
BmER S BABRKHEEER BEEEE
RYNEERREATSHE  MERELRER
BERER N INREEREK -

ARAPEANMES AT M TEBERS PEA
OTRERF - P REAH IS IE BB EE
M AREEB NS HERGIHEFBRRMLTHS
WET N AEET B R B A S A B IR T B B e
EARAZFEEE R D502 BIZ B0 48
RAEBEREAME FEEEREERSE
BFRHENILHEETAEEER A8
ESEEETENEBNERE TREER
WMNEEEFREASEFENAIE AEBRKE
BEFEBERARNERBIZA20% °
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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The Group will adopt multi-brand strategy to cater for different
tastes of customers. In light of customers’ demand for fashionable
and personalised products, the Group has selected the Dear Q
Collection, which rides on the DIY concept of allowing customers
to mix and match charms for their unique styling, into a sub-
brand. The first independent store was opened in Shanghai in
May 2019. The Group’s globally exclusive Goldstyle Collection,
crafted with exquisite techniques to double the hardness of gold
and provide gold jewellery featuring style effects of K-gold, has
been well received by the middle-class customers favouring
chic jewellery suitable for daily wear. In view of this, the Group
strives to develop Goldstyle into an independent brand and has
opened the first store in Xi'an in June 2019, aiming to attract
the sophisticated middle-class customers. The Group will also
continue to develop more new brands to further expand its
business so as to help the Group to reach a new height.

| would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to all our staff
members, shareholders, customers, business partners and other
stakeholders for their unfaltering support and contributions to
the Group’s continuing success. Going forward, the Group will
adhere to pragmatic and sound growth measures, strengthen its
competitive advantages and further enhance its leading position
in the market, so as to generate sustainable returns for its
shareholders and set a new benchmark for corporate excellence.

By order of the Board
WONG Wai Sheung

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019

TEEBRNS RIERE  LNAEBETR
RO - B RE P REEFEF RS MAEE L
MED SEERDYESEEERREAR
A kB M Dear QRFIBREK AT RIE - I
20195 AT LB FMR EHB L - mEEK
P ERIBR Goldstyle R 5 AFEE AR & T #4518
B E ITEREEKERAN TS E - —
BERGEBREAMESEA BEMENPE
BRET -8R Mt £EHE3EGoldstyle &
B WHE2010F6 A EA LR EHE/E
HMANERRNTERR NEBE N GES
BRVZHMENE— SRR EEIUSIEE
EREEE-

AREBERFEOKDY 2EBMHET BR-
BE EBEANEAROENRNIFHNR
B RAZBUBAROHE | KFE AEED
HABEREOBRERE MARFEY E
—FEEAREER TS EWREMA - BRR
R A ) g B A ST AR T RO D SR SR o

EEEZM
EEFTHAE
BEE

H7B 20196 H27H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Revenue

A

HK$15,860M B & #& T
+8.8%

Operating Profit
BEEH

HK$1,853M HE & T
+14.3%

@) Profit Attributable to Equity Holders
REsa ABLEHR

HK$1,493M BB & T

+9.0%

Mainland China E-commerce
Business Performance

hEREFREERFEERR

Revenue YA +60.9% Y-0-Y Change 1% & &1t
Contribution to Mainland China Retail Revenue*:
HPBERTERA

22.9% (FY2018 Bf F: 15.5%)

# Sales of self-operated shops and e-commerce business

BEEREFHBEFHER

Results

Though promising performance in first half, with second half
performance staying flat due to adverse impact of the US-China
trade war on macro-economic conditions, Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) recorded revenue growth
of 8.8% to HK$15,859,990,000 (2018: HK$14,578,409,000)
for the year ended 31 March 2019 (the “Year under review”).
Overall gross margin was 25.4% (2018: 25.7%), and gross profit
rose by 7.8% to HK$4,033,836,000 (2018: HK$3,741,377,000).
On the other hand, benefiting from operating leverage, the
total operating expenses only increased by 5.4%. lts ratio to
revenue thus decreased to 15.4% (2018: 15.9%). Therefore,
operating profit increased by 14.3% to HK$1,853,042,000
(2018: HK$1,620,806,000). Operating margin also improved
to 11.7% (2018: 11.1%), while net margin grew slightly only to
9.5% (2018: 9.4%) due to the increase in financial costs resulting
from the increase in borrowings and higher effective tax rate
arising from the increased mix of profit from Mainland China’s
business under higher profit tax rate. Profit attributable to equity
holders thus increased by 9.0% to HK$1,492,747,000 (2018:
HK$1,369,393,000) and basic earnings per share increased by
9.0% to HK$2.54 (2018: HK$2.33).

MHERB
Basic Earnings per Share
/|iﬂ SRESRF
HK$2.54 #JT
+9.0%

Proposed Final Dividend
per Share
BkSRRERE

HK60 Cents #{il

Annual Dividend Payout Ratio
2FIRBLE: 45%

Overall Net Shop Additions
BRemEnEdS

Lukfook 7\if&: +197

Mainland China /B ;A #: +194

Hong Kong, Macau & Overseas
B8 RPN +3

3D-GOLD £ EFH: -6
Mainland China & B A #: -6

E §

¥ FEEH B ETHETFRAREEFHH
HERBEENTHEE R R TR
AEER(BE)ARAR (A7) RE
MEBAR (% IAEE])E Z=2019F3A31
AIEFE (TREFE])IKRAEMNS.8%E
15,859,990,0005% 7T (20184F : 14,578,409,000
BIL) cBEEFE B25.4% (20184 :
25.7% ) * E T8 HN7.8% % 4,033,836,000/5
7t (20184F : 3,741,377,00087t) ° B — A
M SEREEUD BEERTRAEMT
5.4% HAFRALL EA MR 2£15.4% (2018
F:15.9% ) c At - L& % FIZ IN14.3% =
1,853,042,0007% 7 (2018%F : 1,620,806,000/%
JC)  EEE R M E IR E B11.7% (20184
11.1%) M FARBAEFEEL NS T EER
EARRBAERENFBE A ESFBEE
LI RRRSERBE A MRABHKER
9.5% (2018%F : 9.4% ) -z H AL & 7
INA L FF19.0% % 1,492,747,00058 7T (2018
F 1 1,369,393,000/ 7T ) * MEAREAZFA
F19.0%ZE2.547%8 7T (20184F : 2.33/8 7T ) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R Mo

Overview

During the Year under review, the Group added a net total of 197
new Lukfook shops worldwide, including a net addition of 1 self-
operated shop in Hong Kong, Macau and Malaysia, 194 shops
in Mainland China (including a net addition of 210 licensed shops
and a net reduction of 16 self-operated shops), and 1 licensed
shop in the Philippines, as well as closure of 1 licensed shop in
Korea. As at 31 March 2019, the Group had a global network
of 1,833 shops (2018: 1,642 shops), including 1,828 Lukfook
shops (2018: 1,631 shops), with business spanning across Hong
Kong, Macau, Mainland China, Singapore, Malaysia, Cambodia,
the Philippines, the United States, Canada and Australia, and
operated 5 3D-GOLD self-operated shops (2018: 11 shops) in
Mainland China.

V/ 4

REVENUE BY BUSINESS

y/

s

RERBEFEN  AEER2FEHEZ197/M <
BIEG BERES BPIME KIS IEER
1HELE RPERFER104M (R
FEFILER210M ML - F R 16 B EE) -
M FERE GRS - IR
BB JE o A20194F3 A31H  AEE N 2 B
1,833 & 4 (20184 : 1,642/ ) * Hh B4
1,828M /N 185 £ (20184 < 1,631[) "B N E
PSR B A FTAN - Bk R
FEFFEEER -NMERKEM - ARES
A LM EEE 5 &G (2018F 1 11f) ©

SEGMENT PROFIT BY BUSINESS

WA (LB ES) 7 PR (AR E D)

12,075 49.5% m

19.8% (51.0%) __ 198%

N oo Retailing

Retailing e
76.1% b
(75.4%) 807
51% _ 123.5%
(4.5%) Licensing
Ly S

) 20.2% 554

;g'?nf 2,978 (26.2%) 125.7%

(20.1%) 11.6% - —

Wholesaling Licensing

Wholesaling HE2% e

#He3

Remarks: Comparative figures for FY2018 are shown in brackets

The retail business was the Group’s primary source of revenue. Its
revenue rose by 9.8% year-on-year to HK$12,075,187,000 (2018:
HK$10,995,093,000), accounting for 76.1% (2018: 75.4%) of the
Group'’s total revenue. Its segment profit also increased by 9.8%
to HK$940,891,000 (2018: HK$857,092,000), accounting for
49.5% (2018: 51.0%) of the total, and its segment profit margin
was 7.8% (2018: 7.8%).

it RN B201858 FEF

TEEEAAERTEWARE £ AR
£ 18 119.8% %= 12,075,187,0005 7T (20184 :
10,995,093,0008 70 ) * 1h A& BB A76.1%
(2018%F : 75.4% ) » E 75 B & A I~ £ 79.8%
940,891,000 7T (20184 : 857,092,000/
JC) ' 1ht A49.5% (20184 : 51.0% ) » E 5 &F
i K 2E 737.8% (20185 : 7.8% ) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB H RS

Despite the increase in the number of licensed shops, as scrap
gold received from customers in Hong Kong no longer being
accounted for as sales but processed into raw materials instead,
the Group’s wholesale business revenue only rose by 1.6% over
the corresponding period last year to HK$2,977,811,000 (2018:
HK$2,930,114,000), accounting for 18.8% (2018: 20.1%) of the
Group’s total revenue. Nevertheless, with the well increase in
revenue of Mainland China’s wholesale business, the Group’s
wholesale business segment profit increased by 6.0% to
HK$405,742,000 (2018: HK$382,608,000), accounting for 21.3%
(2018: 22.8%) of the total. Its segment profit margin was 13.6%
(2018: 13.1%).

Licensing income, which accounted for 5.1% (2018: 4.5%) of the
Group’s total revenue, increased by 23.5% to HK$806,992,000
(2018: HK$653,202,000) due to an increase in the number of
licensed shops. Its segment profit margin improved to 68.7%
(2018: 67.5%) because of high fixed cost proportion in its
cost structure, while its segment profit increased by 25.7% to
HK$554,192,000 (2018: HK$440,915,000), accounting for 29.2%
(2018: 26.2%) of the total.

/4

SALES' BY PRODUCT
HE (LERED)

51.8% 7,798
(565.5%) 10.9%
Gold &

Platinum

BEERAE

" Sales = Revenue - Licensing Income
2Gross Profit = Consolidated Gross Profit - Gross Profit of Licensing Income

Remarks: Comparative figures for FY2018 are shown in brackets

y/

BRMIBIEBREN EHREEREFES
QWA EREEEMRAENTARME K
EEMBEEBRAREFAHR EF1.6%E
2,977,811,0007 7t (20184F : 2,930,114,000
BIL) EAREE AU A M18.8% (20184 :
20.1% ) c AT * X B P B Hb #t 2 % 55
IWABERI AEESLBEBN S H R
A EF6.0%%E405,742,000/% 7T (20184 :
382,608,0007% 7t ) * 1 Lt A21.3% (20184 :
22.8% )« H 7 &b F & £13.6% (20184 -
13.1%) °

IS EBRA A RIEIEEE REMN - EF23.5%
%806,992,000% 7T (20184 : 653,202,000
BIL) EAEE B ARS1% (20184 -
45%) BAREKALEBEPRCEALSE
= H 5 E i &= E ot 2k & £68.7% (2018
F:67.5% ) E o % F AIE N25.7% %
554,192,000 7¢ (20184 : 440,915,000
J0) b A29.2% (20184F 1 26.2% ) ©

GROSS PROFIT2BY PRODUCT

EF (LERES)
1,214
35.0% ’
(@6.2%) »_ 11.9%
Gold &
Platinum
EE2RHE

65.0%
(63.8%)

" HE=WA - mERBFRA
2EMN =B EN - mERFURAEF

it IS B20188 FEF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R Mo

Sales of gold and platinum products increased by 0.9% to
HK$7,797,657,000 (2018: HK$7,725,533,000), accounting for
51.8% (2018: 55.5%) of the overall sales (Group revenue minus
licensing income). With a gross margin of 15.6% (2018: 15.4%),
gross profit of gold and platinum products therefore increased
by 1.9% to HK$1,213,791,000 (2018: HK$1,191,303,000),
accounting for 35.0% (2018: 36.2%) of the overall gross profit
(consolidated gross profit of the Group minus gross profit
of licensing income). On the other hand, sales of gem-set
jewellery products rose by 17.0% to HK$7,255,341,000 (2018:
HK$6,199,674,000), accounting for 48.2% (2018: 44.5%) of
the overall sales. Gross margin of gem-set jewellery products
decreased by 2.8 p.p. to 31.0% (2018: 33.8%) because of
much increased sales mix of products with lower gross margin
and adjustment of wholesale prices in response to market
price changes in its wholesale business. Its gross profit, as a
result, only increased by 7.4% to HK$2,251,062,000 (2018:
HK$2,096,130,000), accounting for 65.0% (2018: 63.8%) of the
overall gross profit.

During the Year under review, the overall same store sales growth’
(“SSSG”) of the Group was +3.1% (2018: +9.2%). SSSG for the
Hong Kong and Macau market and that for the Mainland China
market were +4.6% (2018: +9.4%) and -2.6% (2018: +4.6%)
respectively. SSSG for gold and platinum products was +4.4%
(2018: +6.6%) and that for gem-set jewellery products was +1.4%
(2018: +13.3%)).

Same store sales growth ("SSSG’) represented a comparison of sales of
the same Lukfook self-operated shop having full day operations in the
comparable periods and such data did not include sales of licensed shops,
and Mainland China’s e-commerce business.

Ee NS EMMNBEEELA0IRE
7,797,657,0007% 7T (20184 : 7,725,533,000
BT IR ERIEERE (KREBWRAR ERE
EBUIA) KI51.8% (20184 : 55.5% ) » F 7
R H515.6% (20184 1 15.4% ) =2 Ml
EmEFMAL FF1.9%ZE1,213,791,0007 T
(20184 : 1,191,303,000/8 7T ) * 1k £ B2 £ 7|
(REBHZEENBREREBEBBATH) B
35.0% (20185 :36.2% ) m— FH K EH
#iE mE I E S FFH17.0%%7,255,341,000
7 7T (20184F : 6,199,674,000/8 7T ) » (h & g2
HHEFH48.2% (20185F 1 44.5% ) - LB & #f
EMMEMRAEEMBERETHERREE
MAEE ML AR EARSEERETISE
R EIEL M T 28187 2 B E31.0%
(20184 :33.8% ) c A EFE LR EH7.4%%
2,251,062,00058 7T (20184 : 2,096,130,000/#
TT) (R EEEFH65.0% (20184F : 63.8% ) °

REEFEN  AEEEEREHEEE ([FH
JEHEIER ) A+43.1% (2018%F 1 49.2% ) < &
BRBFAMBURPBEALTENREHEE
#E DB A+4.6% (20184 : +9.4% ) & -2.6%
(2018%F : +4.6% ) - &= RIS E RAE IS 8
EE 5+4.4% (20185 : +6.6% ) * TR E & £
EmBA+1.4% (20184 : +13.3%) °

I E SR (AL EER])BR—F iEE
EIE AR TEA LR HERILE R
BT B 45 dn % R o B P 1t & F B 7 3 T Y 8
=

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE MO

The Group has been striving to diversify its product mix to offer AEBE—HHEMEZ TILER ABETIRMH
customers more choices. Since 2010, the Group has been F %i&iE-H2010F# AEBHES SIEE
engaging in the mid- to high-end watch business. As at 31  $R¥7% - K2019F 3831 H - AEE A14{EEER
March 2019, the Group was the authorised dealer of 14 watch REMRELHEE REBPREES SHEHN-
brands, including BALMAIN, CERTINA, COINWATCH, DOXA, RIEKZ FE - HME 2 AKBE RE X
ENICAR, HAMILTON, LONGINES, MIDO, OMEGA, RADO, E Bk -TFE - ImLERKE KR BEEK
ROMAGO SWISS, TISSOT, BIJOUMONTRE and SEIKO. For the — MAET &k - MEIEEFE AN « 2R B EEREBFHMA
Year under review, the watch business contributed revenue of  A&165,707,000/% Jt (20184F : 179,988,000/
HK$165,707,000 (2018: HK$179,988,000), accounting for 1.0%  JT) ' {h AN SE B 48U A1.0% (2018F :1.2% ) -
(2018: 1.2%) of the Group’s total revenue with 7.9% decrease B2 =& RIHALL B T #7.9% °

when compared with the same period last year.

BUSINESS REVIEW E % 40]
II REVENUE BY MARKET I SEGMENT PROFIT BY MARKET
WA (AH58E2) 2R (UiEE5)
50.7%

9,853 5 964
13.6% Ga.2) _ 17.8%
62.1% Hong Kong, Hong Kong,
o, acau Macau &
e Qe SR

Kigoh

Ko

937
49.3% T19.1 %
(46.8%) Mainland China

37.9%
U 6,007
(34.7%) 18.6%

Mainland China

PER FREI Rt
Remarks: Comparative figures for FY2018 are shown in brackets it I B20188 FHF
Segment Profit Margin Y-0-Y Change
5 BB FI % RESE
Hong Kong, Macau and Overseas 9.8% +0.4 p.p.

- N 5 . (o] oy
BE R K (=P
Mainland China +0.1 p.p.

— 15.6%

o B Pt ’ (HEPE

Overall +0.5 p.p-
12.0%

-4 ° EESE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
BEE MO

y/

AND ANALYSIS

HONG KONG, MACAU AND OVERSEAS
B - BPIREH

Revenue Segment Profit
A S EpaE T
9,661
110.1% 1;,17 39 80.6%
- — 8.0%

Retailing Retailing LV

98.0% * 131
56 (92.2%) 118.2%
153.9% 0-62/0 13.6% Wholesaling
Licensing (0-4%) 5.8% (17.9%) o
B | | 1.4% (41 ‘%)\ 56
136 (7.4%) 154.2%
180.8% Licensing
Wholesaling RAREERS
#ea

Remarks.: Comparative figures for FY2018 are shown in brackets

it AN AB20188 FEFE

Segment Profit Margin

Macau and Overseas

B R R8I
;f;'"”g 8.0% -
Wholesaling +73.8 p.p.
96.59
3 & BESE
Adjusted Wholesaling' 5.0 +0.1 p.p.
AR T 7 EERE
Licensing +0.3 p.p.
100.19
GIEH & HEH %
Overall +0.4 p.p.
9.89
z N BEAK

" Adjusted Wholesaling Segment Profit Margin = Segment Profit of Wholesale

Business = (Revenue of Wholesale Business to External Parties + Inter-

Segment Wholesale Revenue of HK$2.375B)

U ERABRBESBEMNER =M BEER SN+ (HIM
R+ EEH B U A23. 75 T)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R Mo

Hong Kong, Macau and Overseas

Hong Kong

The Hong Kong market was the key source of revenue for the
Group. Visitors from Mainland China had been the major driver
for the retail business growth in Hong Kong in the past. Given
the continually improving retail sentiment and increasing visitor
arrivals in 2018, consumption expenditure per capita rose with
the improved macro-economic conditions and spending power.
According to the statistics on visitor arrivals to Hong Kong
published by the Hong Kong Tourism Board in January 2019,
visitor arrivals from Mainland China in 2018 rose by 14.8% year-
on-year to approximately 51.04 million. According to the visitor
arrival statistics published in April 2019, Mainland Chinese visitors
from January to March 2019 increased by 19.7% year-on-year to
approximately 14.58 million, while the consumption expenditure
per capita of overnight Mainland Chinese visitors increased by
2% year-on-year in 2018, representing the first positive growth
after 2015. However, the overall retail atmosphere has weakened
since 2019. According to the statistics on retail sales published
by the Census and Statistics Department of Hong Kong in
April 2019, the sales value of jewellery, watches and clocks,
and valuable gifts from January to March 2019 decreased by
2.7% over the corresponding period last year. The Group’s retail
revenue in the Hong Kong market therefore increased by 11.6%
to HK$7,440,987,000 (2018: HK$6,664,827,000) during the Year
under review. As at 31 March 2019, the Group operated a total of
49 self-operated shops (2018: 48 shops) in Hong Kong.

Macau

According to the latest tourism statistics published by the
Statistics and Census Service of the Macau Special Administrative
Region, Mainland Chinese visitor arrivals to Macau in 2018
increased by 13.8% over last year to 25.26 million; while the
number of Mainland Chinese visitor arrivals from January to March
2019 rose by 23.5% year-on-year. Due to the drop in average
selling price of gem-set jewellery products, the Group’s revenue
generated from the Macau market therefore only increased by
5.1% to HK$1,926,870,000 (2018: HK$1,833,983,000) during
the Year under review. As at 31 March 2019, the Group had a
total of 11 self-operated shops (2018: 10 shops) in Macau.

F& R RBsI

&

EEMSAAEENEBRANR  FERL
REEBE " HAEATELEBERNTEH
BN 2018F EERAFERE ATERR
i A¥SHE A REEEARFUEE D/ af
EMA AR - IRIBEE B REERBN2019F
1R A2 BIRE ST 8B~ 20185 55
75 B P B P b R 4R 4R 3 I014.8% F £951.04
BE AKX MR2019F48 D 2 B IRE &
SFEUERRER - 20191 AZE3AM BT ER
IR B EFERELIEIN9.7%E4)14.58EH B A
R 2018 F B A B A IRE 2 A E B iR
BIRE2% TR - B2015F 1B HIXNEIE K - 2R
BETERFBE019FMIAR G BEBBF
BETBRN2019F4 8 B RN T E XM EEMT
HFHE R 2019F1 A E3A MRS & i - $85k
M2 EEYNHEEEEEFRLE THK2.7% °
REBROEFEEREMENTERARA
I 32 A011.6% 2 7,440,987,000% 7T, (20184
6,664,827,000/8 7T ) c FR2019F3H31H - A&
BB BELHEHBAE B EE (20184 ¢
48f8) °

b1

RIBBPIFRTTRERNSGFTELT SRR
RSB T 2018F 5 R P B NIk
B EFEEIN3.8%E25.26F & AKX 20194
1AZE3AMRP BN RFEEF R LA E
F123.5% > REIEEFE N - ARIKE & fiE M A
FHEE YK AEBEREBRFITSHBRARE
i 21 A05.1%21,926,870,0005% 7T (20184F :
1,833,983,000/% 7T ) - A20199F3A31H * A&
EERPIEEZAF11EEZE (20184 1 10/) -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Overseas

Adhering to its motto “Brand of Hong Kong, Sparkling the World”,
the Group has been seeking new opportunities around the world
in recent years. During the Year under review, the Group added
1 self-operated shop in Malaysia and opened 1 licensed shop in
the Philippines. As at 31 March 2019, the Group operated a total
of 13 overseas shops (2018: 12 shops), including self-operated
shops of 1 in Singapore, 3 in Malaysia, 4 in the United States, 2
in Canada and 1 in Australia, as well as 1 licensed shop in both
Cambodia and the Philippines.

During the Year under Review, retail revenue from the Hong
Kong, Macau and overseas markets increased by 10.1% to
HK$9,660,983,000 (2018: HK$8,771,979,000), accounting
for 60.9% (2018: 60.2%) of the Group’s total revenue. Its
segment profit rose by 11.3% to HK$776,769,000 (2018:
HK$697,739,000), which accounted for 40.9% (2018: 41.5%)
of the total. Its segment profit margin was 8.0% (2018: 8.0%).
As scrap gold received from customers in Hong Kong no longer
being accounted for as sales but processed into raw materials
instead, its wholesale business revenue substantially decreased
by 80.8% to HK$135,772,000 (2018: HK$706,194,000),
accounting for 0.9% (2018: 4.8%) of the Group’s total revenue.
However, because of massive centralised purchases, its segment
profit decreased by 18.2% only to HK$130,993,000 (2018:
HK$160,148,000), accounting for 6.9% (2018: 9.5%) of the total.
Its segment profit margin, because of profit arising from massive
internal purchases, increased to 96.5% (2018: 22.7%). As the
segment profit of wholesale business included the profit of inter-
segment sales to self-operated shops, if including inter-segment
sales in the denominator, the segment profit margin would be a
much more stable level of 5.2% (2018: 5.1%). Apart from that,
benefitting from the new designated supplier consultancy services
revenue started in the second half of last financial year, Hong
Kong licensing income increased by 53.9% to HK$56,254,000
(2018: HK$36,563,000), accounting for 0.4% (2018: 0.3%)
of the Group’s total revenue. Because of other incomes
recorded, its segment profit was higher than revenue, reaching
HK$56,284,000, accounting for 3.0% (2018: 2.2%) of the total,
and resulting in its segment profit margin of 100.1%.

ok

FAREEERE-BREZINRE A&
BT A REM TSRS - NEEFE
A ANEBR SRR IER 17 B 25 MR JE:
EFRIEREE - N2019F3A318 - AEE
4R B 3G INE S (20184 1 12/]) - B1F
1RIRIFAFT N3t - SRR 5 2R P8 58 ~ 4RI R 36
ORIRI AR AN S KRR FORIN B B 4 T -
ARR SRR RMNFEEEE R A 1M MmEE-

REBEFEER &5 RBFIREINTENTE
WA £ F10.19%%9,660,983,0007% 7T (2018
F:8,771,979,0008 7t) (R EEEE I A
#960.9% (20184 : 60.2% ) ° £ 7 3 % | &
776,769,000 7T (20184 : 697,739,000%
J0) © EFF11.3% 1l ZE 4 #940.9% (20184 :
41.5% )  E 5 &% F) & £8.0% (20184 :
8.0%) EHBEBWANARTEEFES
BT B REEEmNAE RSB EEmAX
18 T #%80.8% = 135,772,000/ 7T (20184 :
706,194,000/ 70 ) -+ 1 £ E 2 8 U A 890.9%
(2018% :4.8%) - BR AEMNFREFEES
H S E5% F B $18.2%2 130,993,0005% 7T
(20184 : 160,148,000/8 7T ) ' 15 ¥ BE H96.9%
(2018 :9.5% ) c H A &l M ERIE KE R
R ERBS B A SE A £+ 2=96.5% (20184
22.7%) MM BEBNDIEFEEDE
MEEEaEEMAE Mo Bt AR
HE DR EEEIRTERS2% (20184 :
51%) o BRILIASN SR EF THE TR
ROFTISE E R E M RIS BB MR
U A FH53.9% - 3#56,254,00058 7T (2018
4 : 36,563,000/ 7 ) * (hEEEEEE U AM0.4%
(2018%F : 0.3% ) AR B HMIKA  H o
=053 F = R U 56,284,000/ 7T 0 14 88
#93.0% (20184 : 2.2% )  fF H 5 &0 F| K =
100.1% °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Overall speaking, revenue from the Hong Kong, Macau and
overseas markets increased by 3.6% to HK$9,853,009,000
(2018: HK$9,514,736,000) during the Year under review,
accounting for 62.1% (2018: 65.3%) of the Group’s total revenue.
Its segment profit increased by 7.8% to HK$964,046,000 (2018:
HK$894,383,000), accounting for 50.7% (2018: 53.2%) of the
total, while its segment profit margin was 9.8% (2018: 9.4%).

The SSSG for gold and platinum products in the Hong Kong,
Macau and overseas markets was +7.0% (2018: +5.6%), while
that for gem-set jewellery products was +1.1% (2018: +14.6%).

BEmMS REBEFER TF B REN
TG E W A £ FH3.6%%£9,853,009,00058 7T
(20184 : 9,514,736,000/8 7T ) * 15 AL E &
BE UL A62.1% (20184F : 65.3% ) * E 5 &b
F Bl + F+7.8%ZE 964,046,000/ 7T (20184 :
894,383,000/ 7T ) * {h ¥ 88 #950.7% (2018
F:53.2%)  H 5 E0 F & £9.8% (20184 :
9.4%) °

BECRMREITENESMACERZE
JEHE IR B+7.0% (2018F : +5.6% ) K&
HEEMBA+1.1% (2018F : +14.6% ) °

II MAINLAND CHINA
FhEl it

Revenue

KA

2,414
18.6% 40.2%
Retailing (43.9%)

=5

751
121.7% _ 125%

Licensing (12.2%)
MR

2,842 47.3%
127.8% (43.9%)

Wholesaling
i

Remarks: Comparative figures for FY2018 are shown in brackets
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=5
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Segment Profit
SERRT

13.0% 17.5%
I 20.3%
Betalllng ( o) 29.3% Wholesaling

(28.3%) #Hea

0,

1281% 53.2%
Licensing (51.4%)

R RRSETE

it A AB20188 F I F

Mainland China Y-0-Y Change
PR A REZ

I;:a/’;iling 6.8%
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(EEFE
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+0.1 p.p.
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Mainland China

During the Year under review, despite the decrease in the number
of self-operated shops and decline in SSSG, with the substantial
growth of revenue of e-commerce business, retail revenue from
the Mainland China market grew by 8.6% to HK$2,414,204,000
(2018: HK$2,223,114,000), accounting for 15.2% (2018: 15.2%)
of the Group’s total revenue. Its segment profit increased by
3.0% to HK$164,122,000 (2018: HK$159,353,000), accounting
for 8.6% (2018: 9.5%) of the total. Its segment profit margin was
6.8% (2018: 7.2%). The SSSG for gold and platinum products in
Mainland China was -6.1% (2018: +6.8%) and that for gem-set
jewellery products was +6.2% (2018: -0.7%).

Due to the increase in the number of new licensed shops,
revenue of the wholesale business in the Mainland China market
rose substantially by 27.8% to HK$2,842,039,000 (2018:
HK$2,223,920,000), which accounted for 17.9% (2018: 15.3%)
of the Group’s total revenue, while its segment profit increased
by 23.5% only to HK$274,749,000 (2018: HK$222,460,000)
because of the decline in gross margin of its gem-set jewellery
products in view of much increased sales mix of products of lower
gross margin and adjustment of wholesale prices in response to
market price changes, accounting for 14.5% (2018: 13.2%) of the
total. Its segment profit margin was 9.7% (2018: 10.0%).

A B A it

REBEFERN BRETEEERIRAKIE
EA ABEAMTENEERALS & EH
BRAKAEHEEETHNBERLTNDA
8.6%H) FH 18 » #£2,414,204,000/%8 7T (2018
4 :2,223,114,0008 L) " EEEE I A
B15.2% (20184 : 15.2% ) » E 5 &6 % 7
Bl 1% HN3.0% = 164,122,000 7T (20184 :
159,353,000 7T ) ' 15 B 52 #8.6% (2018
F:09.5%)  Ho &% F & 26.8% (20184 :
72%) FRERAES MIACERZBEHEE
BEAE-6.1% (2018%F : +6.8% ) ' KB B Hi E
T B A+6.2% (20185 : -0.7% ) °

PR FTIE b2 SR 2R B 1800 - AR B b Th 5 ik B2
E UL KIE EFH27.8%%2,842,039,00078 7T
(20184 : 2,223,920,000/8 7T ) " {h E B LB L
AHI17.9% (20185 : 15.3% ) » B Ik B & £
ERENEEAETMNERRENERIEEHLAE
FRARMBERETNSERESELFTEM T
% LB E R D IR FE EF23.5%
274,749,000 7T (20184F : 222,460,000
TC) {EERER14.5% (2018F :13.2% ) * E 5
R AR 59.7% (20184 : 10.0% ) °
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Licensing income increased by 21.7% to HK$750,738,000
(2018: HK$616,639,000) due to the increase in the number of
licensed shops as well, accounting for 4.7% (2018: 4.2%) of
the Group’s total revenue. Its segment profit rose by 23.1% to
HK$497,908,000 (2018: HK$404,419,000), which accounted
for 26.2% (2018: 24.1%) of the total. Its segment profit margin
increased to 66.3% (2018: 65.6%) because of high fixed cost
proportion in its cost structure.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had a total of 1,755 shops
(2018: 1,561 shops) under the “Lukfook” brand name in Mainland
China, including 141 self-operated shops (2018: 157 shops) and
1,614 licensed shops (2018: 1,404 shops). During the Year under
review, the Group reported a net increase of 210 Lukfook licensed
shops (2018: 108 shops) and net reduction of 16 self-operated
shops (2018: net addition of 24 shops) in Mainland China.
Moreover, the Group also operated 5 3D-GOLD self-operated
shops in Mainland China.

During the Year under review, the overall same store sales growth
of Lukfook licensed shops in Mainland China was +3.2% (2018:

+10.7%), while the same store sales for its gold and gem-set
jewellery products were flat (2018: +12.3%) and +13.7% (2018:
‘ Revenue

+12.2%) respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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In light of the rapid development of e-commerce, revenue of
e-commerce business from Mainland China increased by 60.9%
to HK$553,208,000 (2018: HK$343,875,000) during the Year
under review, accounting for 22.9% (2018: 15.5%) of the retail
revenue in Mainland China. Sales of gold and platinum products
accounted for 77.5% (2018: 77.3%) of its sales mix while sales of
gem-set jewellery products accounted for 22.5% (2018: 22.7%).

Overall speaking, during the Year under review, revenue
from the Mainland China market increased by 18.6% to
HK$6,006,981,000 (2018: HK$5,063,673,000), which was at
a faster pace than other markets, accounting for 37.9% (2018:
34.7%) of the Group’s total revenue. Its segment profit increased
by 19.1% to HK$936,779,000 (2018: HK$786,232,000),
accounting for 49.3% (2018: 46.8%) of the total; and its segment
profit margin was 15.6% (2018: 15.5%).

Financial Impact in relation to Investments and
Operating Activities in HKRH” & Its Subsidiaries

Profit /(Loss)
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The loss on investments and operating activities in HKRH and its
subsidiaries was approximately HK$27,000,000 (2018: loss of
HK$16,000,000) during the Year under review.

# HKRH represents Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited
(Stock Code: 2882) which conducts jewellery retail and franchise
businesses under the brand name of “3D-GOLD” in Hong Kong, Macau
and Mainland China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s cash and bank balances
amounted to approximately HK$2,087,000,000 (2018:
approximately HK$2,098,000,000). The Group’s net gearing ratio
at the year-end was 2.1% (2018: 0%), which was calculated
by using the ratio of total bank borrowings and gold loans
of approximately HK$2,306,000,000 (2018: approximately
HK$726,000,000) less cash and bank balances against total
shareholders’ equity of approximately HK$10,517,000,000
(2018: approximately HK$10,035,000,000). Net borrowing was
approximately HK$219,000,000 (2018: net cash of approximately
HK$1,372,000,000). The debt-to-equity ratio was 36.7%
(2018: 21.3%), being the ratio of total liabilities of approximately
HK$3,861,000,000 (2018: approximately HK$2,135,000,000)
against total shareholders’ equity of approximately
HK$10,517,000,000 (2018: approximately HK$10,035,000,000).
The Group’s income and expenditure streams are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Inventory

/4
[

Gold

2o 171
Gem-set

397
b =
Overall

273
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As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s inventory increased by 16.6%
to approximately HK$9,322,000,000 (2018: approximately
HK$7,992,000,000) due to the faster-than-expected growth in
the number of licensed shops. However, with the unexpected
downturn of macro-economic conditions due to US-China trade
war in the second half of the financial year, the average inventory
turnover days grew to 273 days (2018: 257 days) with the
inventory turnover days of gold products being 171 days (2018:
156 days) and that of gem-set jewellery products being 397 days
(2018: 405 days).
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Capital Expenditure

During the Year under review, the Group’s capital expenditures
amounted to approximately HK$934,000,000 (2018:
approximately HK$213,000,000), including the costs of
properties, leasehold lands, land use rights, leasehold
improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s total capital commitments
amounted to approximately HK$18,000,000 (2018: approximately
HK$489,000,000).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had outstanding financial
guarantees amounting to approximately HK$1,075,000,000
(2018: approximately HK$899,000,000) issued in favour of several
banks in respect of banking facilities granted to an associate.

Human Capital Policy

As at 31 March 2019, the number of employees of the Group
was approximately 7,600 (2018: approximately 7,500). The
management reviews and examines the remuneration policies
on a regular basis to ensure that fair rewards and compensation
are provided to our employees. Remuneration packages are
determined with reference to comparable market rates while
bonuses and other rewards are linked to the performances of
the Group and the employees. This policy aims to motivate
employees with monetary incentives to work together to enhance
the Group’s business performance.
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To Reach a New Height
BHsE

Strategic Growth
REMER

Mainland China
Market Expansion

PE AT IS HR

During the Year under review, net profit of the year recorded a
9.7% growth despite the suddenly reversed market sentiment in
the second half of the financial year under the adverse impact of
the US-China trade war. However, SSSG in the Hong Kong and
Macau market of the Group recorded a low double-digit drop
for the period from April to the first 3 weeks of June 2019, while
same store sales of Mainland China were a mid single-digit drop
and a low single-digit growth for self-operated and licensed shops
respectively. With the continuing uncertainties on the macro-
economic environment arising from the US-China trade war,
together with the high base effect in the first half and low base in
the second half of the financial year, the Group therefore expects
flattish growth in terms of revenue and profit in FY2019/20,
hoping to maintain its profitability in the year. Nevertheless, in
view of the anticipated considerable growth of the middle-class
population in Mainland China, the Group remains optimistic about
the mid- to long-term business prospects, and looks forward to
bringing its business to a new height in the near future.
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Supply Chain Management
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group has set up its new three-year corporate strategy with
Supply Chain Management, Mainland China Market Expansion
and Strategic Growth as its three main focuses so as to foster its
future business growth.

\/\/N

Right Product
BEER

$

Right Price
BEES

Supply Chain Management

In order to further enhance its competitive edge, the Group
will focus on strengthening supply chain management through
various means. The Group will try its best endeavour to identify
right product, set right price and offer products to market at right
time by implementing higher level of automation and big data
management; improving factory productivity; shortening inventory
turnover period; establishing strategic partnership with suppliers;
streamlining logistics on distribution and intensifying support
to licensees, with a hope that all these would help to promote
business development and strengthen operational efficiency.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Mainland China Market Expansion

As Mainland China remains to be a market with promising
growth potential in the mid- to long-term, the Group will
continue to focus on business expansion in Mainland China.
The target for net addition of shops in Mainland China in the
coming year, including newly developed brands, is not less
than 150 shops and will expand its network to lower-tier
cities by opening mainly licensed shops. The Group is also
committed to further developing its e-commerce business
and strengthening cooperation with e-commerce platforms
in Mainland China, aiming to grow e-commerce revenue by
20%. In light of the enormous spending potential of young
consumers on online sales platforms, the Group will step up
its efforts to promote the sales of affordable luxury jewellery
products to expand its footprint in the young consumer
market.

Strategic Growth

The Group will adopt multi-brand strategy to cater for different
tastes of customers. In light of customers’ demand for
fashionable and personalised products, the Group has developed
the Dear Q Collection, which rides on the DIY concept of allowing
customers to mix and match charms for their unique styling, into
a sub-brand. The first independent store was opened in Shanghai
in May 2019. The Group’s globally exclusive Goldstyle Collection,
crafted with exquisite techniques to double the hardness of gold
and provide gold jewellery featuring style effects of K-gold, has
been well received by the middle-class customers favouring chic
jewellery suitable for daily wear. In view of this, the Group strives
to develop the Goldstyle into an independent brand and has
opened the first store in Xi'an in June 2019, aiming to attract the
sophisticated middle-class customers.
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In order to align with the branding theme of “Love is Beauty”, the
Group has been building a welcoming and warm-hearted brand
image, and strengthening customers’ awareness of the brand and
emotional attachment to the brand through outstanding marketing
campaigns and excellent customer service programmes.

We have revitalised our “Lukfook Jewellery” brand with a vibrant
and more distinguishable brand image. We modified the logo
and colour that have been used for years, and introduced new
elements. The newly adopted “Lukfook Jewellery” brand logo
is designed with curly brush strokes to accentuate the elegant
and feminine touch. The new logo also cleverly hides an Arabia
number “6” inside the Chinese character “/&” which is exclusive
for the “Lukfook Jewellery” brand. A brand new shop style has

also been unveiled to match our new brand image.

Adhering to the motto of “Exquisite Craftsmanship, Quality
Services and Customer Orientation”, the Group acts in the
customers’ best interests in our operational management, and
is meticulous from product design, quality assurance to sales
services. To tie in with our “Six Heartfelt Services” culture, we
are dedicated to fulfiling customers’ need with a caring heart
and offering sincere quality services, aiming to provide the most
enjoyable shopping experience for customers.

Meanwhile, we also extend the concept of “love” to our
employees. We strive to promote a caring culture and create
a friendly and harmonious working atmosphere. We treat
employees as our family members and care for their physical and
mental wellbeing in order to enhance their sense of belonging and
foster a corporate culture of Lukfook Family.
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Targeting the mid- to high-end markets in Mainland China,
Hong Kong, Macau and overseas, the Group has implemented
comprehensive marketing strategies, and launched diversified
product offerings with exquisite designs, together with
outstanding marketing campaigns, to seize the business
opportunities in the middle-class, wedding and kids markets.

To cope with the brand’s positioning of mass luxury sector,
we have endeavoured to further penetrate the middle-class
market through various channels. During the Year under review,
the Group continued to hold the “Lukfook Jewellery Raceday”
featuring the theme “Blessed to meet my Grace”, and invited
Miss Hong Kong Pageant title winners to showcase a series of
glamorous diamond jewellery to the guests and audience, so as
1o raise our brand awareness among the middle-class population.

As pet-keeping gains increasing popularity among middle-class
families, pet-related expenditures are on the rise. This, coupled
with a growing middle-class population in Mainland China, is
expected to push the development of pet-related “Cuteness
Economy” to a new height. The Group, in partnership with the
Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals (Hong Kong)
again, organised the “Lukfook Jewellery Pet Pet Ambassador
Contest”, and introduced the pendants featuring the image of the
winning pets for charity sales to contribute to the society.

Nowadays, marathon running has become one of the most
popular sports among the middle-class in pursuit of a healthy
lifestyle. Therefore, the Group sponsored the medals set with gold
and diamonds for the Hong Kong, Beijing, Shanghai, Wuhan and
Guangzhou marathons to honour more than 454,500 marathon
finishers over the years. This year we continued to collaborate
with the mobile sports application Codoon to boost brand
awareness and seize the business opportunities from the middle-
class market.
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Contemporary gold jewellery with diversified and fashionable
designs suits well for daily wear. In order to diversify our gold
jewellery offerings, the Group unveiled the “Goldstyle” Collection.
This trendy collection of gold jewellery is crafted with exquisite
techniques to double the hardness of gold, and provides the style
effects of carat gold. In response to the middle-class customers’
demand for trendy designs, our “Love is Beauty” Collection
offers a series of finely crafted sparkling diamond jewellery
featuring the heart design to interpret our branding concept
of “Love is Beauty”. Stylish barcode designs are incorporated
into the “Love Forever” Collection endorsed by Mr. Lam-Fung,
allowing customers to mix and match the pieces to create their
unique couple jewellery. The “Dear Q" Collection has been well
received by the market since its launch. The Group has specially
introduced new charms of different themes, as well as the dainty
earrings and rings to attract more customers.
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WEDDING MARKET

According to the statistics released by the Ministry of Civil Affairs
of the People’s Republic of China, there have been over 10 million
pairs of newlyweds per year in the past 5 years. In order to seize
this valuable business opportunity of the wedding market, the
Group has participated in wedding expos in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, and held large-scale wedding shows with high-
end hotels and other wedding related partners. Besides, the
Group launched a wide range of Chinese and western wedding
products. To meet the increasing consumer demand in the
wedding market, the Group introduced the latest “Beloved”
Collection of gold wedding jewellery under the theme of “Share
Lifelong Happiness and Love with You. Love is Beauty”, to boost
the sales in the peak season of marriages. This year the Group, in
cooperation again with the Platinum Guild International, has been
appointed as the “Designated Retailer for 2018 Platinum Jewellery
Thematic Promotions”, and launched the new Platinum Graceful
Collection and Platinum Bridal Collection for joint promotion,
further enhancing the image of our platinum jewellery. Moreover,
as nowadays young people prefer unique wedding jewellery, the
Group has introduced a series of uniquely designed engagement
rings and wedding rings featuring the concept of “create your very
own rings” for couples to select their favourite pieces and create
their rings of their choice. We have also offered a wide array of
wedding rings with complete range of sizes and complimentary
engraving services at our shops to cater for the unique demands
of wedding couples, aiming to increase our share in the wedding
market by leveraging our diversified wedding products and caring
services.

KIDS MARKET

In response to the implementation of the two-child policy in
Mainland China, the Group has introduced a variety of kids’
products, including the “Hugging Family” Collection and the
exclusive Rilakkuma Collection which have been well received
by both adults and kids. To boost sales strategically, the Group
launched an array of jewellery accessories featuring the adorable
family members and Rilakkuma, and the baby gift sets that came
with the accessories invoking blessings for peace, safety and
health as well as the exquisitely designed gift boxes, making them
the best choice for gifts or personal use.
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With a strategic initiative to increase brand awareness and secure
our market share in Hong Kong and Mainland China, the Group
continued to strengthen the connection between love and beauty,
which is in line with our branding theme of “Love is Beauty”, and
sponsored the diamond crown and precious jewellery pieces for
the “Miss Hong Kong Pageant” for twenty-one consecutive years.

Furthermore, the Group also actively capitalised on different
promotional channels, such as public relations activities,
advertising and various kinds of sponsorships, to enhance our
brand awareness. The Group also grasped the advantages of
online marketing by placing advertisements on major social media
platforms, portals, video platforms and search engines, and
promoted our products via live broadcast platforms, influential
we-media accounts, KOLs and other popular new media
platforms.

To celebrate the Group’s anniversary in 2018, a series of
anniversary promotion activities was launched worldwide. We
set up the Lukfook Jewellery “91 Street” pop-up store in various
areas in Mainland China. We also launched the “Share Love and
Fun” Challenge and cooperated with KOLs on Douyin, a popular
short-form video platform among the younger age group, and
recorded a total of over 3.2 billion views. Besides, we invited
more than 30 famous brands including King Pro League, Beijing
Marathon, Shenzhen Airlines, Suning, Beijing Hyundai and Aupres
to roll out joint anniversary celebration campaigns on the Weibo
platform, which gained overwhelming exposure.
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Riding on the wave of e-sports and animation comics (“ani-
com”) booms in recent years, the Group has been appointed
as the official partner for the “King Pro League” to create the
champion rings since 2017, and has captured the opportunity to
introduce the “Heart of Kings” Collection featuring the ani-com
elements in 2018, with a view to strengthening our penetration
into the millennial generation as their purchasing power is trending
upwards. Besides, the Group carried out on-site brand promotion
at the fall season final venue by setting up a brand promotion
booth to showcase the champion rings and videos on the “King
Pro League” champion rings, thus greatly enhancing our brand’s
penetration into the market of younger generation.
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Producing the finest products with exquisite craftsmanship and
stylish designs is one of the core competencies of the Group.
To boost the creativity and broaden the horizons of our design
team, we arrange overseas trips for the team from time to time
to explore and apply different design concepts to jewellery. Our
outstanding design team has actively taken part in various local
and international jewellery design competitions, and has won
more than 190 awards up to now, further raising Lukfook’s brand
image.

During the Year under review, the Group’s design piece “Enjoy”
won the “Best of Show Award (Open Group)” in “The 20th Hong
Kong Jewellery Design Competition”. In addition, our design
piece “Pegasus”, which was previously awarded in the “Chuk
Kam Jewellery Design Competition 2018 — The Fashionable 18K
Group”, received the “Merit Award” at the “International Jewellery
Design Excellence Award 2019”.

During the Year under review, the Group’s continuous efforts in
brand building have been recognised with the following awards
and accolades from the industry and market, which included:

- “Hong Kong Service Awards 2019 — Quiality Living Category
(Jewellery and Gold)” for twelve consecutive years

- “Hong Kong Star Brand Award — Enterprise” for seven
consecutive years

- “Brand of the Year — Retail” and “Outstanding Enterprise of
the Year — Greater China” at JNA Awards 2018

i!tnﬂtl'ﬂi
IEPCRLT MBI i

c‘ﬁ':. E;&%ﬁmmms’ﬁ%#

SUERERE R TRBHNER S NEE
T?/uﬁfﬁ&jjz— o RFFEIRTTAIFNRE ) R HE RS

-Jrl[%fmﬁﬁ AEBTRZHFEBKINEE
2 BTRARABRTRAENKELE L3

f””‘ﬁﬁ’] Jrl%)T%*’fT//\%{IKi’@&lﬁf%Iﬂi
BRI E 25 HESR10ERE £

:I:7/\

RIANENMETR -

REEFER  SERERFm FEWMH¥J
R [£20EBBRERLE] D ES [ AFRE
R - mBERERBIREFE] EAFIB%‘\%
BRATAE2019] hRRE [BRRAHE] - 1t
ERITER [ & & # R L E2018] FEF
(B K4 ] 2818

REREER P AR EE IR FRRES
N REERARTHARLEEU TRERE
B

- EE12FLE [FEREALE2019 — &
MAFEAR (RE£TT)]

- EELEH
e

REBEBEERRE — &%

- TAT2018F EINAK £ | E4E [ F [Z an iR

RE— TEYE | R FERNDEASE —
Ko 2 i | 48

CINAY S

‘\’a TSP smeasm >
S Toww  EIER] §IWHASES

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S



BRANDING
n R R

The Group puts emphasis on quality control and authentication
to enhance consumers’ confidence, and is meticulous from
procurement to authentication. In 1996, China Gems Laboratory
Limited (“CGL”"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, was
established for the purpose of providing services including
authentication and grading of diamonds, authentication of jadeite
jade and coloured gemstones, and quality assessment for
jewellery. The laboratory is operated by a group of experienced
and certified gemologists specialising in authentication of
gemstones and jadeite jade.

In addition, the Group set up Victoria Gemological Institute
Limited, which principally engaged in jewellery authentication
and professional training. With branch offices in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, the institute provides services for the jewellery
sector and customers. The institute has passed the accreditation
of the Laboratory Accreditation Bureau (L-A-B) of the United
States, and is authorised to issue internationally recognised
reports that conform to ISO/IEC 17025 in diamond grading and
fei cui (jadeite jade) testing.

To further boost consumers’ confidence, the Group cooperated
with The International Institute of Diamond Grading and Research
(IDGR) to provide an additional report for any Hearts & Arrows
diamond sold at our shops in Hong Kong and Macau, so as
to give customers a more comprehensive understanding of the
diamond products purchased.
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Lukfook’s cultivation of a warm-hearted brand image would
not be successful without a commitment to service excellence.
Adhering to the motto of “Exquisite Craftsmanship, Quality
Services and Customer Orientation”, we act in the customers’
best interests in our operational management. In line with the
branding theme of “Love is Beauty”, the Group has introduced
the “Delivering the Beauty of Love with Six Heartfelt Services”
excellent customer service programme to fulfil customers’ needs
with a caring heart and offer quality, sincere services to customers
with a view to relaying the culture of Six Heartfelt Services to each
customer all over the world.

To tie in with our fashionable and chic brand image, the Group
has introduced a brand-new shop design. Soft champagne
gold tone is applied to create a romantic ambience, and glass
elements are widely used at shops to create a more spacious
feeling and impressive displays, so as to make customers feel at
home.

The shops introduce the innovative space design to create
a corridor-style shopping area where customers can stroll to
appreciate and select jewellery. The shops also provide an
independent area where customers can enjoy one-to-one service
and tailored advice offered by our staff. Besides, the Group
has established the Member Zone at shops for our privileged
members to enjoy special offers, leisure space and caring
services, aiming to deliver unparalleled shopping experience to
customers.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Purpose of This Report

This is the third Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Report (“this Report”) of Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited
(“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively known as “the
Group” or “We”). With the brand awareness we have built over
the years, we are striving to seize development opportunities and
strengthen our leading position in the jewellery retail market. We
understand that our responsibility goes far beyond provision of
quality products and services to our customers. We are pleased
to publish this Report to describe our environmental and social
issues and detail our efforts in sustainable development.

Report Year and Scope

This Report covers the reporting period form 1 April 2018 to
31 March 2019 (‘FY2019” or the “Reporting Period”). Unless
otherwise stated, this Report covers the business operations
of the Group’s Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China offices,
factories, showrooms and self-operated shops. This Report,
together with the rest of the annual report, were reviewed and
approved by the board of directors in June 2019.

Reporting Standard

The content of this Report is prepared in accordance with the
ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “ESG Reporting Guide”). This report consists of
a content index to the ESG Reporting Guide for enhanced
readability.

Access to This Report

This Report is part of the Group’s annual report available in both
Chinese and English versions. It is accessible on the Group’s
website at www.lukfook.com.

Your Comment
We welcome any comment and suggestion regarding this Report
and our sustainability performance. Please email us your feedback
at ir@lukfook.com.

BEH®D

R EEE (BER)BARAR (AR R
HME AR (G [ AEE ][R RmE
ME=DRR L8 REE (KRR - HEakE
Al HwmE ([RRE]) - BREZFRENEIN
mEAEE  BAIME R RS ZERMAN
KETEMHNREMA - RPVRA - AP
BEEET L RBERRMEEE®R LR - B M
RATIE AR E - W BREARENIRE R
SEENFARPNAIFHAEERTEELHNS
Ho

REFTERGE
AR EH 420184 A1H £201993 A31
B ([201981 4 | s [REH] ) MABEERR

B-BRIESEHRP NMEREAEEE ML
REE RFIRTEANRER K5 REN
BEENEBLE-EFSCN2019F6 A%

FREGBE D %Fﬂﬂ&ﬁt/ﬁzﬁ#&% °

BERE

ABRERBEEHAXIABRABEFESF LT
RAMEE -+t GRIR-HEREAREE
sy (I GRE e MEARMEIESD) |HOH
BERMmD - MERE CRR -HERE RS
5l WABRRS ARAAREN A EN -

EWMEESLX

AREBAERFEREH ‘:Pi”k B
T BESChRA » M E E A A S B A 4E www.lukfook.
comft & -

BHER

BMEN BT ARERBEMOITRERR
REEMERNEZR B HETHREEH
Fir@lukfook.com °

Annual Report 2018/19 E#i



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RiE g kER®E

To Customers: Six Heartfelt Services

HEE: NORK

“Brand of the Year — Retail” at JNA Awards 2018
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Named “Hong Kong Star Brand Award — Enterprise”
for Seven Consecutive Years
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Luk Faok Heldings (Intermational) Ltd
AHAE (RN ) WELE

Recognised for Seven
Consecutive Years as a
“Consumer Caring

Company”
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MA AWARDS @ HONOUREE PRES

Honouree for the “Outstanding Enterprise of the
Year — Greater China” at JNA Awards 2018
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“Hong Kong Service Awards 2019” by
“East Week Magazine”
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To Employees: Lukfook Family
HRET:RNEXRE

Total headcount as at 31 March 2019: approximately 7,600*
HE2019F3A31HE T A& : #)57,600%

Attained “Happiness-at-work” Label for Five
Consecutive Years
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Subscribed to the “Good Employer Charter”

S e d Rk (FRENT) BEHEE
ARzRs e -
ComPANY g

Named “QF Star Employer” under
“Quallifications Framework” Scheme
BIEREB]IHEZTRIQFER
E=x]

The figure covers all employees of the Group.
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To Public: Love is Beauty
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Environmental Protection
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Environmental Excellence for Three Consecutive
Years at “BOCHK Corporate Environmental
Leadership Awards”
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“Gold Award” at i S \‘| 'ﬁ/
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Environmental Excellence
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Cerlificate of Merit
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“Certificate of Merit” in
“2017 Hong Kong
Awards for Environmental
Excellence”
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Corporate Citizen

ERALR

Charitable donation of approximately HK$2,437,000
R ERA) /2,437,000 7T

“The 9th Hong Kong Outstanding Corporate Citizenship
Logo in Enterprise Category” and “The 9th Hong Kong
Outstanding Corporate Citizenship Award” in Enterprise
Category, with a special mention for community care
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Recognised as “Caring Company” for
10 Consecutive Years
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Certificate of Appreciation

saa Sponsorship of “VTC
Design Education Fund
2018” and “Outstanding
Industrial Attachment
Scholarships 2019”

7 [2018F EVTICHE T #

EESIR
[2O19FEEATEEE

BRI | IRHED

HHAR-NARRS
LiFnok Corwap - Mr Vinrosd T

wnm
o e s

2008 A VTC MR
W Dhesign Eidagation Fund 3018

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75852 (B2 ) HRAS



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RiE g kER®E

The corporate vision and the core brand value of the Group is
“Brand of Hong Kong, Sparkling the World”. The Group always
puts forth maximum effort for Lukfook to reach its goal of
becoming a world-known brand. As a renowned luxury brand in
Hong Kong, the Group is committed to crafting the finest jewellery
for customers to further establish its reputation in the international
market. The Group always puts its greatest effort to reach the
expectations of the customers, employees and shareholders and
contribute to the community:

° To provide value-added products and sincere services to its
customers for value appreciation;

° To provide its employees with a professional development
environment and grow together to achieve corporate goals;

° To add value to shareholders’ investment and maintain a
steady growth in business and profit; and

o To contribute to the community through reinforcing
communications with the public and participating in charity
events so as to continue caring for the society

The Board evaluates ESG-related risks and opportunities and has
adopted a series of risk management procedures to ensure the
key concerns of stakeholders align with the long-term value of
the Group. The Board determines the sustainable development
contents and the long-term value which are important to the
Group. Various departments of the Group continuously and
comprehensively collect internal and external data and opinions
of stakeholders through different channels, historical data, future
forecast and cases as well as information about other relevant
domestic and overseas companies. The Group formulates ESG-
related controls to address significant ESG risks, and those
controls are operated effectively at appropriate business levels.
The Board oversees the ESG matters and strives to create long-
term value to our stakeholders.
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Understanding and meeting the needs of our stakeholders
is critical to our journey to sustainability development. Each
feedback will ultimately lead the Group to identify significant
ESG issues and manage related risks and opportunities. Our
stakeholders are closely related to our business and influence
each other. We communicate with key stakeholders through
a variety of channels, collecting their opinions and working to

improve.

Major Stakeholder Category

EERHGEWR

Customers

HE

Employees

BT

Licensees

& hE 7

Major Communication Channel

EERERE

Direct Communication
BEEER

Social Network
HRFEE

Press Release

HTE TS

Employee Performance
Appraisal Interview

B TEMEZEHK
Meeting

L

Feedback Mailbox
[RE&1E4E

Employee Activity
BIEE

Licensees Meeting
mEEEE

On-site visit

IR 5 R

Direct Communication

HEAR

THREBMRFNENRT KRG RMETHER
RNEREZ=HE2 SEREELZRIGKS
BIRE B H R EAESGE & & B 1 46 B R A
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Frequency

R

e All the time
REVETT

e Update Irregularly
N 7E B

® Irregularly
NEH

e Annually
BFE

® Irregularly
NEH

e QOpen all the time
= BB X

e |rregularly
A TE HA

® Irregularly
TEH

e |rregularly
7€ 5

® Irregularly
T E
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Major Stakeholder Category Major Communication Channel Frequency
EERFHERR TEBBRE AR
Suppliers e Supplier Meeting e |rregularly
e HEESH I 5E B
e Tendering e |rregularly
Bz TEH
e On-site Visit ® Irregularly
15 P T E
e Exhibition e |rregularly
EEg I 5E B
e Direct Communication e |rregularly
BHEER TEH
Investors and Shareholders ¢ Annual General Meeting e Annually
BEERER REAE BEE
e Annual Report/Interim Report e Annually/Semi-annually
Fik,/ RS BEE/+FE
e Investors Conference e Quarterly, Semi-annually and
wEEER Annually

e Announcement

A==
=

AN

e Press Release
rER
e Direct Communication

BEBE

In order to understand the concerns of key stakeholders, in
FY2019, we engaged an independent third party to conduct an
online survey to engage stakeholders to identify key issues of the
Group. We conducted a materiality assessment questionnaire
to understand the views of stakeholders. This helps prepare
environmental, social and governance reports and formulate
strategies for future corporate social responsibility (“Corporate
Social Responsibility”).

Based upon our existing and previous stakeholder engagement
results, industry trends and the ESG Reporting Guide, we have
identified 20 ESG issues applicable to the Group. During the
materiality assessment process, we invited internal and external
stakeholders from Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China to
rank those 20 issues. The valuable opinions of the stakeholders
help us to prioritise the following suitability issues:

T EFERETHE
e Quarterly, Semi-annually and
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Issues Considered

Materiality Matrix
EEMER

TREERE

Legend
B
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Importance to Stakeholders ¥i#5/7%& &) & Z

Low &
®
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1 Air Emissions
& RHE
2 GHG Emissions
= RS HE AR
3 Hazardous Waste
BEEEY
4 Non-hazardous Waste
EEREEY
5 Energy Consumption
AEIREFE
6 Water Consumption
KEFE
7 Packaging Materials Consumption
BEMEIERE
8 Other Impacts to the Environment
HRBNHEMTE
@ Staff Welfare
R {ERER
10 Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-discrimination
FEKE - Zl RER
Q Occupational Health and Safety
WEREREERZ2
12 Staff Development and Training
8 TR RIE
@ Employment Compliance
ERA BRI
Supply Chain Management
frEE R
@ Product Assurance and Quality
EREERES
Customer Services

Low 1K Importance to the Group %{ 7%t Mg & Z 4

The vertical axis of the materiality matrix is “Importance to
Stakeholders” and the horizontal axis is “Importance to the
Group”. Issues lie within the upper right quadrant in the matrix
are considered to be the most important. Based on the
above analysis, we have identified 9 most important issues
to our stakeholders and the Group: 19. Anti-corruption, 16.
Customer Services, 11. Occupational Health and Safety, 15.
Product Assurance and Quality, 17. Intellectual Property Rights
Management, 13. Employment Compliance, 9. Staff Welfare, 18.
Marketing and Advertising and 14. Supply Chain Management.

High & BEE R

@ Intellectual Property Rights Management
FHMERE R

@ Marketing and Advertising
MISHEERES
Anti-corruption
RES

20 Community Investment
HERIRE
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BAIEE R ERAEE NS & AEAHIA
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A piece of jewellery could well be a piece of valuable memory
passing down through generations to many of our customers.
In the spirit of “Exquisite Craftsmanship, Quality Services and
Customer Orientation”, we are committed to managing and
operating in a sustainable and responsible manner, being
meticulous from raw material procurement, production to product
and service responsibilities.

Ethical Sourcing

In order to ensure that our jewellery products meet the relevant
standards, we use quality raw materials from the procurement
stage. To guarantee the source of raw materials such as
diamonds, gold and jadeite are legal and of high quality, we have
purchased from industry-recognised suppliers with integrity such
as members of the Shanghai Gold Exchange and Shanghai
Diamond Exchange and De Beers, the world’s largest diamond
supplier. Among them, De Beers has passed the Kimberley
Process Certification Scheme, ensuring that the rough diamond
supplied are not “conflict diamonds”.

In addition, we enhance customer confidence through various
product quality certification programmes.

P [ RAFRER
52 o

A

L] L)
SEENRENREAE

#}J#E"] [BE R

YEAR 3013

HFZEENS KENDEBEAERHESR
BANEZR AE[EVBE REBEA/L UE
REINEY AR UAFRERRNEE
ENHTNEEMER  HEMBRE  EEN
EERMREEES —HTE -

EERE
ABERAEEMBEENKEERTESHBIZ
A BB RERGRBED BV E - BER
A EZe BRIASEMBREGERE
EORMREBEN ST HGER
REFE 8 k2B A#E A (B De Beers
LREADHBSHEER - 7 - De Beersifi
BEEMREREE BRFIHRENELE
PR IE [fErzedEm ] -

BESN - F I
BEEDL-

BEEEMmEREE

By participating in the “Natural Jade Logo” programme jointly organised by the
Hong Kong Jewellers” and Goldsmiths’ Association and the Kowloon Pearls,
Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants Association, we
ensure that our jade products are all untreated natural jade.

FHEEES /\EEE/%I%EE SCREMERTHNEROIRSRENETES
T & RE

IR E N BRE m & R ARERIEHRAR

By participating in the “Quality Gold Logo” programme jointly organised by the
Hong Kong Jewellers’ and Goldsmiths’ Association and the Kowloon Pearls,
Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants Association, we
ensure that our gold jewellery products meet the purity standard.
SEHEEROESCREHEBSENERO IR REHETSE
TE RERFAEENSHERTAKEBIRLE-

By participating in the “Natural Diamond Quality Assurance” logo programme
promoted by the Diamond Federation of Hong Kong, we ensure that the
diamond products we sell are all natural diamonds.
RBAZEMBEBEOESHETHN [ RAEAR
HENBOERERAAER -

nERE | Eeeat 8 RERPIFT
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Product Quality Assurance

We are committed to producing quality products for our
customers. The use of high quality raw materials and advanced
technology ensures that our products are safe and suitable for
long-term wear. We comply with the Product Quality Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests, the
Trade Descriptions Ordinance of Hong Kong and other relevant
regulations on product quality standards to strictly control the
quality of products. In every step of the production process, from
material sourcing to jewellery production and from the release of
final product to delivery of our products to retail shops, we carry
out quality inspections to ensure that the Group only sells qualified
quality products.

We have been awarded the ISO/IEC 17025:2005 International
Test/Calibration Laboratory Certification for Jewellery and Jade
Inspection Center, which will conduct quality inspections when
raw materials are delivered and when finished products are
shipped. We have assigned quality inspectors for each process
of jewellery production, so that every product inspected can
meet the requirements of the production order before being
transported to the next department for further processing. After
the finished products are delivered to the Group’s retail shops, our
shop assistant will inspect each piece of jewellery to rule out the
possibility of being substituted secretly in transit.

The Group'’s jewellery processing plant in Nansha, Guangzhou
has been certified to 1ISO9001 quality management system
since 2008, which proves that our quality assurance system
has reached international level and has been professionally
recognised.

Customer Satisfaction

In respect of the sales services, each of the retail outlets has a
“Six Heartfelt Services” ambassador to implement the service
objective and organise the “Six Heartfelt Service Voices”
campaign to enhance the quality of services. Employees can
watch relevant videos and understand the service standards of
the Group through the intranet any time.

For after-sales service, we have set up a systematic process
to deal with product recycling and handling quality issues. The
recycled products will be handed over to the inspection centre
for further inspection after initial inspection by the retail shop, and
inspection reports will be provided to the relevant customers if
necessary. Product quality issues will be checked and followed up
by relevant departments.

ERHERE

BB NSEERERENEM BBRME
HRME XERME BERMNWERL 2
AEERAME - HFPER (hEARKME
EmEE%) (PEARKMBEIEEEZaR
&%) BB (AmHAREN) SEHEREE
FENRE HEMEELETRRILHE R
MRRE BEMHTERENE—BEIF FIR
Rt E NEBEXRTEE HEETE
Bk BMRAKEIAHEEABEBENER -

HAPIE 2 ISO/IEC 17025:200581 B 815,
TFTEREREFNKRETARRAL  REM
R &8 R R A H SR EITE SR - ME
F— B ITEEENTIHFHLE TERE
BRARENT—HERNTSERAEEEL
B AR EXE TN — AT a0 BEETT
T—EIRFNHE - ERREBEEAEEZTEE
# EENTERET—HEMURRERETS
BT B R AR o

AREFEL A EME YD BIIRE H1 TR 820084 £
BEBISO0IEEE R ZMRE  TERM
MEERERFEEBBPKFELEFTERA -

HEREE

HERBHE  SRTEEHRA [SORH]
R NEBRTAERRBRE - WA 7D
iz | EE) IR RISE X - B TAIRER
BEREABBEEERRAR T BAKEN RS

SRRBTH RASRLEEERDY KR
BEEMBNARCRE - QRERETER
NEWAREBREEE T OIEE— T
TREFBZHNER TEHERARE TERE
Fo MEME EREK A AAENIIRE RERE -
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In the spirit of “Six Heartfelt Services”, our core values are
established to maintain high quality standards and meet customer
requirements. We develop procedures for handling customer
complaints and product recalls to respond to customers in a
timely manner to drive continuous improvement.

The Group strives for excellence and conduct customer
satisfaction surveys to collect customer feedback to keep abreast
of market trends. The Group engaged an independent agency to
conduct quarterly mystery customer service survey to assess the
quality of our products and services.

Intellectual Property Right Protection

We have successfully registered the “Luk Fook”/“Luk Fook
Jewellery” in Mainland China and Hong Kong in compliance
with the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Trade Marks
Ordinance and the Registered Designs Ordinance of Hong Kong.
We also apply for design patents/copyrights for novel and unique
products and display props, and actively combat infringement in
an effort to maintain and protect the intellectual property rights of
the Group.

Customer Privacy Protection

The Group is committed to respecting the privacy of consumers
and maintaining their personal privacy. We strictly abide by the
relevant provisions of the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests and the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong. A set of Privacy
Policy is formulated and published on the Group’s official website
to clarify how the Group collects, uses, discloses and retains
relevant personal data to prevent its personal data from being
inappropriately used.

Advertising and Labeling

We present true and legitimate advertising content with courtesy.
The advertisements and label contents issued by the Group
are reviewed by several internal departments of the Group
including the Legal Department and the external advertising
cooperation teams to ensure that they are in compliance with the
Advertisement Law of the People’s Republic of China, as well
as the Broadcasting Ordinance, the TV Advertising Code, the
Trade Descriptions Ordinance of Hong Kong. We also provide
appropriate training for frontline employees and implement
monitoring measures to ensure compliance with the above laws
and regulations.

REF[7OLIR | WOk RPN L EERS
HEREENRT MM RBEZRMAEL - H i
I E B IR AR IR R E mn B AR 7 - M
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Adhering to the spirit of Corporate Social Responsibility,
continuing to care for the protection of the planet, giving full play
to building a community and contributing to the community is our
main strategy for achieving sustainable development.

Environmental Protection

We comply with the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the Environmental Protection Tax Law of
the People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations
to properly manage waste gas and greenhouse gas emissions,
sewage and land emissions, and the generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste. The Group’s jewellery processing plant
in Nansha, Guangzhou, passed ISO14001:2004 environmental
management system certification in 2009, and upgraded to
ISO14001:2015 in 2017, in order to continuously improve the
environmental management system in the plant to reduce the
environmental risks of production processes or accidents and
other environmental pollution, and has met the international
professional recognition level.

Exhaust Emission Management

The exhaust emissions from the plant area mainly come from the
processes of welding, grinding, melting, pouring, electroforming,
jewellery cleaning and etc. We have installed the activated carbon
filtration system and the exhaust gas scrubber system to treat the
exhaust gas, and also added alkali solution in the neutralization
tower. Neutral acid mist will not be discharged until it meets the
Ambient Air and Quantity Standards (GB3095-1996). The exhaust
facilities in the production area are regularly cleaned to ensure that
the equipment and piping are kept unblocked. We also carry out
exhaust emission monitoring in accordance with the requirements
of the Ambient Air Quality Monitoring Regulations (Trial) and check
the exhaust gas treatment facilities such as fans and air ducts at
least once a month to ensure the normal operation of the facilities.

Indicator Unit
L - 3]
Total Greenhouse Gas (GHG) tCO2e

_ Emissions (Scope 1k& 2)
REREEGNE (FE1R2)

Direct Emissions (Scope 1) tCO2e
BHEHM (8E) N —E iR EE
Indirect Emissions (Scope 2) tCO2e
RPN (#BE2) N =R =

Total GHG Emissions Intensity
_ (Scope 1 &2)
RERBRAIEMERE (BE1K2)

(Note 1)
NSRS

tCOze/turnover (HKD’000)

RPFCEMGEERBW FEBTRELIL
HEMEEREE BORBELE DRME
AT RS B R ) RS o

BIRGRE

BRPBER (PEARLNERBREL) &
(PEARLFMBERBERER L) SE0ZE
BoUBEBERIEEREL M - STYKE L
WS AEREEREYVNEESIEREZE
BB TR AN B EME D IR I TR
20094 2 5@:B1S014001:2004 R B &I K5 A
B WHR2017EFH 4 A1SO14001 : 2015 5%
ERBEMERANREESE X4 WD E
E T BEENIRERR R EMEIRE
HBEROS R WD BB EE R A KFE -

ERENER
ITHRENEREREBREER TE -Bd-
B8 EE HHEASEIRF RS ALTEE
MERBE RS EE R RS RS R ER IR R
IREAR AN AR R IA P AL T E 5 GRIE
=RESIZ%) (GB3095-1996) I HEHUIZ %1%
TEHEW - EERNERRES FEEETEL
DHEREEMNEERSFGE RMTER GR
BrREsE AR (A7) ) BRETER
HEESR WAL BABRE—ARAK RESE
HIEE SRR TR AMEREB I EiEE-

(F#&L) (MEE1)

Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) (Note 2)
RE (NOx) (HE2)
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) (Note 2)
wma b (SoOx) (MEk2)
Particulate Matter (PM) (Note 2)
BFEERL(PM) (H5E2)

P
P
P

This turnover included the self-operated shops in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China only.

Note 1:

Note 2: During the Reporting Period, the data collection system was further
improved and the disclosure of nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulphur oxides (SOx)

and particulate matter (PM) emissions were newly added.

FY2019 FY2018
2019kt & 201881 &
10,377.89 13,771.25
852.39 1,062.68
9,525.50 12,708.57
0.0009 0.0014
1,876.01 /
3.96 /
130.46 /
MisE : S EEERENES R R E N G %
JEo
MisE2 : AMEHE—SRE T REREN R BIE

TR (NOX) - Fi et (SOx) K87 kL
(PM) BOBE PR S 4R ER
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Sewage Discharge Management

The sewage we produce mainly comes from domestic sewage
(washrooms, general cleaning, canteens, dormitories and etc.)
and production sewage (gypsum wastewater, electroplating
wastewater and etc.), where the gypsum wastewater and the
electroplating wastewater will be processed for reuse. While
gypsum wastewater is treated by the integrated treatment
system, electroplating wastewater is treated by water reuse
system. Part of the treated water by these two systems can be
reused, mainly for toilet flushing and greening. The remaining
concentrated water and domestic sewage which cannot be
reused will be transferred to the underground biochemical pool for
treatment. After meeting the second-level standard of the second
range of the “Water Pollutant Discharge Limit” (DB44/26-2001),
they are discharged through the main drain outlet. Hazardous
wastes such as acid waste liquid, waste light pipe, and solid
waste including gypsum cake, biochemical pool sludge, grease
trap slag, are handled by different qualified recyclers. We prohibit
the discharge of industrial sewage that falls short of relevant
standards in the washrooms and rainwater ditches, and arrange
special personnel to inspect the rainwater ditches of the whole
factory at least once a week, and to inspect the toilets in the
factory from time to time to prevent violations.

Indicator Unit
EF EHf
Sewage Discharge (Note 3) m?
KBRS (HFE3) ST K

Note 3: The figure represented the amount of wastewater discharged from our
jewellery processing plants only. Wastewater generated from our retail
shops and offices in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China was properly
connected and discharged to the communal sewer drainage system. The
FY2018 annual sewage discharge is calculated based on 70% of the water
volume from meter reading. This calculation formula is provided by the
taxation department to calculate the sewage discharge amount of sewage
discharge tax; while the FY2019 annual sewage discharge amount is the
data extracted from online monitoring, which would be relatively accurate.
As such, the data for FY2019 and FY2018 cannot be directly compared.

General Solid Waste Management

The general solid waste we produce includes office waste, waste
generated during the production process, packaging waste,
and general waste that is not classified as chemical hazardous
waste. After proper handling, the solid waste is put into the
standard sorting bins in the factory. After sorting, solid waste will
be collected and recycled by solid waste collectors. Wastes that
can be recycled include PVC rubber, waste paper and packaging
materials, which are stored in a designated location for recycling.
Beside, we have dedicated personnel conduct daily inspection
and cleaning work to ensure that the working rooms are clean
and hygienic. We also promote electronic procedures to reduce
paper consumption.

BB EE
BPEENSKEZREREETSKOEF
M—RER BRE BaEE)REESK
(AEBEK BLEKE) HFREEKNE
SREKEHETRIBUER R - A EREKEIA—
BICRERARIE MESEKESEHKEDA
REEE - EEMERREIREIH/KERD
- EZF AR R AT - Esr T EeE A
BB 7K LA SEST K FE A N AL th BR I8 - 32
B OKSRMEERPRE) (DB44/26-2001) =
B — S (S ABE O BRI - SRR - BE Y
EERBREMEOES £S5 E Rl
BEERE HYWRXBATRAERNLEIREEE -
BOZ IR AEFEERKERERTEZNT
25K ULZHBEABEHRRLOKE— XM
MRAOER R EEBKERA L FH BR
REERBEEE -

FY2019 FY2018
20198t 5F 201881
106,318.00 171,385.00
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Indicator Unit

R B

Total Amount of tonnes
Non-hazardous Waste Produced (Note 4) A

FEsREREZEDRE (H34)

Recycled Waste (Note 4)

B ek EE (i)
Food Waste tonnes
& £ NI
General Industrial Waste tonnes
—RITHEEY NI

Disposed Waste (Note 4)

EREEYME (ME4)
General Industrial Waste tonnes
—RITHEEY NI
Metal tonnes
s NI
Plastic tonnes
BB N
Paper tonnes
4ok N
Other General Waste tonnes
H b EREY) NI

Intensity of Total Amount of tonnes/HK$’ 000
Non-hazardous Waste Produced (Note 4)  AMA /T 7T

MELBEREMRETE (iE4d4)

Note 4: The figure represented the amount of non-hazardous waste generated
from our jewellery processing plants only. The non-hazardous waste
generated from our self-operated shops and offices in Hong Kong, Macau
and Mainland China was handled by property management companies.
The scope of disclosure of the amount of non-hazardous wastes for the
Reporting Period has been expanded, including the newly added amount
of recycled waste and estimation of general refuse, so the data for the
FY2019 and FY2018 cannot be directly compared.

Chemical Hazardous Waste Management

We manage our chemical hazardous wastes in accordance with
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste and
the National Catalogue of Hazardous Wastes. The chemical
hazardous wastes we produce include waste parts/components,
vacant chemical containers, sludge from sewage treatment
systems, waste lubricating grease, waste batteries, waste light
pipes, waste ink cartridges, radioactive waste, concentrated
acid waste solvents, concentrated alkali waste solvent, waste
lubricating oil, waste lubricating coolant, waste paint and grease
produced during cooking. Solid chemical hazardous waste will
be stored in a designated sealed container with a lid. All solid
and liquid chemical hazardous waste storage tanks and storage
areas are appropriately labeled with the types and characteristics
of such chemical hazardous wastes. Radioactive waste is
collected and recycled by the manufacturer. All solid and liquid
chemical hazardous wastes are collected and disposed by
qualified chemical hazardous waste handlers. We also arrange
special personnel to inspect weekly the place where chemical
hazardous waste is stored to ensure proper disposal and storage
of hazardous waste.

FY2019 FY2018
2019t 5 201881 F
526.69 45.32
17.00 /
71.00 /
7.46 0.93

5.53 2.10

0.51 4.81
29.99 37.48
394.70 /
0.000045 0.0000047
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Indicator

EH

Total Amount of Hazardous Waste Generated
(Note 5)

REFEEREEDRS ([H55)

HWO06 Waste Organic Solvent and
Waste Containing Organic Solvent (Note 5)

HWOBPE A 1% B 82 2 5 # A BB ) (Bl 5E5)

HWO08 Waste Mineral Oils and
Waste Containing Mineral Qils (Note 5)
HWOBE i 47 i B2 = & 0 BE ¥ ([t 515)
HW12 Waste Dyes and Paints (Note 5)
HWA12Z K}« &R EEY) (BT 5E5)
HW29 Mercury Wastes (Note 5)
HW292 7k B& ¥ (P 5E5)
HW34 Waste Acid (Note 5)
HW34RE B (FI5E5)
HW35 Waste Alkali (Note 5)
HW35EE 5, (I 2E5)
HW49 Other Waste (Note 5)
HWA9H tth B& 4 (P 5E5)
Intensity of Total Hazardous Waste Generated
(Note 5)
FEEBEREMHEEE (MF5)

Unit
B

tonnes
N

tonnes
N

tonnes
N

tonnes

NI

tonnes

N

tonnes

N

tonnes

NI

tonnes

N
tonnes/HK$’ 000
N FHET

Note 5: The figure represented the amount of hazardous waste generated from
our jewellery processing plants only. No hazardous waste was generated
from our self-operated shops and offices in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China. Breakdown data of the different types of hazardous waste
generated during the Reporting Period were newly disclosed to enhance
the comprehensiveness of data disclosure. In FY2018, waste contractors
recycled a large amount of waste thinner and sanding dust. Only a small
amount of waste thinner was handled by a qualified hazardous waste
recycler. Starting from FY2019, all the waste thinner has been handled by
the qualified hazardous waste recycler, so the total amount of hazardous
waste in FY2019 was nearly three tonnes more than that in FY2018.

Use of Water

The water resources used by the Group were purchased
from local government water supply agencies and property
management companies, so we did not encounter any special
problems in obtaining water sources that is fit for purpose. To
improve water efficiency, the following are examples of our water

saving measures:

° In 2015, the factory newly added an integrated treatment
system for gypsum wastewater, which used the recycled
water for flushing or greening. As the products of the Group
are with exquisite craftsmanship and stringent requirements,
the recycled water would not be reused in production

process.

° For office operations, if any leakage happen to the faucets,

repairment will be carried out in time.

Indicator

g

Total Water Consumption (Note 6)
HBFEKE (KFE6)

Intensity of Total Water Consumption
BREKERE

Unit

- iv]

mS

377K
m%/HK$’000
SRS TFET

Note 6: Some of the Group’s self-operated shops in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China operate in leased spaces. The water supply is controlled by
the property management. The relevant property management considers
that it is not feasible to provide water data or sub-meters to individual
tenants. Therefore, the total water consumption only covers offices and
self-operated shops where the water supply is controlled by the Group. The
relocation of self-operated shops varies from year to year, so the data for

FY2019 and FY2018 cannot be directly compared.

FY2019 FY2018
20198t 201881 ¢
8.42 5.48
4.74 /
0.33 /
0.05 /
0.10 /
0.75 /
2.07 /
0.40 /
0.00000071 0.00000055
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MPRISRER L c AASBNERBIEE TE
EmkHTEENRS  WERKITER
ANEEMFA-
s MAFEZET M MBBEIKFEBRKIE
WG R EITHES -
FY2019 FY2018
2019R4 £ 201881 &
369,096.09 209,798.00
0.031 0.021
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Energy Use

Our energy use includes electricity, vehicle-use diesel and petrol,
as well as factory-use natural gas. To reduce electricity use, we
carry out initiative such as encouraging turning off computers and
other devices during non-use period; trying to use batteries that
are rechargeable or mercury-free; making use of a glass ceiling
to maximise natural lighting instead of electric lights in the office
building of the factory area and etc.

REREH

HPIEERERRIEE S - BRESHARME -

ARTHEAORAR - BT RDENER

HPIBREREVHE S P20 - Sx B FEE RS RARAE
MERF BECAYREANBKENTE
T TR B R IR IR B R AT &
ENARARAUREERERS -

Glass ceiling design is adopted to maximise natural lighting in the

office building of the factory area.

THReHNBERRBIAR R FENARALL-
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Indicator Unit

g B

Total Energy Use MWh

R IR1E B FEF R
Intensity of Total Energy MWh/HK$’ 000
BREREE FTERFRETFET
Direct Energy MWh

HERER FEF
Unleaded Petrol MWh

i3S D T8 F FL &

Diesel Ol MWh

£ 5h FEF B 6

Natural Gas MWh

RAR, FEF B
Intensity of Direct Energy MWh/HK$’ 000
BEREREE FEFERTFTHET

Indirect Energy — Purchase Electricity (Note 7) MWh

BEeER —BEE N (M7 T8 F FL B
Intensity of Indirect Energy kWh/HK$’ 000
MEEREE FEK,FET

Note 7: The Group’s self-operated shops in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland

China operate in leased spaces. The power supply is controlled by the
property management. Some of the relevant property management
considers that it is not practicable to provide electricity data or sub-meters
to individual tenants. Therefore, the total electricity consumption only covers
offices and self-operated shops where electricity supply data are available
to the Group. The relocation of self-operated shops varies from year to
year, so the data for FY2019 and FY2018 cannot be directly compared.

Other Resources Conservation

When cutting materials, materials in the most suitable size
should be selected to reduce wastage;

Appropriate amount of solvents/cleaners should be used to
reduce unnecessary waste;

When using packing materials for packaging, recycled
waste paper and recycled bubble wrap should be adopted

as much as possible;

Carton, plastic bags, and stone-filled plastic boxes should
be recycled as much as possible until they are scrapped;

Encouraging the use of electronic communications to
replace paper documents;

Encouraging the conservation of toilet paper; and

Encouraging double-sided printing instead of single-sided
printing.

BaET -

FY2019 FY2018
201984 201881
20,386.53 20,283.36
1.73 2.04
3,433.16 3,374.73
398.82 589.35
1,019.46 906.66
2,014.87 1,878.72
0.29 0.34
16,952.37 16,908.63
1.44 1.70
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Indicator Unit

g B

Total Amount of Packaging Materials Used in  tonnes
Finished Products (Note 8) NI

SR mrABREMENEE (HiEs)

Intensity of Packaging Materials tonnes/HK$'000
Used in Finished Products AMEFAET

S TR BEM B EE

Note 8: The scope of disclosure of the amount of packaging materials for the
Reporting Period has been expanded, including the newly added amount
of packaging materials including jewellery boxes, hand-held paper bags,
certificate holders, carton boxes, plastic bags and etc. consumed by our
jewellery processing plants, so the data for FY2019 and FY2018 cannot be
directly compared.

Taking part in the “Charter on External Lighting” not only saves
us electricity costs, but also reduces energy consumption during
non-business hours. During the Reporting Period, we were
awarded the “Gold Award” in the “Charter on External Lighting
Award Scheme” by the Environment Bureau of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region to recognise our contribution to
reducing energy consumption and light nuisance.

Since 2015, we have joined hands with non-governmental
organisations to promote the “Bring Your Own Bag” campaign at
our retail outlets to improve local waste reduction. In FY2019, all
fees charged for plastic shopping bags were donated to Green
Power. At the same time, we have launched several activities
within the Group, including recycling and reusing of red packets,
to enhance employees’ environmental awareness.

Corporate Citizenship

As a socially responsible company, the Group actively involves
in community investment projects. We are devoted in four major
areas by means of donation and volunteer activities, which
comprise protecting the environment, caring for community
charity and health, supporting local art and culture, and
supporting young talents. In addition, we have established
the Lukfook Volunteer Team to not only create a sense of
cohesiveness and belonging, but also encourage employees to
participate in volunteer activities to contribute to the community.

FY2019 FY2018
201984 5 201881 4F
306.52 171.02
0.000026 0.000017
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Ranked among the top three in the “Oxfam Rice
Event” for nine consecutive years

ERNFREREXBEXTDIZ=RZY

The Group won the second runner up of the
“Ordering Oxfam Rice (Organization Category)” in the
“Oxfam Rice Event 2018” to recognise the Group’s
active participation in the “Oxfam Rice Event” and
fundraising for the “Oxfam Smallholder Farmers
Development Fund”. The funds raised would be used
to support global poor small-scale farmers, helping
them to improve their lives, escape poverty and stay
independent.

NEER [LEHRZ B ATTEI2018] R 5R7E [ S 88ET K
(BB EFERIFTE URBASEEG2E [
KEBBEATH] RINRERES]IEX MEGHIK
BHRANEEHRERN/NEF BB FIE R
BB -

Support for “2017/2018 Community Chest Walk for
Millions”

X#[2017/2018FE LA RSB HEIT]

The Group has been supporting and participating in “The
Community Chest Walk for Millions” fundraising event
organised by the Community Chest of Hong Kong to help
more people in need in the society to improve their living
environment.
AEEZFR-—EXHR2ETELRERN[AR5EH
BITI&FEY UEBHE L ELAFTEATHEHEER
5 o
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Donated a total of HK$2.2 million to support the
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
HRX220EBETIRRE= R

The Group has been enthusiastic about charity for many
years. During the Reporting Period, we donated a total
of HK$2.2 milion to support the Hong Kong charity
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals. In the “Tung Wah Charity
Gala 2018” charity night, we donated HK$1 million to
assist the various services of the hospital. Meanwhile,
we sponsored the “Circus in Wonderland” of Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals’ 148th Charity Dinner, donating
HK$1.2 million to support the hospital’s hot food
support service.

REBEZFERRO AN WE R HP—HBE220
BATIBABRESHBRE= ] HPp [BEm=E
#2018 BEM TR BI1008 BT Ui Z S B
fR7% - RREAER) [RE=[T148FFEEHRE [ AL
BEE] ] BRI1208 B T FHZR AR IERS -

The Group was once again awarded the “Hong Kong
Outstanding Corporate Citizenship Logo” with a special
mention for community care

FEEREREFEMRHCRLARENTE ] R® [EHRT
B | BISHIEET s

The Group has attained the “Hong Kong Outstanding

Corporate Citizenship Logo” in the Enterprise Category, with

a special mention for community care in “The 9th Hong Kong
Outstanding Corporate Citizenship Award”, in recognition of e
the Group’s devoted efforts in serving the community in need,

organising activities to promote a caring society as well as
encouraging employees to participate in volunteer work.
AEERENETBALORARE| P EBRECEAERND
[BBGLECERAREFER] U EL S HEESR

B URBAEEELESRENMR BREHHERE gL PO
HES EMITEE TR BB TEFERELOEH- G e e

RMAERAREE ML RN
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“Lukfook” is a “Household” brand. The Group is determined to H_\?EJ =—EIAR] @R RNEBTRES
give employees a homey feeling. Based upon our management —EXRKEE -KPIUTABE MEBE -
philosophy of “People Focus, Value for Harmony, and Results xJU%f‘EJ WEBES BYANBARE #§E
Orientation”, we have established the Lukfook family and RE|IMESEEEE T ER-

extended the concept of “Love is Beauty” to our staff.

A large birthday party is held every month in Luk Luk Fook Jewellery Park held a commendation
Fook Jewellery Park. ceremony to recognise outstanding employees.
NEKREETARTARERIRE - RNEREERTREAGREGRAGENET -

LUK PFOOH SROUR

. 2{1‘19‘= SRR
-F <

Apart from expressing gratitude to our employees for
their hard work in the past year, the Group also grants
awards to the long-serving employees and branches
with outstanding performance in the annual dinners.
RT BB - RETAEFROG N AEETR
FEEFHEENRARBEIULRERLEEN D
TTAR B HEIE o
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FBEH
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BRERERE S HNESES BRWEESHESHEE
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The Group’s series of employment policies are in compliance
with the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Labor Contract Law of the People’'s Republic of China and
the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong. We sign labor/
employment contracts with new recruits from all over the country,
and we distribute a staff handbook to each employee, which
provides detailed rules on employment rules, salary allowances,

AEE-ZINMWAZREBHEER (FEAR
HKMBEEEHE) (FEARRNBELEHEE
B "B CRRIRE) FEODEMR - HfIE
BHHABRBTRSY REAR LEM
BUEBTRZEETFM EPHEERAR &
R BRE B EBHE I EAEL AR
EMERHBELLEEBBRESTABNE

holidays, benefits, attendance and etc., and notify them through fz& T °
official notice in case of any update.

Salary
b |

Termination of
Employment
Contract

RIEERS®H

Recruitment

Promotion

BH

Remuneration packages are based on employee responsibilities, performance
and results contributions, as well as personal professional and managerial skills.
As stated in the Employee Handbook, employees are assessed annually and
given reasonable returns based on individual performance and contribution to the
development of the Group. The management will also review and approve the
remuneration policy on a regular basis with reference to similar market levels to
ensure fair returns and remuneration for employees.

FNEEDERETIRE RERFEFEMUARBAZEREERENMIE a0
BEFMAE BFEHSHE THELTE UREEAAXREREAESEERNE
B TEEE®R - ERENGTEMHLERAETIHKTE SR REMF B
MR/ 8 TR it 22 1 [0 Sy K2 e B o

Exit interviews will be arranged for the leavers. If the reason for resignation involves
working areas or time issues, we will try our best to arrange for the transfer to retain
talents.

BEBOE TS WRLHBREA WEERREY K EIhEEREE RMAeH
SRHABAEBEAL -

We recruit employees mainly through the Group’s official website, intranet,
headhunting companies, newspapers, direct applications, and internal referrals.
BMEZEEBAEEETH NBE BEAQR - WK EHEERF NHHERS
BEET-

The Group’s promotion policy is based on the employee’s performance,
academic qualifications, and rewards and punishments record. The annual year-
end assessment determines the employee’s promotion opportunities. Those who
perform well can be promoted after approval by the management.
AEBZEABRRRNEE 2 TERR  BF BEALFEAEL REBFEFRKRT
BRTEEEBZEAKG RERITELEERBEHBBERAIEE -

Annual Report 2018/19 E#i



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B LG R EARE

Working Hours
TR

Rest Periods

Equal Opportunity,
Diversity and Anti-
discrimination

TSR STILRR
% iR

Other Benefits and
Welfare

Hft 7538 R #E ¥

Child Labour or
Forced Labour

ETSHEHAST

The working hours of the staff are determined by the company to which they are
appointed and will be prescribed in the employment contract, but the Group has
the right to make working hours changes in response to the needs of the job.

BT v TERMRMEZIRZFABARIME  WENERESHGIRA EASEG#
HEIEFEMED TERMER-

Rest periods include paid holidays, paternity leave, maternity leave, marriage leave
and compassionate leave.

BRHEFEEFRE FER ER BREEME -

As an equal opportunity employer, the Group adopts the individual talents of job
applicants as the principle of selection and is not affected by any gender, age,
disability, family position, ethnicity and religious differences.

ERTERESRET AEEUBLRBENEAL EAERRA TR EME T
Al Fie B RERMMU BRMRAEEFMTE-

Medical insurance and retirement plans, employee discounts, and performance-
linked rewards and bonuses. Retail employees also enjoy meal subsidies, bonuses
and other rewards.

EERBRRERRAGTE EIRNURRREARERIEL-ZTEET
i BEREMES -

BTHE

The Group adopts a zero-tolerance attitude towards child labour or forced
labour, while strictly abiding by the major human rights declaration. We establish
procedures in accordance with relevant national and local laws, regulations and
international standards to ensure that the recruitment process and daily operations
comply with relevant standards.

AEBEHET YRGS TIRMERZEE ARERETEZEAET S - KR
Fm@l%&mﬁﬁé RO BB ERER Y BERR  RRBERERAEE

B HEEER -
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Staff Training

We believe that human capital is critical to the Group’s future
growth. With the rapid development of today’s technology,
the Group is committed to providing training and development
programmes for its employees to help them upgrade their
knowledge and skills and cope with the challenges and
competition brought about by the ever-changing era. The
Group attaches great importance to the professional knowledge
and personal development space of the staff. The Group has
established a comprehensive training system and assessment
criteria, covering theory, sales skills, product knowledge, and
personal character courses to ensure that employees have
equipped themselves with professionalism and adaptability. In
addition to the Hong Kong headquarters, the Group has set up
district training centres in four areas including Beijing, Shanghai,
Wuhan and Nansha to provide tailor-made training courses to
ensure the continuous development of employees’ personal
expertise in a rapidly changing world. In addition to internal
training, the Group also provides training in collaboration with
a number of external professional bodies, including the “Jade
Product Knowledge Training Course” in collaboration with the
H.K. Institute of Gemmology and the “China GTC Diamond
and Jade Inspector Certificate Course” in collaboration with
the Guangdong Province Jewellery and Precious Metal Testing
Centre. We also sponsor our employees to enroll in the “Diamond
Diploma Programme” by the Gemological Institute of America
(GIA).

Major Training Content

FEBNAE

Staff Category
AFAER

Frontline Shop Staff

AT 153l
BFEEANERGAERERRERERE
Z-EZRSPMBRER—BTE AEEHD
AETRHEEIIMER S HB) 8 TR M
A AN BE DA Ko FE A< Bt B8 B2 iy (7 2R 2 B B A
BE-ARETERE IMEXMABLEA
BRZER ARERITEHIGIERERE
Al BiEmwm HERI EmAH - LEFEA®
RREHERE  UWERETABERKER
BN - BRBBEMEEIN AREDRIR
- B BUZ R Y MM R R D R
AL REE S RAEIRE RERET
BEAZR HAEER S BE O RIS ARESR
FoBR T MEFIISN AEE RS EINEEE
ERBAFRAE) BRETASRESRE
TER [SBEREMABIFII] BEREKRER
E2BROAP LA EN [HEGTCEA KIER
BREEFERZ REAPETIHREXHNELS
BT (GIA) [ &R XURRIZ] -

Jewellery product knowledge, customer service, store management and

KEEMAHM BERY EHEELREER

RRESEERET service management
Factory Worker
IWAT TERMEBELZ S RER

Directors and Senior

Craftsmanship and occupational safety and health

Leadership development, corporate governance practices and legal and

Executives regulatory updates
EFERERITHEEAR RETRER CREQEO RERERE N
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Beijing Training Centre
L FIFF

Wuhan Training Centre

BRI

Nansha Training Centre .\

e

Shanghai Training Centre
AL

Hong Kong
BBHEE

Headquarters

S AR

2018 Lukfook Management Training Camp (South China)
2018 R EREREGMEIIRE (EFR)
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Continuation of the Story of Beauty

EMxERSE

The jewellery industry is a traditional industry. It is an industry that combines creativity, craftsmanship and beauty.
Every piece of jewellery carries its own unique story and personality. In the past, it was the actual work experience
that counted. Therefore, many senior employees who have no academic qualifications started their career from
junior positions. However, with the progress of time, the Group’s branches have increased day by day, attracting
younger generations to enter the industry. In addition to retail experience, it has also begun to pursue academic
qualifications. At the same time, jewellery is a luxury consumer goods. Customers expect to buy products with
guaranteed quality. Therefore, customers have very strict requirements on quality standards and process quality.
We expect sales staff to introduce products in a detailed, careful and patient manner. In addition, in recent years,
growing attention has been paid to consumer rights. Good customer service and offering professional jewellery
knowledge to customers are often the key to success.

As a result, the Group has always attached great importance to staff development by provision of different types
of training courses, such as orientation classes, product knowledge, customer service, shop management and
service management workshops, jewellery knowledge courses, and other courses for staff. Mainland China staff
can also log in and attend online training through the “Jewellery V Course” mobile application. Through professional
training, we ensure that our employees are professional and adaptable, allowing them to broaden their horizons.

KRETEREEEHRTE AHESRARE T2EXRNTE B HKER
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MEMFRRVEREEE LD RFNWBETRGMASBEREEXRENHEET
ERBIHRE -
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Occupational Health and Safety

Lukfook believes that occupational health and safety is not only
one of the core principles of the Group, but also our commitment
to every employee.

We comply with the Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases and the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance of Hong Kong and
other laws and regulations. The Group’s jewellery processing
plant in Nansha, Guangzhou has established a security
department, and the factory has security inspection throughout
the day. The Group also regularly organises fire drills at local
administrative centres to prevent/eliminate potential safety
hazards in a timely manner. The Group will also purchase work-
related injury insurance for employees in different regions and
provide protective equipment such as masks and gloves for
employees in special positions.

Office and Retail Shop

We have established occupational safety codes for our offices
and retail outlets to provide guidelines in areas of indoor air quality
and ventilation, electrical safety, fire-fighting equipment, inclement
weather, hygiene and personal habits, prevention of tripping,
slipping and bruising, proper handling posture, computer display
on the setting and arrangement of screen equipment, office
furniture and etc., to ensure that employees work in a safe and
comfortable environment.

REBRERRZ2
NEAE BEREELZETERASENZ
DRAZ — RREFIHE —RERARE-

AR (hEARKMBERZZ2EER) ~(F
FEARANMBBER QX)) REE (BEL
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FAYMIRE M IR E R ZREFT - REE2X
REGBLZRABKE  NEEL S EHNEH
TP OLBHEBOREE - MBI, OBk
REEHRE - AEENTEATHMETREET
BRE UREABUNEIRERE -FE
EhHEIA-

MAERSEE
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HRE  BHRR BEREABE A
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Factory

We provide regular occupational health training for pre-
employment and on-the-job training for our employees in the
factory, publicise occupational health knowledge, urge employees
to follow occupational disease prevention laws, regulations
and operational procedures, and guide employees to correctly
use occupational disease prevention equipment and personal
occupational protective equipment to avoid accidents. We carry
out regular maintenance, overhaul and repair for occupational
hazard protection facilities and emergency rescue facilities, and
regularly check their performance to ensure that they are in good
conditions. We prohibit the use of protective equipment that does
not meet national standards, industry standards, or has expired,
and will promptly repair if it is found to have abnormal conditions.
We also engage externally qualified institutions to conduct regular
occupational hazards and disease risk assessments on factories
to ensure that occupational safety hazards in the workplace can
be detected and improved in a timely manner.

Internal Regular
Guidelines Training
W EB+E 5l £ BRI

Supply Chain Management

The Group has established a fair and rigorous supplier
management system with integrity. When a third party applies to
become a long-term commodity/service provider of the Group,
it must first complete the Supplier Application Form to provide
relevant information and make a declaration of interest. It is also
required to sign a Supplier Agreement with the Group to commit
to complying with a series of supplier policies of the Group if the
Group finally accepts the application. The relevant departments
of the Group’s procurement, quality inspection and appraisal will
regularly check whether the suppliers’ goods/services meet the
Group and local government standards.

I
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Continuous Timely
Monitoring Improvement
FEER REHE

frERER
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Selection Process

We have established a comprehensive procurement process and
a systematic process to require any potential new suppliers or
sub-contractors to be evaluated before they become qualified
suppliers and sub-contractors approved by the Group. In
addition, the Group has established strict tendering guidelines.
All approved suppliers and sub-contractors are subject to the
Group’s internal approval procedures. They also need to sign
a Supplier Agreement to ensure that the products and services
provided are in compliance with the standards. We conduct
regular inspections and assessments for continuous monitoring.

In order to manage the environmental and social risks of the
supply chain, in addition to quality and price, the performance of
Corporate Social Responsibility is also an important consideration
in the process of selecting suppliers. According to our internal
Environmental Procurement Guideline, the 4R principle of
“Reduce, Reuse, Recycle and Renew” should be implemented
throughout the life of the products we purchased. We also give
priority to non-allergic, energy-saving and durable materials during
the selection process.

Anti-corruption

We follow the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China
and the Hong Kong Prevention of Bribery Ordinance and other
regulations, and distribute employee handbooks and notices
issued irregularly (such as on the eve of the festival) to each
employee to clearly explain the policy regarding the acceptance
of benefits between them and suppliers/partners. Whenever the
Group signs a contract with the trading party, they are required
1o sign the attached set of Clean Trading Policy set by the Group
which details the Group’s integrity code and whistleblowing
methods.

Grievance Mechanism

If employees encounter unequal treatment in their daily work
or find other employees’ inappropriate behavior, they can
directly appeal to the Group by email, telephone or face-to-face
conversation, and the Group will keep confidential to protect the
whistle-blower.
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG ESG

REPORTING GUIDE INDEX

FRBIMER HERELSHEESIRSI

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI

TERB EED —RESRMERNER

Section/Disclosure

B HE

Policy/Procedure

BE/BF

A. Environmental
A BIR

Aspect A1: Emissions

EBEA1 : 5

KPI A1.1
BREWIRIEALA

KPI A1.2
BREBIEREAL2

KPIA1.3
BRENIRRALS

KPI A1.4
R EMIEIEA14

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.

—RIRE

BHEROREREBHR KR

TR BEREZEEYN

EEEN:

@ BXR: Kk
b) BFHETABERFEME
BEERBAMINES -

The types of emissions and
respective emissions data.

SRR R AR EE -

Greenhouse gas emissions in total
(in tonnes) and intensity.
RERBEHNE (URHHE)
&z [t? o

Total hazardous waste produced
(in tonnes) and intensity.
FELEEEENRE (VARREE
B)RERE -

Total non-hazardous waste
produced (in tonnes) and intensity.
FrESXREEEYESE (LR
EIREE-

Air Emission Management

Guideline

R ERES

SOI.ld Waste HEEEIEL Environmental Protection

Guideline S

g s b i&ﬁ{%%

EEMEERED

Wastewater Emission Management

Guideline

KRB BB 5
Exhaust Emission

/ Management
FERBEE R
Exhaust Emission

/ Management
BEREERER
Chemical Hazardous Waste

/ Management
tEmEkENER
General Solid Waste

/ Management

—RERENER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B LG R EARE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI

TERB EE —REERMABANESR

KPI A1.5
BREMIERALS

KPIA1.6
BBAMIERALG

Aspect A2: Use of
Resources

BEA2 : RiRER

KPI A2.1
B EIRIRA.1

KPI A2.2
BSEMIERA2.2

KPI A2.3

BREBMIRIZA2.3

KPI A2.4
SRR RAL.4

KPI A2.5
RS EMIERALS

Description of measures to mitigate
emissions and results achieved.

$e URUE B RS BV 1 i e PG AX
8o

Description of how hazardous
and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, reduction initiatives and
results achieved.
HREEEEREEEENNA
EORBEEEENEERTEK
=I®

General Disclosure

Poalicies on the efficient use of
resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials

—REE

BRERER (BREER KA
hIRMEL) BIBR o

Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type in total and
intensity.
REREIDMER R/ REEER
BREREE-

Water consumption in total and
intensity.
BRKEREE -

Description of energy use efficiency
initiatives and results achieved.

13 B2 VR 50 A A T B R PR K
=19

Description of whether there is any
issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency initiatives
and results achieved.

i it SKEUE /KO AT 8 fEfal
B AREFA Rz ERAE
e

Total packaging material used for
finished products (in tonnes), and

if applicable, with reference to per
unit produced.

SR BREMRNEE (M
M8 REEEEMGE-

Policy/Procedure

BE/BF

~

Green Office Guideline

B AES
Environmental Procurement
Guideline

RREEE TEES

Office and Workshop General
Operation Guideline
BAER TS —MEERS

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S

Section/Disclosure

W BE

Environmental Protection
RERE

Chemical Hazardous Waste
Management
FEERENER
General Solid Waste
Management

—fREBENERE

Energy Use
SR A

Use of Water
KA R{E A

Energy Use
BeIREE A

Use of Water

KERER

Energy Use
B IR {2 A

Use of Water
KE R A

Other Resources
Conservation

HHEMER



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R g RERAWRE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI

TERB EE —REERMABANESR

Aspect A3: The
Environment and Natural
Resources

EBEA3 :BRRXARE

KPI A3.1
RS AR IERAS

General Disclosure

Policies on minimizing the

issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.
—MREE
RIREITAHRIERRABREK
BERYENHE -

Description of the significant
impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources
and the actions taken to manage
them.

W EBEDHBRERRAE RN
BAYERERDERERTEN
18-

Employment and Labour Practices

BRESIER

Aspect B1: Employment
BEB1 : B

KPI B1.1
AR A

KPI B1.2
AR E1RB1.2

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and
welfare.

—MRHE

BERTMRmE BEREA T

1ERF S R TEHE St

[R5 A B B A A5 38 SR AR 9 -

@) BE: R

b) BFHETABERZEMME
ERBIImER.

Total workforce by gender,
employment type, age group and
geographical region.

RIER EREEE  FRAERN R
RESHIEEBE-

Employee turnover rate by gender,
age group and geographical
region.

RIS FRAR R EE 5 E
BRAKLL R

Policy/Procedure

BE/BF

Same as the above
[t

Staff Handbook
EEFM

Section/Disclosure

W BE

Environmental Protection
RIERE

Environmental Protection
RIGIRE

To Employees: Lukfook
Family
HET NEARE

To Employees: Lukfook
Family
HET: NEBAKE

To be disclosed in future ESG
report.
HEIRARARE HER

ERRENE-
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B LG R EARE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI

TERB EE —REERMABANESR

Aspect B2: Health and
Safety
[EBmB2 - REHRRZ2

KPI B2.1
RS IR 15 1RB2.1

KPI B2.2
PRI IEB2.2

KPI B2.3
RS IR E1RB2.3

Aspect B3: Development
and Training
[BMEB3 - R RIEH

KPI B3.1
BASE WIE1RBA.1

KPIB3.2
RS AMIERB3.2

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have
a significant impact on the
issuer relating to providing a
safe working environment and
protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

—RIRE

ARt e2 TERERRERES
BEBEUBEZN:

@ B®R: K&

b) EBTHETABEATZENN
BEERADINGER-

Number and rate of work-related
fatalities.
B TR MSL T8 A B Rt K o

Lost days due to work injury.

BAIBRAIERE-

Description of occupational health
and safety measures adopted,
how they are implemented and
monitored.
BRI B R RER 2
16 VA RAERRBAT R EER T -

General Disclosure

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work.
Description of training

activities.

—RIRE
BRRMEERITLIEREMAH
KRB RV EUR - IR R E -

The percentage of employees
trained by gender and employee
category (e.g. senior management,
middle management).
RIRI R ESER (1
B TREBES)ES
BAM-

The average training hours
completed per employee by
gender and employee category.
RURIREEERNES BEEER
EEE:0RB A3 I

RRER
D)3

Policy/Procedure

BE/BF

Occupational Health and Safety
Guideline for Office and Retail
Shop

ﬁ#/'\rﬁ'

155l

TEENBERELL 2

Staff Handbook
EEFM

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S

Section/Disclosure

W BE

Occupational Health and
Safety
BERERRZZ2

During the Reporting Period,
we are not aware of any case
of work-related fatalities.
ARERIRE MEEMT
EBEMILTHER

To be disclosed in future ESG
report.
ﬁ%#*%m%ﬁxﬁ@&

E‘. A #&iﬁﬂﬁ °

Occupational Health and
Safety
BEERRZZ

Staff Training
A

To be disclosed in future ESG
report.
FEIRARREIRE B8R

ERMERE-

To be disclosed in future ESG
report.
RN ARRERIE - HE R

EAREHE -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R g RERAWRE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI

TERB EE —REERMABANESR

Aspect B4: Labour
Standards
[BmB4 : % T 4RI

KPI B4.1
BRI 1R 1RB4.1

KPI B4.2
AR ENIRIRB4.2

Operating Practices

EERA

Aspect B5: Supply Chain
Management

[BmEB5 : EREE

KPI B5.1
RS AR 1R 1RB5.1

KPI B5.2
BRs IR A1E1RBE.2

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and
forced labour.

—REE

BEEMEETSGEHSTH:

(@) BE: R

b) BFHBTABEAZENN
BEERADINES -

Description of measures to review
employment practices to avoid
child and forced labour.

g IS flmE AR B
IREHSET

Description of steps taken to
eliminate such practices when
discovered.
HAEERERBERSERERE
SUPTERER A 5 8 o

General Disclosure

Policies on managing
environmental and social risks of
the supply chain.

— B 5
ERHEENRE R SRBE
o

Number of suppliers by
geographical region.

RiEE N NHRERHRE -

Description of practices relating

to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are
being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

it e REAMEROEN mE
WTEREDINHEREE AR
ARABONRITRER L.

Policy/Procedure

BE/BF

Staff Handbook
EEFM

Corruption Prevention Policy
RERHHE

Engineering and Operation of
Goods Approval Process
IRREEDmERRE
Financial Authorization and Signing
Approval Procedure
IBEERERET 2 EHHAT

Section/Disclosure

W BE

To Employees: Lukfook
Family
HET: "BARE

To be disclosed in future ESG
report.
HEIRARARE B R

ERBERE-

To be disclosed in future ESG
report.
FPEIRNARIREIRIE - HE R

ERRERE-

Supply Chain Management
fHIERER

To be disclosed in future ESG
report.
HEIRARREIRE B8R

ERRERE-

To be disclosed in future ESG
report.
HEIRAREIRE B8R

ERRENE-
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B LG R EARE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI

TERB EE —REERMABANESR

Aspect B6: Product
Responsibility
[BimB6 - EREE

KPI B6.1
RS AR 1E15B6.1

KPI B6.2
BRS IR 1A 15B6.2

KPI B6.3
BAS AR 15 1RB6.3

KPI B6.4
RS AR 1a1RB6.4

KPI B6.5
RS IR B 15 1RB6.5

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have
a significant impact on the
issuer relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating
to products and services
provided and methods of
redress.

—REE

BHREER RSN ERE
2 BE BZERLBEEURE

HE&W

@ BE: Rk

(b) E?%%ﬁAﬁﬁkwamﬁ
BERRAGINEE

Percentage of total products sold
or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons.
EESEEXEREHTRLSHE
BREHmMARKNE DL -

Number of products and service
related complaints received and
how they are dealt with.
BN E G KRB HIRETEE M
NS %

Description of practices relating

to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

it BEE RSN ERE BN
18-

Description of quality assurance
process and recall procedures.
BilE ST B2 RERLDKE
o

Description of consumer data
protection and privacy policies,
how they are implemented and
monitored.
HIUHB A SRERFLBER
RAERITRER .

Policy/Procedure

BE/BF

Integrated Manual

A T

Customer Complaint
Handling Procedure

BERFRERR

Customer Complaint
Handling Procedure

BERFRERF

Privacy Policy

MR

Section/Disclosure

W BE

To Customers:
Six Heartfelt Services

HER SO RS

To be disclosed in future ESG
report.
HEIRARARE HER
BARERE-

To be disclosed in future ESG
report.
HEIRARARE B8R

ERBENE-

Intellectual Property Right
Protection

ABEREE

Product Quality Assurance
EnEERE

Customer Privacy Protection
BERLERE



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R g RERAWRE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI

TERB EE —REERMABANESR

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7 : RAB

KPI B7.1
BRI K 15 1RBT 1

KPI B7.2
MR EMIEERT .2

Community

itE

Aspect B8: Community
Investment

[BEBS ‘it E# &

KPI B8.1
BASA WIE1RBS.1

KPI B8.2
FRs IR 1E15B8.2

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.

—REE

BEM LR PR BEFRER

B

@) BE: R

b) BETHETABEATZEZHNE
BEERADINGES -

Number of concluded legal

cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the
cases.
RERPRNEEITASEES R
WEEENESHARMNEE R
FEAEER o

Description of preventive measures
and whistle-blowing procedures,
how they are implemented and
monitored.

f By Ea e S B AR - AR
BRTRERE A

General Disclosure

Policies on community
engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where
the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration
the communities’ interests.
—REE

BEA [ 2 B R R B P A
BRENBREEBTDEZEMT
&R H K

Focus areas of contribution.
HraREE-

Resources contributed to the focus
area.

EEIRREMBAER-

Policy/Procedure

BE/BF

Staff Handbook

EETM

Corruption Prevention Policy
REZZSHBEK

We are in the process of setting up
the community investment policies.
BB EREH R &REBOR -

Section/Disclosure

W BE

Anti-corruption
k&S

The Group is not aware of
any concluded legal cases
regarding corruption practices
brought against the Group

or our employees during the
Reporting Period.

AEE W RAERRE D
BEMHAEERHFNE
IREVEFENEFFA

Rfte

Anti-corruption
R&A

Corporate Citizenship
TrERR

Corporate Citizenship
TrERR

Corporate Citizenship

LERR
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
RERRE

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
AND BOARD COMMITTEES
EFEEREEZRENHRE

* Executive Director 117 # %
# Non-executive Director JE$/TE %
A Independent Non-executive Director J& 7 JE#11TE# 5
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Al A N/
PEEIRRSE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) recognises that sound and effective
corporate governance practices and procedures, with an
emphasis on integrity, transparency, accountability and
independence, are essential to enhance the shareholders’ value
and safeguard the shareholders’ interest. The Company is
committed to maintaining a good corporate governance standard
and endeavours to ensure that its businesses are conducted in
accordance with all applicable rules and regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

Shareholders
BER
External Auditor
SNEEZBED

AEEE (B ARQR ([ARAR]  ERE
MERR sl [AEEEEE ([EFE])
R AR ERE MEMLBYE
ZERT REMERZEEERERNIERF
HREABRREERFRERRERBRER K
NAFHERS RIFEEERRE  WHAOBRE
RRMAERRR KR OIETER-

EREQRN

The Company

AT
R L \\
14 \
] )
! Chairman :
I =E I
i i
1 1
1 1
1 1
! Risk Management 1
1 Committee Company Secretary i
i EREEZES ATIE !
i i
1 1
i i
. Audit Committee |
: EREER :
i i
1 1
1 1
1 1
1 1
1 1
: Remuneration Committee Board of Directors :
I FMEES EEg I
: i
1 1
1 1
1 1
1 1
1 1
! Nomination Committee '
! REEEe :
i ;
1 1
1 1
1 1
i Management i
| EEE i
\ 1

e e e e e e e e e e
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The Company has applied the principles and complied with all
code provisions and, where applicable, the recommended best
practices of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) through the year ended 31 March 2019, except for
the following deviation:

Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual, so that there is a clear division
of responsibilities for the management of the Board and the
day-to-day management of the Group’s business to ensure a
balance of power and authority.

In view of the increasing trend of business deriving from the
Mainland China market, it is believed that Mr. WONG Wai Sheung
being the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
will further enhance the business development of the Group in the
Mainland China market due to the norms in the Mainland China
market on “status parity” when future business negotiations are
conducted in Mainland China. Besides, members of the Board
also include qualified professionals and other prominent and
experienced individuals from our community. The Board considers
that the existing Board composition, with the support of Board
Committees and two Deputy Chairmen, can ensure a balance
of power and authority. The Board will nevertheless review this
structure from time to time and will consider the segregation of
the two roles at the appropriate time.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors is aware of any
information that would reasonably indicate that the Company is
not, or was not for any part of the year ended 31 March 2019, in
compliance with the CG Code.

RELZ2019F3A31H L FE AR FEHA
ERBARSHIAERAE ([BRXAT])FEH L
TRAN (T EWRA) M4z CREER
SR R AEERTE) ([EERTAL)
RRA WEBTHAE TR RERZRESR
BOWEA)  HTIIREEERRIN

FAEXEA2IERETFETRERNAR
EEED Y AEH—-ARRRE FEZES
BRAREEREXGERCBMEFREE D
IAREIRME N MK 2 F 1 o

HRFERETmESHEHERLERPEA
i [HEER] 2B REBLEER
ARBEFERITBARE T ERARKEFTERA
WETEBERR - SRALNKEED
NHENEFRER LI EFEKRETE

ZEMNAL - EFERR REFEETZRER
ERMEREIEZHY T REEFTS 2HEK
ARERENMEEZ FE-BENIL T8
AR R LR U REE R R ZEREW
B

B EXBEEIN EEHAANBEERELSA

LFETAEREEERDEEART -
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The Company adopts the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of
all directors, it is confirmed that all directors have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and its code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions during the
year ended 31 March 2019.

@

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises six executive directors,
four non-executive directors and five independent non-
executive directors. They include persons with a wealth of
practical experiences in the jewellery industry, accountancy
profession, general trading, securities industry, banking
industry and legal profession. There is a balance of skills
and experiences appropriate for the requirements of the
Company’s business. The composition of our Board
complies with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules. The current composition of the Board is set out as
follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung
(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen (Deputy Chairman)
Ms. WONG Hau Yeung
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy
Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping
Dr. CHAN So Kuen

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny (Deputy Chairman)
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP

Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP

Mr. HUI King Wai

The biographical details of the directors are set out in the
section of “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 106 to 117 of this Annual Report.

RABERM ETARAIKER10FH 2 (e
TAZEBRITEFRIZNEZESTA) ([1ZESF
) EAESETESRZIRTEN K
MEREEENARENRE REER 28
BEENHE2019F3A3HILFE—HETE
EFRIMHEEEA R ERETETESRS
ZERSFAER]

(i)

EESHE
EESHRNHABHITES MR IERNTT
EERABBYIENTESER  EPE
BERKETE g8 % —RES &
FOTE ROTEREREXERETEBRK
B AT MEABREEARRESMEZ
HEgeErEH - EEg 2 EAXFTE LT
#8 BI283.10(1) K2 (2) 14 12 553.10A 6 © 35 B
EEgNEHIWT

BITESE
BREELE
(EEFRITEARE)
AmE kL (BIERE)
EE] R g
EMFLL
BEkZL
REB\EL

JEMITES

EHEREE (BIEE)
SEL L+
PR K it

22 I BBS  MHA - 4+

BIAFRTES
HEREE
KHHECBSKFHL
BRFREE
BRBEKF ML
AT

EERERFEFBENAFREI6EESE
7B [EENEEEERAB ZEREFIE]
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(ii) Attendance Records at the Board, Committees

and General Meetings

The attendance records of the individual directors at
the Board, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and general mestings for the year
ended 31 March 2019 are set out as follows:

Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chairman &
Chief Executive Officer) (Note 1)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen

(Deputy Chairman) (Note 2)
Ms. WONG Hau Yeung (Note 3)
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy (Note 4)

Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping

Dr. CHAN So Kuen (Note 5)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny
(Deputy Chairman) (Note 6)
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP

Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP

Independent Non-executive

Directors

Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP

Mr. HUI King Wai

EF
RITES
HERAE (TEF
TRAER) (K1)
Bl
(G1EE) (Hiz2)
IOBLt (Ai23)
EEFTL (HH4)
EE kT
BMEBEL (M)

EHTES
=0 it

(B1Ff) (HE6)
BERZL
FERPAFHEL
FEKBBS MHA T4+

BIFHTES

AR LA
EHBGBSAF M+
xR ESE
EHEAFHT
HBRELE

Board
E¥g

4/4
4/4

4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4

4/4

4/4
4/4
4/4

4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4

(i) EXETER ZRTTERABREXRT
ZHFE Rt &%
ARIEENEE2019F3A31 B IEFE 4

TZES

%

= e
= =

CEREE

SeR FHZEeSR:

Z i ERERE ST

No. of Meetings Attended/Held

Audit
Committee

FUERE

N/A TN E
N/A T8

N/ATER
N/ARER
N/A i F
N/A i F

N/ATER

N/A 1@
N/A @
N/A T8

2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2

HE BITERAY

Nomination Remuneration

Committee

REZRE

2/2
2/2

N/A T E A
N/A & A
N/A NiE R
N/A A

N/A T E A

N/A @ A
N/A 1@
N/A TN

2/2
2/2
212
22
2/2
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Committee

FHZRE

2/2
N/A T8

2/2
N/AREA
N/A i Fs
N/A &

N/ATER

N/A i Fs
N/A &
N/A T8

2/2
22
212
2/2
2/2

g% RA

ZMBRAE

Annual
General
Meeting

BREAFXE

11
11

11
11
11
11

11

11
11
11

11
11
11
11
11



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

glh

(i)

(iii)

LLI/_/\—A—\\ =
EBEBWmE

Attendance Records at the Board, Committees

and General Meetings (Continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. WONG Wai Sheung was re-elected as the Chairman of the
Company with effect from 15 August 2018. The English title of
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung was changed from “Chairman and Chief
Executive” to “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” with effect from
1 December 2018, while his Chinese title remains unchanged.

2. Mr. TSE Moon Chuen was re-elected as the Deputy Chairman of the
Company with effect from 15 August 2018.

3. Title of Ms. WONG Hau Yeung was changed from “Executive Director
and Deputy General Manager” to “Executive Director and Chief
Operating Officer” with effect from 1 December 2018.

4, Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy was appointed as Deputy Chief
Executive Officer with effect from 1 December 2018.

5. The Chinese title of Dr. CHAN So Kuen was changed from “#17%&
F HEVBAERQAANE to ‘DITES MBAIRIFM
£” with effect from 1 December 2018, while her English title remains
unchanged.

6. Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny was re-elected as the Deputy Chairman
of the Company with effect from 15 August 2018.

Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board’s role is to provide entrepreneurial leadership of
the Company within a framework of prudent and effective
controls which enables risks to be assessed and managed.
The Board controls the business but delegates day-to-day
responsibilities to the executive management. The Board
sets the Company’s strategic aims, values and standards
and ensures that its obligations to its shareholders and
others are understood and met.

The Company has a formal schedule of matters specifically
reserved to the Board for its decision. The Board gives clear
directions to management as to the matters that must be
approved by the Board before decisions are made on behalf
of the Company.

(i)

(iii)

EFERR ZRACEEREBREAY

ZH Bk (&)

B3 -

1. HEFAEB2018F8AIAREEEA
ARRAER - BREFEEZRXBEE
i [ Chairman and Chief Executive | # 245
[ Chairman and Chief Executive Officer | * B
2018F 12 A1 BB R IR AT T8 o

2. FmEEE2018F8A15HEESTERARN
RIBIER

3. FHEAT2BAE A [MITESREAK
BIERARITESEREEMRE] 52018
FI2A1RBAER -

4. EHAZTIREEABTRER 820185
12 1A BEN -

5. PREBET P BECH [TES EFF
MBRERABINE ER R [RITES ¥
BEHEFATWE]  B2018F 1241 A
R BB o

6. EEEAEBE2018F8 A1 HBEERAEAR
RIBIERE -

EFERAREINHER
EXe7BERIACERS BRRER
RAZ AL RNREARZEERERT
BREERR EFEEEXE MA®
EGEFARANTEEERARE -EFE
BRI AR R RGBT EERSE #
REKEBEREBITHRRRMBAZE
e

ARADEARIEEEFTEFERTE
ZEH - BEFERCHABEFSHET AN
RARBMEHAREZEE  MEEEHED

J=E Ak e —
TBIREER
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(iii)

(iv)

Board Responsibilities and Delegation (Continued)
All the directors of the Company have full and timely access
to all relevant information and have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary of the Company,
with a view to ensuring that all proper Board procedures,
applicable rules and regulations are followed. All the
directors including the independent non-executive directors
may seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense in carrying out
their functions, upon making request to the Board.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify the directors for their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
regularly.

Independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company confirms that the Board has received from
each of the independent non-executive directors, namely,
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander, Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen,
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina
and Mr. HUI King Wai, an annual confirmation of his or her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and, having taken into account the factors as set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules in assessing the independence
of independent non-executive directors, the Company
considers that all independent non-executive directors are
independent.

Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander has served as our
Independent Non-executive Director for more than nine
years. The Nomination Committee is fully satisfied that
during his years of appointment, he has demonstrated
complete independence of character and judgment and the
Nomination Committee is therefore of the view that he will
continue to bring an independent view of the Company’s
affairs to the Board notwithstanding his length of service.
The Board believes that his in-depth knowledge of the
Group’s business brings considerable stability to the Board,
and moreover that the Board has benefited greatly from his
contribution and valuable insight into the Group.

(iii)

(iv)
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors (Continued)

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2019 and up
to the date of this Annual Report, the Board had at
all times met the requirements under Rule 3.10 of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors with at least one of
them possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Directors’ Relationship

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there is no
financial, business, family or other material or connected
relationship between members of the Board.

Re-election of Directors

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the Company’s annual general meeting in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

Directors’ Ongoing Development

All directors have the opportunities to receive professional
training programmes arranged by the Company during
their terms of appointment covering the topics of corporate
governance, updates on the Listing Rules and other
regulatory developments at the expense of the Company.
Directors were encouraged by the Company to participate
in the relevant continuous professional training to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
has also arranged for consultants to provide training
programmes. The average training hours that the directors
received were not less than 10 hours.

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
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(vii) Directors’ Ongoing Development (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company
arranged a seminar covering updates on Accounting
Standards and Cybersecurity. Directors’ training records
during the Year under review are summarised as follows:

Directors

Executive Directors
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung

(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen
(Deputy Chairman)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy

Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping

Dr. CHAN So Kuen

Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny
(Deputy Chairman)

Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP

Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP

Mr. HUI King Wai
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The Chairman leads the Board in the determination of strategies
and in the achievement of objectives and ensures that all directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at the Board meetings and
receive adequate, complete and reliable information. The Chief
Executive Officer is delegated with the authority and responsible
for running the Company’s business, implementing the
Company’s strategies in achieving business objectives. Both the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer positions are currently
held by Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, an executive director. The Board
believes that the current governance structure, with a combined
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and a vast majority of non-
executive directors, provides an effective balance of power and
authority for the management of the Company in the best interest
of the Company at the present stage.

All the non-executive directors are appointed for a term of two
years, and the appointments are renewable from time to time,
subject to retirement by rotation at annual general meetings.

The Board has established three Board committees, including
the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, for overseeing the respective aspects of the Group’s
affairs.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense
in appropriate circumstances.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 1 February 1999
with written terms of reference accessible on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander,
with four other members namely Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen,
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina and
Mr. HUI King Wai. All Committee members are independent
non-executive directors, exceeding the requirement of a
high majority of independent non-executive directors by
the Listing Rules. In compliance with Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules, majority of the members possess appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

During the Year under review, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to discuss and review, inter alia, the interim and
annual financial statements, the submission and publication
of the interim and annual reports, the disclosures in the
Corporate Governance Report, the corporate governance
and compliance status of the CG Code and the internal
audit plan and functions of the Group. Moreover, the written
terms of reference of the Audit Committee were revised on
27 December 2018 to reflect the amendments to the CG
Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules which
became effective on 1 January 2019, specifically state that
a former partner of the Company’s existing auditing firm
shall be prohibited from acting as a member of the Audit
Committee for a period of two years from the date of his
ceasing to be a partner of the firm or to have any financial
interest in the firm, whichever is the later. The revised terms
of reference were set out in the Company’s announcement
released on 27 December 2018 and were made available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Company believes that a clear appreciation of the
separate roles of the management, the external auditors
and Audit Committee members is crucial to the effective
functioning of an audit committee. The Board is responsible
for selecting appropriate accounting policies and the
preparation of the financial statements. The external
auditors are responsible for auditing and attesting to the
Group’s financial statements and evaluating the Group’s
system of internal controls, to the extent that they
consider necessary to support their audit report. The Audit
Committee is responsible for overseeing the entire process.
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Audit Committee (Continued)
The major functions and duties of the Audit Committee
mainly include:

° reviewing the Group’s interim and annual financial
statements and the interim and annual reports before
submission to the Board for approval;

o reviewing the financial reporting obligations and
considering any matters raised by the Group’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function, compliance officer or external auditor;

° reviewing and monitoring the independence
and objectivity of the external auditor, and the
effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards;

° approving the remuneration and terms of engagement
of external auditor and making recommendations
on the appointment, re-appointment or removal of
external auditor;

° reviewing the internal audit programme and ensuring
that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and effective, and considering any major findings of
internal control matters;

o reviewing the financial control, internal control and
risk management systems of the Group and ensuring
that the management has discharged its duty to
have effective risk management and internal control
systems, in particular, the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions; and

° reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and the Company’s
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

As at 31 March 2019, the arrangements for employees and
stakeholders of the Group to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, risk management,
internal control or other matters and the whistleblowing
procedures are in place.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 1 April
2012 with written terms of reference accessible on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. MAK Wing Sum,
Alvin, being an independent non-executive director, with six
other members namely Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. TSE
Moon Chuen, Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander, Mr. IP Shu
Kwan, Stephen, Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina and Mr. HUI
King Wai. The Chairman of this Committee and five out of
seven members are independent non-executive directors, a
high majority of independent non-executive directors which
meets the requirement of the CG Code.

During the Year under review, the Nomination Committee
held two meetings to assess the independence of the
independent non-executive directors, review and make
recommendation to the Board on the structure, size and
composition of the Board, and to review the retirement and
rotation plan of the directors.

(ii)
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Nomination Committee (Continued)

The principal role and responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee mainly include giving full consideration to
succession planning for directors and senior management,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive directors. In order to achieve a
balanced and appropriately qualified Board, the Nomination
Committee is also responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition, including the skills, knowledge,
diversity and experience, of the Board, and advising
the Board as to any changes that may be required. The
Nomination Committee has the authority given by the
Board to seek external professional advice in the selection
and recommendation for directorship, if necessary, to fulfil
the requirements for professional knowledge and industry
experience of any proposed candidates.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Policy sets out the criteria, procedures and
process to be adopted when considering candidates to be
appointed or re-appointed as directors of the Company.
The Nomination Committee would select the candidates
based on the objective criteria, including without limitation,
qualifications, skills, experience, independence, age,
culture, ethnicity and gender. The Nomination Committee
would also take into account whether the candidate can
demonstrate his/her commitment, competence and integrity
required for the position, and in case of Independent
Non-executive Directors, the independence requirements
under the Listing Rules and their time commitment to
the Company. The Nomination Committee monitors the
implementation of the Nomination Policy and will review and
recommend any revisions to the Board for consideration
and approval, when necessary, to enhance effectiveness.
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Nomination Committee (Continued)

Board Diversity

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board, and sees diversity at Board
level as an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage. As such, the Company continued to adopt
the board diversity policy during the Year under review. In
achieving a truly diverse Board, candidates with different
talents, skills, knowledge, length of service and professional
experience, cultural and educational background, age,
gender and other qualities may be selected as members
of the Board. Selection of candidates is based on a range
of diversity criteria. The ultimate decision is based on merit
and contribution which would be brought by the candidates
to the Board if he/she was selected as a director. The
Nomination Committee is of the view that the current
composition of the Board has achieved the objectives set
out in the above board diversity policy.

The Board is composed of members from a diverse
background. The Company excels in gender equality
as female Directors account for two-fifth of the whole
Board. The chief financial officer, an executive director and
three independent non-executive directors are qualified
accountants. There is also an independent non-executive
director who is a qualified solicitor. The Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee was the Secretary for Economic
Development and Labour of the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region. Seven Directors have
experience sitting on the boards of other companies listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. The Directors
have extensive experiences in the retail jewellery business,
finance and accounting, taxation, business strategy,
securities and investment, public relations, communications
and marketing, branding, and exposure or experience
in various countries including Mainland China, etc. They
are members, or committee or panel members of various
industry bodies, public service or government bodies
or charities. The Directors bring a wealth of diverse
experience to the Board, which is conducive to the business
development and growth of the Company over the years.

(i)

REZRE (W)

EFE®RASTL
ARBRRAMZREE —EZTILEES
M TRAEFETEENZILIELRR
FHFEZNLETLER Qi ARAR
CEFENESRMNESTEREZ T
R -REREENEEEXNEZ T
BB TEZ R Kae MR- RGETHR
BEER XERBME R - Fik 145
REMERNESREANEERSES
ERE -TEBEEAERR-RIZT
LB RBEE - R HIRBRRIEFEANE
EREF HBRESEWANEBRE
BIMEHRE - REZ B ERA/EFNE
EEZHEKEER LA EEEZ LR
RAT# 2 BiRe

EFECAKREZTICESHRBAER K
MERLHEFSE2ERENAN Z
BRARBHEMERFETHRREM-
BAIPBRE  —BATEFT R =2
MFMTTESEREERGRE - A%
BUIFRTEZTRAERBM -FHME B
IR EREBRRTTIRIR A& %
RESTIRBER tREFABRELH
R ETHEMARETEFTEREDN
KR - E=ZRAURBTEXL RME
FH WIS FIEERES  BHNRE  RBT
1E BN TISHEE  mERIENEER
B LESERPENNES EFRFERD
KE - RERZETERE  RHARBH
BF#EREERENKE TR/
KB BEFEREFTETRBIES TR
B BMAREZFROEBEERE MG
£ o

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Al A N/
PEEIRRSE

Areas of Diversity

II AGE GROUP
FieE R
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1
0
<40 40-49 W 50-59
40BRA T 40Z495% 50Z595%
M 60-69 >70
B0ZE695% 705R3k A £
II DESIGNATION
i 4]
7
6
5
4
3
2
1
0
Executive B Non-executive Il Independent

Director Director Non-executive
WITEE FEMITES Director
BIUIFRTES

ETILZ S
II GENDER
{321
9
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1
0
W Male Female
Hit f-3td

II LENGTH OF SERVICES OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
FUTEBNRBEEH
5

4

3

2

1

0
1-5 years M 6-10 years Over 10 years
12565 6% 10%F BI04

Annual Report 2018/19 E#i

85



(iii)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 7
April 2005 with written terms of reference posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. IP Shu Kwan,
Stephen, being an independent non-executive director, with
six other members namely, Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms.
WONG Hau Yeung, Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander, Mr.
MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina and Mr.
HUI King Wai. The Chairman of this Committee and five out
of seven members are independent non-executive directors,
meeting the requirement of a high majority of independent
non-executive directors by the Listing Rules.

The principal role and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee mainly include making recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy, structure and
packages for all remuneration of directors and senior
management; reviewing and approving performance-
based remuneration and the terms of service contracts
of the directors and senior management, reviewing and
approving the compensation payable in connection with
any loss or termination of office or appointment of directors
and senior management, overseeing any major changes
in employee benefits structures throughout the Company
or the Group; and reviewing the on-going appropriateness
of the remuneration policy. No director or member of the
senior management determined his/her own remuneration
package.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during
the Year under review to review the remuneration policies
and recommend for the Board approval of the annual salary
increments for the calendar year 2019, the discretionary
year-end bonus for 2018 and the performance bonus for all
non-sales employees working at the headquarters.

Details of directors’ emoluments, five highest paid
individuals and the remuneration of the members of the
senior management by band during the Year under review
are set out in Note 15 to the financial statements on pages
220 to 224 of this Annual Report.
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Analysis of remuneration in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided by the external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public Accountants, were as
follows:

B RSN AT 7R SRR R BT IS (8
@A) IR B BB RE 2 MR
mF

2019

HK$'000

FHET

Audit services Ei AR 5,640
Non-audit services EFT RS

- Review service —E MR 560

— Tax related service — TS AE A AR S 597

Total @t 6,797

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to financial
reporting are stated in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

The directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of each financial period, which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at the end of the
financial period and of the result and cash flows of the Group for
the year. In the Company’s interim and annual reports which are
issued within the time limits stipulated by the Listing Rules, the
Board presents a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment
of the Company’s performance, position and prospects. The
published financial statements adopt, and consistently apply,
suitable accounting policies complying with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards.

The Board ensures that the Company maintains sound and
effective internal control to safeguard the shareholders’ interest
and the Company’s assets. The Audit Committee, with the
assistance of the Internal Audit Team, regularly reviews the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system. The Head
of the Internal Audit Team directly reports to the Audit Committee.

The Board establishes monitoring and procedural guidelines for
considering how it will apply the financial reporting and internal
control principles and for maintaining an appropriate relationship
with the Company’s external auditors. The Audit Committee
established by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules has
clear terms of reference.

SN BB RS RE N EZBE SN EL
REENREA -

EFERANFT AR RS EHREZ S5 R
FOAEERTFRRASEER IR AMERE
ZHR ARAEBERZFREZEENRRESR
B -NARAELTRAMRERRATIEZ
FHBERFRAN EEGHARF 2RI
MR AT RIEL T B R 2m 2G5
TIEMBHRRRA R ERERATEETEMBR
EEAZEFERK-

ERGERADFREFRE AWK ZNEE
B ARBERRERREARRZEE -FX
ZESEAMEZ/NEZHET - E MR A
RENEBES IR BIE 2 R - A EPEAZ/ NMEEE
BERAEZZEEMSE -

E=ei AT BEERE kA EERRIA
REARRNR NS ZBEN R EERIR - HIE
EEREFES -ARFRE ETRAUKILZ
BRZEGRBMBREE-

Annual Report 2018/19 E#i



In order to achieve enhanced corporate governance of the
Company, the Board has undertaken and delegated to the Audit
Committee to constantly review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance, the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and the directors, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report. During the Year under review,
the Audit Committee performed the duties relating to corporate
governance matters as aforementioned.

During the Year under review, the company secretary undertook
over 15 hours of professional training to update the skills and
knowledge, which exceeded the requirements of the Listing
Rules.

The Board is responsible for the Company’s systems of risk
management and internal control and for reviewing their
effectiveness annually through the Audit Committee.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee has received the risk management and
internal control evaluation reports submitted by the Internal Audit
Team. The reports summarised information relating to the work
carried out in the following areas:

° the results of selective testing of internal control procedures,
assets, and financial records of the Company;

° a general evaluation of risk management and internal control
systems installed by the Company; and

° an outline of major control issues, if any, noticed during the
Year under review.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the reports and discussed
with the management.

The Audit Committee recognised that an evaluation of the
risk management system and an examination of the internal
control system have been adequately executed by the Internal
Audit Team during the Year under review. The Audit Committee
acknowledged that the management has been progressively
implementing adequate and effective risk management and
internal control systems in order to ensure the effective functioning
of the Company’s operations.

Risk Management Committee

As our commitment to establishing and improving the risk
management system, ensuring timely identification and
management of risks for the achievement of corporate objectives,
the Risk Management Committee was set up in 2016, comprising
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, four executive directors
(including Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Ms. WONG Hau Yeung,
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy and Dr. CHAN So Kuen) and a senior
executive of the Group. The duties of the Risk Management
Committee include, but are not limited to: (i) review the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules regarding risk management requirements;
(i) coordinate staff training, including risk management principles,
assessment methodology and its implementation; and (i) assign
personnel to support departments to perform risk assessment
for newly established business or projects, if necessary. This
committee reports directly to the Audit Committee.

During the Year under review, the Risk Management Committee
held two meetings to discuss and review, inter alia, reports
on effectiveness of risk management processes, reports on
departmental risk assessment, the Group’s corporate strategies
and the implementation progress of key performance indicators,
and amendments to the written terms of reference of the Risk
Management Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Risk Management Framework

The Company’s risk management framework provides a
systematic and disciplined approach to risk management
process, which is embedded in the system of internal controls as
an integral part of corporate governance. The risk management
framework helps sustain business success, creates value
for stakeholders and supports the Board in discharging its
corporate governance responsibilities by proactively identifying,
addressing and managing key risks within the Group. The
risk management framework is aligned with the Committee of
Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission (“COSQO”)
integrated framework for effective internal controls, which
comprises 17 principles under 5 components, including Control
Environment, Risk Assessment, Control Activities, Information
and Communication and Monitoring Activities. Departments
& Management as risk owners take direct risk management
responsibilities and reports to the Risk Management Committee.

A summary of the risk management framework of the Company is
shown as below:

Risk Management Framework
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Risk Management Framework (Continued)
Board of Directors

Setting the basic tone and culture of risk management
across the Group;

Approving the criteria of risk assessment;

Approving major decisions affecting the Group’s risk profile
Or exposure;

Approving changes to key elements of the risk management
procedures;

Approving the Group’s risk management policy; and

Monitoring significant risks

Audit Committee

Reviewing the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group; and

Ensuring that effective systems of risk management and
internal control are established by the management

Risk Management Committee

Recommending the Group’s risk tolerant level and criteria;

Approving standard risk management templates including
forms and tools;

Approving risk registers;

Reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules regarding risk
management requirements;

Appointing risk owners;

Appointing staff to support departments to conduct risk
assessments on new ventures and activities;

Conducting review on procedures and policies of risk
management;

Reporting, if any, significant risks to Audit Committee in a
timely manner; and

Coordinating staff training
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Risk Management Framework (Continued)

Departments & Management

Departments and management are responsible for the
identification and assessment of risks within their areas of
responsibility:

Objective Setting and Categorisation
° Strategies;

° Operation;
° Financial reporting; and
o Compliance

Risk ldentification
° The Group provides examples of risk factors; and

o Risks should be relevant to strategies and objectives

Risk Analysis
° Considering existing control measures;

o Using a consistent scoring criteria; and
° Assessing the residual risks

Risk Treatment
° Choosing a risk treatment strategy;

o Establishing a treatment plan; and
° Appointing risk owners

Effectiveness Monitoring and Reporting
° Monitoring and reporting risks periodically; and

° Setting up an emergent risk reporting mechanism
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Review Processes of the Effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems

The management and the Risk Management Committee review
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems. The Internal Audit Team also conducts independent
audit of the effectiveness of these systems. Separate reports are
submitted to the Audit Committee for its review and appraisal.
A final report will be submitted to the Board for accessing the
effectiveness of the systems.

If any material internal control defects are found, the Audit
Committee will discuss them with the management. The Internal
Audit Team will follow up and/or re-classified as “severe” risk in
the risk management system for further formulating measures to
resolve or prevent such defects.

Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company acknowledges its responsibilities under Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws
of Hong Kong and the Listing Rules and the overriding principle
that inside information should be announced promptly. The
Company has established a policy for the disclosure of inside
information (the “Inside Information Disclosure Policy”) with close
regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commissions. The Inside
Information Disclosure Policy includes, among other things: (a)
only designated persons are authorised to communicate the
Company’s corporate matters with investors, analysts, the media
or other members of the investment community; (b) Directors or
senior management shall report to the Chief Executive Officer any
potential/suspected inside information as soon as practicable for
him to consult (if appropriate) the Board thereafter for determining
the nature of developments and, if required, making appropriate
disclosure; (c) disclosure of inside information must be made
in a manner that can provide for equal, timely and effective
access by the public to the disclosed inside information; and (d)
inside information must be kept strictly confidential until a public
announcement is made and shall be disseminated in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules before it is released via
other means.
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The internal audit is an independent function undertaken by the
Internal Audit Team reporting administratively to the Company’s
management and reporting functionally to the Audit Committee.
The Internal Audit Team is authorised to obtain all information
necessary to accomplish internal audit work.

The Board has conducted an annual review to ensure the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions.

A risk-based audit approach has been adopted by the Internal
Audit Team. Internal control reviews are conducted regularly to
closely monitor business or operation changes. Regular audit
tests are carried out to ensure key controls are in operation. The
Internal Audit Team also conducts other projects and investigating
work as required.

Any significant internal audit findings are discussed with respective
department heads to have actions agreed and subsequently
followed up, in order to ensure that satisfactory control is
maintained.

In each semi-annual work plan, manning levels of the Internal
Audit Team are agreed with the Audit Committee. A summary of
the internal audit activities and audit results are also submitted to
the Audit Committee twice a year.

Procedures for shareholders to convene a Special
General Meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall have the right to submit a written requisition requiring an
SGM to be called by the Board. The written requisition (i) must
state the purposes of the SGM; and (i) must be signed by
the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of the
Company, and may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more requisitionists.
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Procedures for shareholders to convene a Special
General Meeting (“SGM”) (Continued)

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene an SGM, the
requisitionists or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them may convene an SGM,
but any SGM so convened shall not be held after expiration of
three months from the said date of deposit of the requisition. An
SGM convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in any SGM to be
convened by the Board.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a
general meeting

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, either any number of shareholders representing not less
than one-twentieth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company, or not less
than 100 shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (i)
give to shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next annual
general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (i)
circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be deposited
at the registered office of the Company (contact details are
disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Information”) with
a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant
expenses and not less than six weeks before the meeting in case
of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one
week before the meeting in case of any other requisition.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose for
election as a director have been posted on the website of the
Company.
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The Board maintains an ongoing dialogue with shareholders
and in particular, endeavours to provide transparency and uses
the annual general meetings and investors’ conferences, to
communicate with shareholders and invites their participation in
certain marketing events. Besides, the Company’s official website
serves as a handy communication channel for the shareholders.
Press releases and announcements about the Company’s
business affairs are made from time to time.

The Company informs shareholders of the procedure for voting by
poll in the circular to shareholders, and ensures compliance with
the requirements regarding voting by poll contained in the Listing
Rules and the Company’s Bye-laws.

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board’s attention
can be sent in writing to the company secretary at the Company’s
business address in Hong Kong at 25/F, Metropole Square, 2 On
Yiu Street, Shatin, New Territories. Shareholders may also make
proposals at the general meetings.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year under review.

The Dividend Policy sets out the principles and guidelines that the
Company intends to apply in relation to the declaration, payment
or distribution of its net profits as dividends to the shareholders
of the Company. The Company intends to distribute 40%-50%
of its annual net profits as dividends to shareholders, having
taken into consideration certain criteria set out in the Dividend
Policy, including the Group’s financial results; cash flow situation;
business conditions and strategies; future operations and
earnings; capital requirements and expenditure plans; interests of
shareholders; any restrictions on payment of dividends; and any
other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EESRE

The directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 (“the Year
under review”).

The principal activity of Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited
(the “Company”) is investment holding. The subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the sourcing, designing, wholesaling,
trademark licensing and retailing of a variety of gold and platinum
jewellery and gem-set jewellery products.

An analysis of the performance of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year by
operating segment is set out in Note 6 to the financial statements.

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year under review,
the material factors underlying its results and financial position and
material attributable factors of the development and likely future
developments of the Group’s business, are provided throughout
this Annual Report, particularly in the following separate sections:

(@) Review of the Group’s business — “Chairman’s Statement”
on pages 3 to 6 and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 7 to 23;

(b)  The principal risks and uncertainties the Group is facing —
“Report of the Directors” on pages 97 to 126;

(c)  Future development in the Group’s business — “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 3 to 6 and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 7 to 23;

(d) Analysis using financial key performance indicators —
“Financial Highlights” on page 1 and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 23;

(e) Information about the Group’s Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) policies and performance — ESG
Report on pages 33 to 69 and “Report of the Directors” on
pages 97 to 126;
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

® Discussion on the Group’s compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations — “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 70 to 96 and “Report of the Directors” on pages 97
to 126; and

(@ An account of the Group’s key relationships with its
employees, customers and suppliers and others — “ESG
Report” on pages 33 to 69 and “Report of the Directors” on
pages 97 to 126.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring that the risk
management practices of the Group are sufficient to mitigate
the risks present in our businesses and operations as efficiently
and effectively as possible. The Board delegates some of such
responsibilities to various departments.

The Group’s financial position, operations, business and
prospects may be affected by the following identified risks and
uncertainties. The Group adopts risk management policies,
measures and monitoring systems to pre-empt and contain
exposures associated with the identified risks.

Economic Risks

Global Economic Condition

Possible economic slowdown or prolonged downturn of the
global or Mainland China’s economy may affect the retail market
sentiment as a whole.

Tourist Destinations

The increase in popularity of other tourist destinations weakens
the spending of Mainland China tourists in Hong Kong and
Macau.

Operational Risks

Rent

As a retailer, rent accounts for a considerable portion of the
Group’s expenses. Rental increment on retail shops directly
affects the profit of the Group. The Group strikes a good balance
between shop expansion and profit increment. The Group strives
to lower rent via negotiations with landlords, close branches with
low profitability and search for suitable locations in other areas, for
new shops.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

Operational Risks (Continued)

Prices of Raw Materials

Fluctuations in prices of raw materials may adversely affect our
profitability. We strive to improve our purchasing procedures in
order to maintain reasonable raw materials costs. On the other
hand, the Group has a gold hedging ratio of around 20% which
mitigate the impact on the profit due to the drop in gold prices.

Fierce Competition

There is strong competition from national and local competitors
in jewellery and watch industry. The Group has formulated a set
of branding strategies to enhance brand image and awareness.
Details of such strategies are set out in “Branding” on pages 24 to
32.

Inventory Turnover
Owing to the impact of volatile macro-economic environment in
Asia especially Mainland China, our inventory turnover bears the
risk of slowing down.

Management of Licensed Shops

Licensed shops play an important role in raising the brand
awareness of the Group. Maintaining a good brand image and
reputation is a win-win situation for both the Group and the
licensed shops. Therefore, the Group uses best endeavours to
ensure their consistency with the Group’s image and operation
standard. We maintain a close working relationship with our
licensed shops as well as provide one-stop support to them, such
as shop-opening training, the provision of operation manuals and
regular operation review meetings.

We also closely monitored the licensed shops through a stringent
control system which consists of 6 areas of control, including
Operational Control; Product Quality Control; Distribution Network
Control; Pricing Control; Brand Image Control; and Service Quality
Control. Details of such system are set out on page 100.
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EESRE

Control System on Licensed Shops

mEEEERR

e Whistle-blowing System and Reward Scheme

B AL R RE)E &

e Sales and Inventory System Access
HERTFERGE

e DVR System

e 100% diamond products in Mainland China
market offered by Lukfook
R B P 3 T 35 88 A B a1 00% B 73 A e 1
e Authorised suppliers on other products

HAth 2 am FR 46 TE $1 8 7 R

e  Prior approval on retail locations
BEMKTERUE

e Standardised retail price for products through
centralised labeling process
FRG—RERIE NE—ERTEE

e Authorised renovation contractors
HEEREABR
e Prior approval on all advertising & promotion

BABEMMARSNER

e Mystery Shopper System on service
quality control
TEWERTENEEREmE

Operational Compliance Audit Team
EECHMES A

Annual Contract Renewal Basis
BEBLK

Cash On Delivery Basis

BB SR

Certificate issued by NGTC/GTC for

quality assurance

Blig,  ERESEREERHE

Sightholder of De Beers — steady quality rough
diamond supply

De Beerst X)L &7 - IR EBE A 2 &

Centralised control on discount policy

FR SR AT BT R

Standardised operational materials
(e.g. uniform, packaging) in all shops

PRAEGE—LEWE (flm: HIfR 2%)

Centralised Staff Training

m—B I
* Regional training centres [& 13 £ 5/l &1 /L
e E-| earning programmes 48 _+ 2582
e On-site training & 3% 3l

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

Regulatory Risks

Change in Laws and Regulations

The changes in laws and regulations such as the Competition
Ordinance (Cap. 619 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
adjustment to the policy of Individual Visit Scheme could
adversely affect our businesses. Our management keeps a close
eye on the change in such laws and regulations and adjusts the
Group’s operating strategies accordingly, in order to maintain the
Group’s market competitiveness.

Intellectual Property

We recognise the importance of building a good reputation and
protecting our intellectual property. Any unauthorised use of our
trademarks in counterfeit products could harm our brand image
and reputation, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

In view of this, the Group’s legal department has set up teams in
both Hong Kong and Nansha of Mainland China to handle tasks
in respect of intellectual properties (such as trademarks, design
patents and fighting against infringement).

The Group has successfully registered the “Lukfook” trademark
in the regions where Lukfook has a presence (such as Hong
Kong, Macau, Mainland China, Singapore, Malaysia, Cambodia,
the Philippines, the United States, Canada and Australia). Our
legal department has reached a consensus with our product
development department, marketing department and design
department that any new product, collection, display prop and
fitting out design should be forwarded as soon as practicable
to the legal department as appropriate for applying for design
patent/copyright in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau so as
to ensure the maximum protection for the Group.

The Group’s legal department and business department
constantly monitor any infringement by free-riding brands across
Mainland China, and cooperate with the law enforcement
agencies to fight against infringement. The Group always
encourages colleagues to monitor any infringement during their
business trips and report the infringement to the legal department,
and endeavours to fight against infringement of the Group’s
intellectual properties.

Financial Risks
Details of financial risks are set out in Note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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ESgWE

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the non-compliance with such
requirements could lead to the risk of termination of operating
licences. The Group has been allocating systems and human
resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and
regulations and to maintain cordial working relationships
with regulators effectively through effective communications.
During the Year under review, as far as the Group is aware, it
has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group places great importance on environmental protection
and endeavours to promote sustainable development. It
incorporates relevant environmental strategies in every aspect of
its business, and implements initiatives in areas such as energy
saving and waste management in manufacturing, administration
and daily retail operations to mitigate the impact on the
environment.

Relationships with Key Stakeholders

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers
are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is committed
to establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees,
providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners. The Group provides a fair
and safe work environment, promotes staff diversity, provides
competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The
Group also puts ongoing efforts to provide adequate training
and resources to the employees so that they can keep abreast
of the latest development of the market and the industry and,
at the same time, improve their performance and facilitate their
self-fulfillment in their positions.
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Relationships with Key Stakeholders (Continued)

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good
relationship with customers and providing products which
satisfy their needs and requirements. The Group enhances the
relationship by continuous interaction with customers to gain
insight into the changing market demand for different products
so that the Group can respond proactively. The Group has also
established procedures in handling customers’ feedbacks and
complaints to ensure that customers’ opinions are dealt with in
prompt and timely manner.

The Group maintains stable business relationship with its suppliers
and service providers. In order to have a better and close
monitoring of suppliers’ performance, the Group’s management
regularly conducts performance reviews targeting the Group’s
major suppliers and service providers, and communicates with
them for rectification and improvements.

The results of the Group for the Year under review are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 136.

The directors have declared an interim dividend of HK$0.55
per ordinary share. A total of HK$322,909,000 was paid on 24
December 2018.

The directors proposed a final dividend of HK$0.60 per ordinary
share for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: HK$0.55 per
share) to shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 28 August 2019. Taking into
account of the interim dividend paid, the total dividend for the
year would amount to HK$1.15 per ordinary share, totalling
HK$675,174,000 for the year (2018: HK$1.10 per ordinary
share, totalling HK$645,818,000). Subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”)
of the Company to be held on 22 August 2019, the final dividend
will be paid on or around 10 September 2019.
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Donations made by the Group during the Year under
review amounted to approximately HK$2,437,000 (2018:
HK$1,303,000).

Details of the shares issued by the Company during the Year
under review are set out in Note 28 to the financial statements.

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into
any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during the Year under
review or subsisted at the end of the year.

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2019,
calculated under the Companies Act of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$1,100,963,000 (2018: HK$1,049,558,000).

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last
five financial years ended 31 March are as follows:

REEREIEFENIEDR 2 1B349/52,437,000
77T (20184F : 1,303,000/ 7T ) °

AR TR B B TARA 2 BB B T
R 328 -

REREFE AR FEAERE  ARRET L
S A R 1 % K & S Al AR A
BT SR TE AR R R MLATAAT 175 5 & 3
AEHARRE BTG

BRIEBRERNGETE AR F 201943
A318 2 8] # 5 K 7 & &1,100,963,000/%8 7T
(20184F : 1,049,558,000/8 7T ) ©

AEEBEASA LY LA EMRERESF
TEGCAERAMBDT

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET FHET FET FET
Results E 1
Revenue WA 15,859,990 14,578,409 12,807,277 14,031,302 15,922,708
Profit attributable to equity KRB FEA
holders of the Company JE4E %% F 1,492,747 1,369,393 1,016,838 958,692 1,614,805
Assets and liabilities BERAR
Total assets BEE 14,423,572 12,214,878 10,679,250 10,629,499 11,511,237
Total liabilities weE 3,860,656 2,135,141 1,699,310 1,860,580 2,910,730
Shareholders’ funds WHES 10,517,270 10,034,769 8,873,350 8,673,796 8,536,363

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year
under review.

ARRREMBARNOEFEADEEE -
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The directors who held office during the year ended 31 March
2019 and up to the date of this Annual Report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy

Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping

Dr. CHAN So Kuen

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny (Deputy Chairman)
Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP

Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP

Mr. HUI King Wai

Pursuant to Bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, one-third of the directors
shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM of the Company.
Accordingly, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Dr. CHAN So Kuen, Mr.
WONG Ho Lung, Danny, Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin and Mr. HUI
King Wai, shall retire from office by rotation at the AGM. All the
retiring directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the AGM. Details of the proposed directors to be re-elected are
set out in the circular sent together with this Annual Report.
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Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, aged 68, is the founder, Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director of the Group. He is
also a member of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. Mr. WONG has over 52 years of experience in the
jewellery industry and is responsible for the overall strategic
planning and management of the Group. He is the Honorary
Life President of The Kowloon Gold Silver and Jewel Merchant’s
Staff Association, the Honorary Permanent Chairman of Hong
Kong Jade Association, the Chairman of Supervisory Committee
of The Kowloon Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver
Ornament Merchants Association, the Honorary Chairman of
Macau Goldsmith’s Guild, the Honorary Chairman of the First
General Committee and Vice President of Guangdong Golden
Jewelry and Jade Industry’s Association, the Consultant of
the Gems & Jewelry Trade Association of China, the Honorary
Chairman of Hong Kong Small and Medium Enterprises
Association, the Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Gemstone
Manufacturers’ Association, Founding Member and Vice
President of Shenzhen Gold & Silver Jewelry Creative Industry
Association, Honorary Advisor of H.K. Gold & Silver Ornament
Workers & Merchants General Union and the Consultant of the
6th Term General Committee of Hong Kong Brand Development
Council. Mr. WONG is the father of Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny,
Deputy Chairman and Non-executive Director of the Company
and Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy, Executive Director and Deputy
Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
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Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, aged 68, is the co-founder of the Group.
Presently, he is the Deputy Chairman, Executive Director and
Deputy General Manager of the Group. He is also a member
of the Nomination Committee. Mr. TSE has over 46 years of
experience in jewellery retailing business and is responsible for the
merchandising and production functions of the Group. Mr. TSE
is an Executive Committee Member of the Diamond Federation
of Hong Kong, China Ltd., a Vice President of The Chinese Gold
& Silver Exchange Society, the Vice Chairman of The Kowloon
Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament
Merchants Association, the President of The Tsuen Wan Festival
Lightings Organizing Committee, a Member of the Kwun Tong
District Junior Police Call (JPC) Honorary President Council, a
Vice Chairman of Macau Goldsmith’s Guild, a Director of Hong
Kong, Guangzhou, Foshan and Zhaoqging Friendship Association,
an Honorary President of Tsuen Wan Committee for Celebration
of Reunification of Hong Kong with China, an Honorary President
of Tsuen Wan Preparatory Community of National Day, a Vice
President of Zhaoqging Overseas Friendship Association, an
Honorary Consultant of Shatin Friends Society, an Executive
Committee Member and Vice Director of Finance of Hong Kong
Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Association, a Vice Chairperson of
Tsuen Wan District Fire Safety Ambassador Honorary Presidents’
Association, an Honorary President of H.K. Gold & Silver
Ornament Workers & Merchants General Union, an Honorary
President of The Residents Association of Tsuen Wan Hoi Bun
District, an Honorary President of Hong Kong New Territories
District Adviser Alumni Association, a 12th Term Executive
Director of Guangzhou Panyu Jewelry Manufacturers Association,
the 19th Term Honorary Consultant of Hong Kong Precious
Metals Traders Association Limited, an Honorary Consultant
of Tsuen Wan Kwai Ching District Woman’s Association, a
Vice President of Tsuen Wan District People Joint Celebration
Committee and an Honorary President of The Federation of
Tsuen Wan District Sports & Recreation Association. Moreover,
Mr. TSE was awarded the “Chief Executive’s Commendation for
Community Service” by the Government of the Hong Kong SAR.
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Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung, aged 46, is the Chief Operating
Officer and Executive Director of the Group and a member of
the Remuneration Committee. She is also a Director of China
Gold Silver Group Company Limited (“CGS”), an associate of the
Company which conducts jewellery retail and franchise business
under the brand name of “3D-GOLD” in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China. Ms. WONG initially joined the Group in 1994
and served various departments for about 8 years until 2002.
She rejoined the Group in 2004. Currently, she is responsible
for the Group’s operations and development of the retail and
licensing businesses. In addition, she is also responsible for
the human resources, administration, property and training
functions of the Group. She holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from University of Southern Queensland. Ms.
WONG is a Member of Guangzhou Panyu District Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a
Standing Director of Gemmological Association of Fujian, a
Member and Vice-Chairperson of The Jewellery Industry Training
Advisory Committee and a Convenor of the Recognition of Prior
Learning Subcommittee, the Honorary Life President and Vice-
Chairman 19th Term of Hong Kong Pun Yue Industrial and
Commercial Fellowship Association, the 6th Term Standing
Director of Guangzhou Panyu Overseas Friendship Association,
the 2nd Term Committee Member of Hong Kong Federation of
Guangzhou Associations Women's Committee, the 4th Term
Director of Guangzhou Panyu Overseas Exchange Association
and the Chairman of Panyu Hong Kong Charity Fund Limited. She
has over 25 years of experience in the jewellery industry.
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Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy, aged 38, is the Deputy Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director of the Group. She joined
the Group in 2006 and assists in formulating and implementing
the Group’s overall business strategies. She is also responsible
for the Group’s corporate branding, marketing, corporate
communications, product design and development functions
and e-commerce operations. Ms. WONG holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Commerce from the University of Toronto, Canada
and a Master's Degree of Science in China Business Studies
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is also a
Certified Public Accountant of the United States of America. Prior
to joining the Group, Ms. WONG worked for an international
professional accounting firm in Hong Kong, where she performed
auditing and accounting assignments for a variety of business
organisations including listed companies. She received the GIA
Diamond Graduate title in 2007. She is a Co-opted Member of
the Marketing Activities Committee of the Quality Tourism Services
Association and a Member of Young Diamantaire Group of
Diamond Federation of Hong Kong. Ms. WONG is the daughter of
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, the Group’s Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and Executive Director and the sister of Mr. WONG Ho
Lung, Danny, Deputy Chairman and Non-executive Director of the
Company.

Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping, aged 49, is the Executive Director of
the Group. She has over 31 years of experience in the jewellery
industry. She joined the Group in 1990 and is responsible for the
corporate gift business of the Group. In 2001, Ms. CHUNG won
the Best of Show Award for her design “Flashing” in the 2nd
Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition. She received the GIA
Diamonds Graduate title in 2004. Ms. CHUNG is an Executive
Committee Member and Vice Director of General Affairs of Hong
Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Association, a Director of the
5th Congress of Gemmological Association of Fujian, a Director
& Vice-Director of Public Relations of The Kowloon Gold Silver
And Jewel Merchants’ Staff Association and a Fellow of the
Professional Validation Centre of Hong Kong Business Sector
Limited.
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Executive Directors (Continued)

Dr. CHAN So Kuen, aged 59, the Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary of the Group, joined the Group in 2012 and
was appointed as an Executive Director of the Group in 2015.
Dr. CHAN graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and Oklahoma City University (the United States of America),
with a Doctorate Degree and a Master's Degree in Business
Administration, respectively. She is also a Fellow Member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Dr. CHAN had
been the Director of Finance & Company Secretary for around
3 years and the Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors &
Chief Executive Officer of Bossini International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 0592) for about 4 years after that during the period
from 2003 to 2010. Dr. CHAN has substantial financial and
management experiences in vast varieties of businesses for more
than 33 years. Dr. CHAN is currently responsible for the overall
financial management, corporate finance, information technology,
investor relations and company secretarial matters of the Group.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, aged 42, is the Deputy Chairman
and Non-executive Director of the Group. He is also the Chief
Executive Officer and Director of CGS. He joined the Group
as an Operations Manager in 2002. Mr. Danny WONG is an
active participant in the community and is currently a Member
of Sihui Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, a Permanent President of Sze Wui and
Kwong Ning Clansman’s Association (Hong Kong) Limited, the
President of Sihui Dasha Town Clansman’s Association (Hong
Kong), an Executive Committee Member of Diamond Federation
of Hong Kong, China Limited, a Supervisory Committee
Member of Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Association, a
Supervisory Committee Member of The Kowloon Pearls, Precious
Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants Association,
a Member of Lions Club of Sham Shui Po Hong Kong and a
Member of The Association of the Hong Kong Members of
Guangdong’s Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
Committees Limited. In December 2008, Mr. Danny WONG
received the GIA Diamond Graduate title. He is the son of Mr.
WONG Wai Sheung, the Group’s Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and Executive Director and the elder brother of Ms. WONG
Lan Sze, Nancy, Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Director of the Company.
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ESgWE

Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline, aged 52, is the co-founder of
the Group. Ms. YEUNG has over 31 years of experience in public
relations. Ms. YEUNG was the winner of Miss Hong Kong and
Miss International of Goodwill in 1987, and also the 4th Runner-
up of Miss Universe and Queen of Asia in 1988. Ms. YEUNG was
the President of the Wai Yin Association for the year 1995-1996.
She received the GIA Diamonds Graduate title in 2005.

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP, aged 72, joined the Group in 1997. He
was re-designated from an Independent Non-executive Director
to a Non-executive Director of the Company on 1 October 2011,
owing to changes in factors concerning his independence. Mr.
HUI has 48 years of experience in the securities and investment
industry. Mr. HUI had for years been serving as a Council Member
and Vice Chairman of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, a member of the Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission, a Director of the Hong Kong
Securities Clearing Company Limited, a member of the Listing
Committee of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, an
appointed member of the Securities and Futures Appeal Tribunal,
a member of Standing Committee on Company Law Reform, a
member of the Committee on Real Estate Investment Trusts of
the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission and also an
appointed member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants Investigation Panel A. Mr. HUI was appointed by the
Government of the HKSAR as a Justice of the Peace in 2004 and
was also a member of the Zhuhai Municipal Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference from 2006 to
2017. He had also been a member of Government “Appointees”
(independent member) of Appeal Panel of the Travel Industry
Council of Hong Kong. Mr. HUI also serves as Independent Non-
executive Director of Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group Limited
(Stock Code: 0908), Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1212), Gemdale Properties and Investment Corporation
Limited (Stock Code: 0535), China South City Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1668), SINOPEC Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd.
(Stock Code: 2386), Agile Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
3383) and FSE Engineering Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
0331) whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. He was an Independent Non-executive Director
of Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0711)
and Hong Kong Exchange and Clearing Limited (Stock Code:
0388) until his resignation effective from 1 February 2015 and his
retirement effective from 29 April 2015 respectively.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP, aged 62, was appointed as a
Non-executive Director of the Company in 2011. Mr. LI holds a
Diploma of Architectural Design from Humber College of Toronto,
Canada in 1981 and a Bachelor’'s of Architecture from New
York Institute of Technology in 1984. Mr. LI was awarded the
Certificate of Registration Authorized Person (List of Architects)
in 1989 and the Certificate of Registered Inspector in 2012,
by the Government of the HKSAR respectively. In professional
qualification aspect, Mr. LI is a Fellow of Hong Kong Institute of
Architects and a Member of Architect Registration Board. He also
got the PRC Class 1 Registered Architect Qualification. Mr. LI has
extensive architecture experience and is a Director of Li & Siu
Associates Ltd. and A. Li & Associates Architects Ltd. In addition,
he is a Director of Keen Mind Kindergarten. Mr. LI was appointed
as a District Council Member of Sham Shui Po District from 2000
to 2007 and awarded the Chief Executive’s Commendation For
Community Service and Medal of Honor. He was also appointed
by the Government of the HKSAR a Justice of the Peace in
2008 and was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) in 2017.
Mr. LI has been appointed to various positions over the years
including: Chairman of Sham Shui Po District Office (East Liaison
Team), Chairman of Sham Shui Po District Fire Safety Committee,
Chairman of Sham Shui Po Council for the Promotion of Cultural
and Recreation Service Limited, Chairman of Sham Shui Po
District Fight Crime Committee, Honorary President of Sham Shui
Po District Junior Police Call, Honorary President of Kowloon
City District Junior Police Call, Honorary President of Yau Tsim
District Junior Police Call, Chairman of Yau Yat Chuen Residents
Association Ltd., President of Police Dragon Boat Club and
Chartered President of Lions Club of Sham Shui Po Hong Kong.
Mr. Li is also an Independent Non-executive Director of Sheung
Yue Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1633) which is listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. TAl Kwok Leung, Alexander, aged 61, was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in 2008
and is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of
the Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Mr. TAI graduated from Victoria University of Wellington
in New Zealand with a degree in Bachelor of Commerce and
Administration in 1982 and became an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 1983. Mr.
TAI has extensive accountancy, corporate finance and investment
experience in Hong Kong and overseas. Mr. TAl is a partner of
VMS Securities Limited, a licensed corporation under the SFO
to conduct Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on
securities), Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) and Type 9
(asset management) regulated activities. Mr. TAl is an Independent
Non-executive Director of Jiayuan International Group Limited
(Stock Code: 2768), G & M Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 6038),
Shengjing Bank Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 2066) and AAG Energy
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2686) which are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also
a current member of the Shandong Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP, aged 67, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
2011 and is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company. Mr. IP graduated from The University of Hong
Kong with a degree of Social Sciences in 1973. He subsequently
pursued further studies in Oxford University and Harvard
Business School. Mr. IP joined the Hong Kong Government in
November 1973 as an Administrative Officer and had served
various government departments. Mr. IP was promoted to
the rank of Director of Bureau in April 1997. He worked in the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(the “Government of the HKSAR”) as a Principal Official from
July 1997 to June 2007. Senior positions held by Mr. IP in the
past included Commissioner of Insurance, Commissioner for
Labour, Secretary for Economic Services and Secretary for
Financial Services. Mr. IP took up the position of Secretary
for Economic Development and Labour on 1 July 2002. His
portfolio in respect of economic development covered air and sea
transport, logistics development, tourism, energy, postal services,
meteorological services, competition and consumer protection.
He was also responsible for labour policies including matters
relating to employment services, labour relations and employees’
rights. In his capacity as Secretary for Economic Development
and Labour, Mr. IP was a member of the Hong Kong Airport
Authority Board, the Mandatory Provident Fund Authority
Board, the Hong Kong International Theme Parks Company
Board as well as the Chairman of the Logistics Development
Council, Port Development Board, Maritime Industry Council and
Aviation Development Advisory Committee. Mr. IP retired from
the Government of the HKSAR in July 2007. Mr. IP received the
Gold Bauhinia Star award from the Government of the HKSAR in
2001, and is an unofficial Justice of the Peace. Mr. IP is also an
Independent Non-executive Director of China Resources Cement
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1313), Lai Sun Development
Company Limited (Stock Code: 0488), Kingboard Laminates
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1888), Nameson Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1982) and Million Cities Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 2892) which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, aged 66, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in 2012 and
is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Mr. MAK graduated from the University of Toronto with
a Bachelor of Commerce degree in 1976. He is a member of the
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. After working in Citibank
for over 26 years, Mr. MAK retired on 1 May 2012. He last served
as the Head of Markets and Banking for Citibbank Hong Kong,
being the country business manager for corporate and investment
banking business. Mr. MAK had also held various other senior
positions in Citibank including Head of Global Banking responsible
for managing all the coverage bankers. Prior to that, he also
managed the bank’s Hong Kong corporate finance business,
regional asset management business and was the Chief Financial
Officer of North Asia. Before joining Citibank in 1985, Mr. MAK
was an audit group manager at Coopers & Lybrand (now known
as PricewaterhouseCoopers). He worked for Coopers & Lybrand
for 8 years, 5 of which was in Toronto, Canada.

Mr. MAK is an Independent Non-executive Director of I.T Limited
(Stock Code: 0999), Lai Fung Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1125), Hong Kong Television Network Limited (Stock Code:
1137), Goldpac Group Limited (Stock Code: 3315) and Crystal
International Group Limited (Stock Code: 2232) which are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
Mr. MAK was admitted as a member of Hong Kong Housing
Society in May 2015 and is currently a member of its Supervisory
Board, Remuneration Committee and Special Committee on
Investment as well as the Chairman of Audit Committee.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP, aged 70, was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in 2013.
Ms. Wong is also a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Ms.
WONG had been with PricewaterhouseCoopers for over 37 years
specializing in the Mainland China tax and business advisory
services. Since 1978, she was responsible for the development
of the firm’s business in the Mainland China. Ms. WONG joined
Tricor Services Limited as a director from 2004 to 2006 after her
retirement as a partner from PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2004.
Ms. WONG is currently a member of the Dental Council of Hong
Kong. She is also a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

Ms. WONG is also an Independent Non-executive Director of
Hong Kong Ferry (Holdings) Company Limited (Stock Code:
0050), Kerry Properties Limited (Stock Code: 0683), Kerry
Logistics Network Limited (Stock Code: 0636) and SJM Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 0880), which are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. HUI King Wai, aged 69, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in 2015 and is a member
of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is a solicitor
practising in Hong Kong. Mr. HUI is currently an Of Counsel of
Locke Lord LLP. Mr. HUI was admitted the solicitor practising of
the Supreme Court of England and Wales and of the Supreme
Court of Hong Kong in 1981 and 1982 respectively. Mr. HUI was
a Non-executive Director of the Group during the period from
1999 to 2013.
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ESgWE

Senior Management

Mr. WONG Wai Tong, aged 58, is the Business Director of the
Group. He initially joined the Group in 1998 and served various
departments for over 10 years until 2013. Mr. WONG rejoined
the Group in 2014. He has over 42 years of manufacturing
and purchasing experience in jewellery and gold industry. Mr.
WONG is responsible for the Group’s merchandising and
assembly functions of diamonds and gemstones. He holds the
titles of a Diamond Grader of National Gemstone Testing Center
and a Certified Diamond Grader of HRD Antwerp Institute of
Gemmology. He is the Vice Chairman of Hong Kong Guangzhou
Nansha Association, the 6th Term Director of Guangzhou
Overseas Friendship Association, the 13th Term Chief Supervisor
of the Guangzhou Panyu Jewelry Manufacturers Association,
the 6th Term Director of Guangzhou Panyu Overseas Friendship
Association, a Director of Guangzhou Diamond Exchange, the
12th Term Director of Guangzhou Panyu District Chamber of
Commerce (Chamber) and the 3rd Term Director of Guangzhou
Nansha District Chamber of Commerce (Chamber). Mr.
WONG was the 2nd Term Member of the Guangzhou Nansha
District Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference and the 3rd Term Director of Guangzhou
Panyu District Overseas Exchange Association. Mr. WONG is the
brother of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, the Group’s Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director.

Ms. WONG So Kuen, aged 57, is the Deputy Financial Controller
of the Group. Ms. WONG joined the Group in 1997. She is mainly
responsible for accounting, finance and tax planning matters of
the Group. Ms. WONG often travels to Mainland China in search
of information on national tax policies and privileges in order to
develop relevant tax plans for the Group. She has over 33 years of
experience in financial and accounting for commercial firms.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESgWE

Details of the retirement scheme operated by the Group are set
out in Note 31 to the financial statements.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
AGM have service contracts with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which are not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The fees and other emoluments of directors are determined
by reference to industry norm and market conditions, with
discretionary bonus on performance awarded to executive
directors.

Save as disclosed in Note 37 to the financial statements, no other
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company, its subsidiaries
or its holding company was a party, and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the Year
under review.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the Year under review.
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ESgWE

As at 31 March 2019, save as disclosed below, none of the
directors and chief executives of the Company had interests and
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which
(@) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (b) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange:

MR2019F3A31H R N XIFEFTEE I NARIE
BERESTBA BBEE R AR B 5 (T 2] 47 B
FE(EER (BHERBPEIEN) ([FH K
B ) EXVER) Z 1D - FHE R D K ([E
A (IR IE RS R B E G B 35215 8 T A
FEERARZARFT L B RO SR IBEZ BB A L
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Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the ZH2ATFIRGREMBRBZIFE:
Company:
Number of Ordinary Shares
FERSE
Beneficiary Controlled Beneficial Total % of
Name of Director Owner Spouse  Corporation of Trust Interest Shares
Expa EQmEA [ E2EEE FEERRA EREE (RPESL
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung 7,044,561 454,000 240,868,176 1,511,050 249,877,787 (L) 42.56%
BERELE note () note (b) note (c)
i 7 (@) P& (o) M EE(c)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen 433,344 240,868,176 241,301,520 (L) 41.10%
Bl iR note (d)
A EE ()
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy 522,000 1,511,050 2,033,050 (L) 0.35%
"EEFIT note (c)
5t ()
Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping 267,865 267,865 (L) 0.05%
Skt
Dr. CHAN So Kuen 120,000 5,000 125,000 (L) 0.02%
BREEEL note (€)
MiEE(e)
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny 360,000 1,511,050 1,871,050 (L) 0.32%
EEELE note (c)
5t ()
Mr. LI Hon Hung 837,437 70,000 907,437 (L) 0.15%
TEHERE note (7
MEE(

(L) Long position 72
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Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company: (Continued)

Note (a)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung’s spouse, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, held 454,000 shares of the
Company.

Note (b)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung was a discretionary beneficiary of the WONG'’s Family Trust
(the “Trust”). The Trust was the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of
Kwai Kee Cheung Jewellery & Goldsmith Company Limited which controlled over
one-third of the voting power of Luk Fook (Control) Limited. Accordingly, Mr. WONG
Wai Sheung, together with others, collectively controlled (directly or indirectly) over
one-half of the voting power of Luk Fook (Control) Limited and was deemed to be
interested in 234,185,672 shares held by Luk Fook (Control) Limited in the Company.

In addition, the directors of Dragon King Investment Ltd. are accustomed to act in
accordance with the directions of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and the others, and thus
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung was deemed to be interested in 6,682,504 shares held by
Dragon King Investment Ltd. in the Company. Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, together with
others, collectively controlled (directly or indirectly) over 30% of the voting power of
Dragon King Investment Ltd..

Note (c)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy and Mr.
WONG Ho Lung, Danny, were discretionary beneficiaries of the Trust. The Trust was
the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of Kwai Kee Cheung Jewellery
& Goldsmith Company Limited which in turn was the beneficial owner of 1,511,050
shares of the Company.

Note (d)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, together with others, collectively controlled (directly
or indirectly) over one-half of the voting power of Luk Fook (Control) Limited.
Accordingly, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen was deemed to be interested in 234,185,672
shares held by Luk Fook (Control) Limited in the Company.

In addition, the directors of Dragon King Investment Ltd. are accustomed to act in
accordance with the directions of Mr. TSE Moon Chuen and the others, and thus Mr.
TSE Moon Chuen was deemed to be interested in 6,682,504 shares held by Dragon
King Investment Ltd. in the Company. Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, together with others,
collectively controlled (directly or indirectly) over 30% of the voting power of Dragon
King Investment Ltd..

Note (e)

Dr. CHAN So Kuen'’s spouse, Mr. LO Kwing Chi, held 5,000 shares of the Company.

Note (f)

Mr. LI Hon Hung’s spouse, Ms. Irene Li, held 70,000 shares of the Company.

FOFRMRARKGZEE: (M)

5% (a)

HEB A2 RBRERTE 2 T355454,00008 KA & ©

I 3% ()

HEPARERERREET([ER)ZE2RZRAZIE
%Fﬂ RERESTERARZHEBITRAZEZES

EHINE (ZER)BRARBRB=9 2 — 18 Z# -FHit-
ﬁ@%‘f‘ai@ﬂﬁ\ﬁﬁ/\t L) (B ki) e hl N m (45
R)BRARBB—FRER TR ARE (FR) BR
R AEAE 2234,185,6720 AR BN A

AN BEBREBRATNEFENRBEEER SERAEM
ALHESTE ALEREAERRANEEREBRA
AlFE A #96,682,504% A 2 & A 0 EPT;&E%&%HE%‘?’:E
HERHEMATHRE (R EED) EGHETREERR
H8B30% R -

M5k (c)

EEEAE BERERLT SRS IREEELSEARER
ZEEZHEAN HEAAETHERESTARAREHDE
TRAZERER A Mz AR RIAE1,511,0500 48 A &R
BZESHEEA

M (d)

S EEREMA TR (EhEs M) 1267548 (%
) BRARBRE —FREE- A WM EEERER
NE (ER) BIRA BB 2234,185,672/% AN A B I (0 AR
B

o BEBEREBBRATNEBEFENBBRI ML EREM
ALTHIESTTE AHREEEMRAREEREERA

RI#5H 96,682,504k A R BRI R AR - MBS E
EREMATHE (BEESEED) EHEEREGRAA
t O%TXT*EO

M5 (e)

BREZ B £ 2 Be 4B S 40 75 55 AL #565,00008 A 12 B iR 15 ©
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EESRE

So far as is known to the directors and chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 March 2019, save as disclosed below, no
person, other than a director or chief executive of the Company,
had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which are required to be disclosed to the

BFF

A

Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of & °

the SFO.

Name of Shareholder

BERE &R

Mr. CHAN Wai
RERE

Mr. LEE Shu Kuan
(Deceased on 14 July 2011)
FhEmELE
(2011 7 A14 BEHt)

Luk Fook (Control) Limited
R (ER)ERR

Silchester International Investors LLP
Commonwealth Bank of Australia
Silchester International Investors

International Value Equity Trust

() Long position #7 &

Number of
Shares

kA

3,799,022 (1)
240,868,176 (L)
(note (a))

(Pt (a))
6,370,229 (L)
243,454,800 (L)
(notes (a), (b)
and (c))
(I5x@) (b)
%)

234,185,672 (L)
76,420,600 (1)
47,056,000 (L)

29,402,600 (L)

Capacity
v

Beneficial Owner
ERfAA
Controlled Corporation
XL

Beneficial Owner
ERfAA
Controlled Corporation
XL

Beneficial Owner
EaBEEA

Investment Manager
REKE

Investment Manager
REKE

Investment Manager
REKE

BEELE

B = 1

F2ME3D EE

Total
Interest
Eaua

244,667,198 (L)

249,825,029 (L)

234,185,672 (1)

76,420,600 (L)

47,056,000 (L)

29,402,600 (L)

R2019F3A31H R TN XUIFEE I AR F]
BITHRABRE #MEEMIERAR
THABZ ANLETRARABRRGN &
EERD S HERIEE S R E GG EXVED
XA AR BB 2 S 50k

% of Shares
BB

41.67%

42.55%

39.89%

13.02%

8.01%

5.01%
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Note (a)

Mr. CHAN Wai and the administrator of Mr. LEE Shu Kuan, together with others,
collectively controlled (directly or indirectly) over one-half of the voting power of Luk
Fook (Control) Limited and were deemed to be interested in 234,185,672 shares
held by Luk Fook (Control) Limited in the Company.

In addition, the directors of Dragon King Investment Ltd. are accustomed to act in
accordance with the directions of Mr. CHAN Wai, the administrator of Mr. Lee Shu
Kwan and the others, and thus Mr. CHAN Wai, the administrator of Mr. Lee Shu
Kwan and the others were deemed to be interested in the 6,682,504 shares held by
Dragon King Investment Ltd. in the Company. Mr. CHAN Wai and the administrator
of Mr. LEE Shu Kuan, together with others, collectively controlled (directly or
indirectly) over 30% of the voting power of Dragon King Investment Ltd..

Note (b)

The administrator of Mr. LEE Shu Kuan held 33.3% of the entire issued share capital
of Wah Hang Kimon Investments Limited which in turn held 630,624 shares of the
Company.

Note (c)

The administrator of Mr. LEE Shu Kuan held 51% of the entire issued share capital
of Wah Hang Kimon Holdings Limited which in turn held 1,956,000 shares of the
Company.

The related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the Year under review as disclosed in Note 37 to the financial
statements do not constitute connected transactions under the
Listing Rules.

At no time during the Year under review was the Company, its
subsidiaries, its associated companies, its fellow subsidiaries, or
its parent company or its other associated corporation a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors and the chief executive
of the Company (including their spouse and children under 18
years of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its
specified undertakings or other associated corporations.

5t (a)

BREXERTHEBEENBEEEEA EREMALTHRA
(A EE)ZERINE (ER)BRARBRA—FIRE
1 B R AR E (IR AR 2Q R # A #)234,185,672/%
ARNRBDFHEERERS -

HEON - BEEIRABR A AN E S ERIBRIERRE &4 - T
EEMBEETEAREMBALNESITSE  HtBELE -
THHTENEEEBEARREMATHRAREERER
R A B 196,682,504 A R RII 0 R B AE 2k o BR1Z &
EREHMEENBEEEEA BREMALTHRE (HEEX
) I HIBEE IR B B R A Al BR30% 1% =i o

B 3% (o)

FHHMEANEEEEARAESRLREARAAZIE
BITIRARH)33.3%  MET WL R EHR AR RIFFE630,624
A& AR BIRRAD ©

M5t ()

FHEMEANEEEEARAESRLIERARAFAZIE
BATIRAH)S51%  MEZ WL RAR A R RIFFH 1,956,000
A& AR BIRRAD ©

RS RER M ST AT R EA K BN BB F EANR]
VZBBEALZRS WA EK EWARRIET
BB G e

REBEFEANERRRE AAF - HHERR -
HBERA REMBARKB AR EM
BB ZEMENSRELTHNEP T &
FEARANEZERERITHRAR (BRARLS
FABBRIA T FR) e B AR A AR R
S HE M BMEAE 2D - AHRR AR K ERE
HRRESSORE

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EESRE

As at 31 March 2019, the aggregate amount of financial 2019438318 ANEBE A —REE Q7 K&
assistance to an affiliated company and its wholly-owned EZ2&MBRAAIRE MG EHEFERB LT
subsidiaries by the Group exceeded 8% of the assets ratios as (R BIFE14.07(WIEFT R TR EELL K 28% ° &~
defined in Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules. Details of advances S B AZBHBE AR NEZENE R M 2 IE
(including guarantee given by the Group) which were non-trading Z S M &R (BENEEIRME ZBR) 2515
in nature, made by the Group to the affiliated company and its  Z1°T :

wholly-owned subsidiaries were as follows:

Extent of

Corporate

Relationship Corporate Guarantee

Name of Company with the Group Advances Guarantee Utilised

BEAATH

~E)RE BEEEZRAE 2% LFEIHEE ERE

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET FHET

China Gold Silver Group Company Associated company 100,000 - -

Limited (“CGS”)

PRESREEFRAR ([FESR]) - l/NE

3D-GOLD Jewellery (HK) Limited (Note) Associated company - 1,075,000 917,000
SERERE (FB)ARAA (M) i /N]

Note: 3D-GOLD Jewellery (HK) Limited is a subsidiary of CGS. 5T 2ZESKE (B58) BRARATRESIRZMELAF -

Pursuant to Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules, the consolidated — 1R#E_ET AR AIZE13.221&  IES AL B E B
balance sheet of CGS with financial assistance from the Group ZHBESEZEAEEABREAEENRE
and the Group’s attributable interest in CGS as at the latest A]77BHIE(GR E SR 2 WBENTHHRE
practical date are disclosed in Note 19 of the financial statement.  HJz£19 ©
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ESgWE

During the Year under review and up to the date of this report, the
Company has in force indemnity provisions as permitted under
the relevant statutes for the benefit of the Directors (including
former Directors) of the Company or its associated companies.
The permitted indemnity provisions are provided for in the
Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors and officers liability
insurance maintained for the Group in respect of potential liability
and costs associated with legal proceedings that may be brought
against such Directors.

During the Year under review, the percentages of sales for the
year attributable to the Group’s major customers are as follows:

The largest customer BAEP
Five largest customers combined hEEABEPEET

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had interest in the major customers
noted above.

The percentages of purchases for the Year under review
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

The largest supplier BAHER
Five largest suppliers combined SN A

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had interest in the major suppliers noted
above.

Particulars of bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings of the
Group as at 31 March 2019 are set out in Notes 32 and 33 to the
financial statements.

REEFEARBEARSBHRL AAF
BEBZERN A BAUNARRHEAHE
RAEF (BRAES) B ARNBER
BESFBERXHNREHRARAZ QA
A NAERAKREREERERITBRAERREE
METRRA BRAREARESNEETMER
BEEEDERFRMELAEERMIELAEE-

REEFERN AEBTEXFMEFAHEE
BzBADLIMT:

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
0.5% 2.9%
2.4% 5.6%

SEF WEZHRALIEEEHAHES
DTSR IR AR - A F i
BRF 2 Ml-

REBEFERN AEETEHERPMGRBER
ZBEDLIT

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T
28.6% 23.9%
71.6% 67.5%

BEE REZHBBATHBEESAAEER
RAS%IA LA Z AL IR B A bt
ZHEmE oS-

REBMN2019F3A31B ZHRITER EX R
HEEFBHN Y B REM T32/%33 -
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There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws although there are no restrictions against
such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

The register of members of the Company for the AGM will be
closed from 19 August 2019 to 22 August 2019, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for attendance at the AGM to
be held on 22 August 2019, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 16 August 2019.

The register of members of the Company for the final dividend will
also be closed on 28 August 2019 and no transfer of shares will
be registered on that day. In order to qualify for the final dividend,
all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on 27 August 2019.

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group
is based on their merit, qualifications and competence. The
emoluments of the directors are reviewed and determined by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics. No director, or any of his or her associates involved in
deciding his or her own remuneration.

The Company had 9.41% interest in Hong Kong Resources
Holdings Co. Ltd. (‘HKRH") as at 31 March 2019. HKRH is listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

As at 31 March 2019, Ms. WONG Hau Yeung and Mr. WONG
Ho Lung, Danny who were directors of the Company, were
also directors of China Gold Silver Group Company Limited, a
subsidiary of HKRH. Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and Mr. TSE Moon
Chuen who were directors of the Company held certain shares in
HKRH, were also considered as having an interest in HKRH under
Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

ARBz AR ESHINERELEREREZ
FRE - ME B R IEADI S % SR W ER B -

MBERBFREHE AR A ER2019F8 A
198 £201948A22H (HEMARXBRFEAEAN)E
FHRERNDBEFELFE - BFRERLER
R2019F8A22H BT R BFRKE 1A
WP X HER A R E&EER2019F8H16
A T F4B300 RIRXEARRIZEBRMDBE
BREEBPRABELELEARAR  itAE
BT 2 E KB RI1835EA M O7E1712-
1716% ©

TARHREME AR I R20199F8 A28
AEEREROBEFERLFE - AHAERE
BREKRE FEBFPXHEREBRERE
JARN201998 A27 H T 48300 BI K EA QT
ZEBRNBPFERER ST ABFELER
AR M AEEET 2/F KBE183% A M
L711712-1716F »

AEEREZFHMBRIIENEEZRR &
BN EFzFMEaFHEESRLENR
NEZEEXRE ARRERBRLAELED
BB MR REE -SRI EFREEM
BMBAT2HEEFEAS ZHH-

R2019F3A31H AR RN EBERIZRAE
AR ([BEERER]) P EE.41%H)#E
o BBERIERMNEEZATER £ -

201953 A31A - ARRIEETHE LT &
BERAEETRBEEERERMBRARTESE
REBERAANEZ -ARAEETERTE
ERSRELELRERSERIEBRNE T
7 BURIE £ R BIFE8. 101K K F IR 3
REBERERIGAER -
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The retail and franchising operations for selling gold and jewellery
products carried on by HKRH and its subsidiaries (‘HKRH Group”)
constitute competing businesses of the Group. As the Company
and HKRH were separate listed entities and run by separate and
independent management teams, the directors of the Company
believed that the Company was capable of carrying on its
business independently of the HKRH Group.

For safeguarding the interests of the Group, the independent
non-executive directors and the Audit Committee of the Company
would on a regular basis review the business and operational
results of the Group to ensure, inter alia, that the Group’s
development of retail, wholesale and licensing operations for
selling gold and jewellery products are and continue to be run on
the basis that they are independent of, and at arm’s length from,
the business of the HKRH Group.

Save as disclosed as aforesaid and in this report, none of the
directors of the Company and their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had an interest in any business which
competed or might compete with the business in which the
Group is engaged.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to shareholders by reason of their holdings of the
Company’s securities.

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its directors as at the date of this Annual
Report, the public float of shares in the Company has remained
above the minimum percentage required by the Stock Exchange
throughout the year.

The financial statements of the Group for the Year under review
have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

By order of the Board,
WONG Wai Sheung
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

The consolidated financial statements of Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 136 to 260, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2019;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.
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In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

BRE ZEEEVERRCBREDBGRT
MAgEme (BEMISREEL) EEmT
BitkKE T SEBEN2019F3A31HHELERE
MEMRRAREBEZA L FENGAPERR
MGARERE YOIRBES (RaHEN)
BB TR E L B -

RPCREZESHASRMN (BAE
BRI EITER - HPIEZFEA T RENE
EEAEARRE [ZBEN R E 76 P I RR &
MR 880 P IR — P M-

HAIEIE - RPIPTESHETREETEIE
BRI ETE R ER

RIEFBEMAGHEMH (FXGHEIERE
SPRD (AT PRI - RAIBIR EF

IS8

B WEETTAFMEMBERERR T

RREAFESRERMNEXHE  REY
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Key audit matter identified in our audit relates to existence and
valuation of inventories.

Key Audit Matter
FRE®EER

Existence and valuation of inventories

FRZFEMREEE

Refer to note 3.10, 5(@) and 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FLHEGE VB RENFESA0 5@ k24 o

The carrying value of inventories of the Group is HK$9,322 million
as at 31 March 2019. The Group’s inventories mainly comprised
of gold, platinum and gem-set jewellery products in the stores,
manufacturing facilities and distribution centres. Valuation of
inventories is at lower of cost or net realisable value. Significant
portion of value at cost includes cost of precious metals and
gems which are subject to the risk of changes in market value.
The assessment of net realisable value of inventories is based
on estimates and judgements by management in respect
of, amongst others, the economic condition, forecast sales
performance, marketability of products and the forecast market
price of precious metals and gems used to make the jewellery
products. Furthermore, there is a higher inherent risk of theft
and pilferage given the high intrinsic value and portable nature of
individual inventory item.

M201963HA31H  EEE 7 E#/ERME £9,322,000,0007
e BREEGEFEAEEH £EREESHPLNESR
HeRKREBEEHER FENRKABSATERFEME IR
REME KAAERBRITDRESERIKREKAE il ZFKAK
EXMEZPER FENFERFEREEESR (BT EE)
BBEARR  FEHHERR EmAEHEEAR R EREGHEMR
PAARE S B MIRE N TEHT B et R I BT E TR - shoh
BERFENNEEESSRAERELE CHFERSHER
R

BAEETTRANARETFARTELTF
EHEREEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
EMEANMAEERBEAE=R

Our audit procedures to test the physical
existence of inventories mainly consist of
evaluating and testing the relevant internal
control procedures, in particular, we:
HIFEETEDRAR BRANETEFEE
BEME AR EGREOAEIEGIRZT LEZ
21

(i) attended a selection of daily physical
cycle counts in stores throughout the year
to observe the daily count procedures
performed in retail outlets;

() EFAEEEMHHSNEHNTAEEYR
iRi2  UEBRTEENTABRERT

(i) inspected the respective daily physical
cycle counts reports for reconciliation of
daily ending inventories to the record in
the inventory system;

(i) BHEENTEEMREBERERE UK

BHEXERRFEATERRCHE
TTHER:

@iy inspected the in-house and external
gemological appraisal or laboratory
reports on the authenticity of gold,
platinum and gem-set jewellery products.

(i) WMERNIFRINEE=FEBE=EL HER
REEHERETCHNARBETHHIERR

==

Furthermore, we attended the annual physical
inventory counts at year end date and
performed “two-way” sample count procedures
in a selected sample of stores, manufacturing
facilities and distribution centres of the Group.
We compared our sample count results with
the counts performed by the Group and the
records in the inventory system.

o BRMELNFEBNEFFEEDR
BoWY BEXEEES FERERDHEFO
HEEIT (€A ] Ko ERT - B2
BEMNERRE SEEETHREREFERR
HECERIESLL
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Key Audit Matter

MEEEHER

The above, in combination with the inventories contributing to a
significant portion of total assets of the Group, made us conclude
that existence and valuation of inventories as a key audit matter
of our audit.

MR L Mz FERK EXEREENEARLS A
b HABEEE 2 FEMEREEEIERMEA SO EEEL
FIE-

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
EMnEMMERRBENFR

We also selected samples of gem-set jewellery,
comprising items of different nature, aging
profiles and price for gemmological appraisal
carried out by independent gemmologist
engaged by the Group to verify their
authenticity and assess their conditions and
valuations. We have evaluated the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the gemmologist
and obtained an understanding of the scope of
work and the terms of engagement.

BAMBESHKREGthitkm (PHEEBERE
AEOER SR LER) B EEEZRED
BYBORFETHREN G UZEEAEENR
MEHEERA R GE - B HBEAZERNT
fe Re W REBIMEL G R TESE

REB G-

In evaluating management’s assessment of net
realisable value and provision of inventories, we:
L E R E S & #5353 E LB EATERT
HRBIRF - FM:

(i) compared the net realisable values of
gold and platinum inventories calculated
based on the current market price of
precious metals with their purchase or
production costs;

) HBREBENTEFENES MBS
FEAZRFEEEBEREERALE
TTH B
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Key Audit Matter

MEEEHER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
EMnEMMERRBENFR

(i) obtained an understanding of
management’s processes for the
identification of slow moving gem-
set jewellery products and assessed
the basis adopted by management
for determining the inventory provision
with reference to, amongst others, the
market price movement of the materials,
the aging profile and the historical sales
pattern and the subsequent selling prices
of these products.

iy HHEEEAETIHREGMNEDNHE
AR W2E(EFBE)ZFERY
MEITTESE B8 RUTHEREAUR
ZRERE HEEBRANGTEREET
EENNPAFEAS -

@iy compared the results of independent
gemmological appraisal report of
selected samples above to the cost
of gem-set jewellery in evaluating the
sufficiency of inventory provision made by
management.

(i) MIEEREMEFERBREATER
B EX AR ERARE B L RENE
WEERARE R ARETHER

Based on the procedures performed, we found
that the physical existence of inventories, as
well as the estimates and judgement made by
management in respect of the net realisable
value of inventories, are supportable by the
available evidence.

ERRTHREF BHAEREENEDEEL
NREBERFER IR EEL G R
RS EIEC =0 E SR T
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

BERmESFAHEMERRE HUESERE
FHRANAEELR BIEEEEHBHRER
AT BRAD 3RS -
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DK 4t A
EEEwme
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ISR A M B RANERT  RANEET
%EEEE,HPMZ oY ELBES  EREME
EREEGEMHRRIRMERTBRET T
THRNBEAFEERRBRELUFFEEAR
MR BN

EREMSHITHOITIE QD%ﬁﬂiﬁ?ﬂ% LA {5
BRFEEAMEREL RMFTEREZFE-
FEEE ﬁﬁﬁaﬁ&ﬂ#&if’

ERFEFAAEREBEEESTMAS RGN
(BEEVBRELER) REE (REED) &
REMRTHREEEMPBNGESMBRE L
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

BRMBER RAGEVBHRRERES T
FERRNRGFEERM BB EXBRRADGF
BEAE W HEABEREMARERASEE RS
HIPHER IR B RE1981F (R FVE) F90Mk
M AT (FRER)RSERMANER itz
SN ERIEEAD B ) R T ERARER
AEEEREMALTE ESAREREE-&
BRE R SKFHRE  BAERERR (B
BEATERD ETHES  ERX -ERERR
AAF AR AR RE B IR - S5 AR PR AL ] DAy BRFF Sk 8B
M5l IR & IR TR B © P B8 JE X fE AR R SR AT
EFEZTREVBERREMEREZERA
BT 3R P F K O RBDRSE - BIA B #8 AR R
AIRAREER -

ERE (FRBEER) ETRHBES
BFERTERAE RETEXRREER-
BAPIIR -

o HEBIMFHEBENRFAERMETEE
MR FEEAHREUANER - 515
KBITEREFARE E LR - AN
BREMEENEDERE (EREMER
MERE - MR FF AT AR R B AR R
ERER  ERRA - FORE R A B
Z L FREERRAEAMFFMEHHEAN
R BRUR B R S A R BE B IR SR AR
BHEEAHERRA A E R

o THREFHEBMARNINES URHEE
E5ER

MEEF BEMALIEE BEREA
ZHINBREERER -
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

e HEEFHMRASTERNBEERE
SRHERT AR M EN S BT -

s HEERMAKELESTERNRKREN
1L A - IRIBPTERM BETERE - BT
EEFERFHABRABABNEANTE
M WMAREEEY BRENREL
ERRNELERRE -WRBMRBR/EFE
BEATHEEN  AA B EEZBERE S
REBEEAFEIBHRAMBRERTNEE
BE-REFBEEETE RIBRMAEEHE
FIFEFREBR - RAINEREERNZE
Bh¥RE B LT EVS A EFHERRE - A - R
KEENBENAIGEEH BERETRER

2=y A
B o

o  FHERAYMBHmRNERII®RSN BB
MAR (BREEE) ARGEEMBHRE
EERERBRBBEISHMEER-

e Bt BEEERNERIEHKIDHNUBE
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EYBHRRERER R EREE
BT BE B RTT - RPIATRT B R A
AT

BREMEERIN RPIRESRZEGERTE
METEE - BETH EXENTRRS B
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Yuen Kwok Kin Andrew.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019

BFEAEZZESRRIER SHARMEH
SRBBLMEMERERERESR WM
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Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other (losses)/gains, net

Operating profit

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance (cost)/income, net
Share of results of associates
Profit before income tax
Income tax expenses

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share for profit
attributable to equity holders of
the Company during the year
Basic

Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated

financial statements.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S

Note
M FE

A 6
fHE KA 8
EF
H A A 7
HEMDIHER
THREA
Hitbh (BE), S F58
42 K|
NG ON
5 E A
% (BA) WA FHE 10
i /N 19
bR FT1S T RD R A
FriSHiAx 11
F N Al
FEAT & :

KRRIEZFEA

FEFE A% HE 25
FARQNGEZREA

i d 2 SR &R

HAR 12

g 12

BEM B 3E A

= A
A

2019
HK$’000
FER

15,859,990
(11,826,154)

4,033,836
278,197
(2,231,871)
(210,775)
(16,345)

1,853,042

30,053
(34,253)

(4,200)
(42,479)
1,806,363
(302,708)
1,503,655

1,492,747
10,908

1,503,655

HK$2.5478 T
HK$2.5478 T

2018
HK$'000
TATT
14,578,409
(10,837,032)

3,741,377
183,364
(2,150,937)
(166,581)
13,583

1,620,806

28,022
(6,392)

22,530
(29,897)
1,613,439
(243,125)
1,370,314

1,369,393
921

1,370,314

HK$2.337 7T
HK$2.337 7T

M BmER—AED o



Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

ltems that may be reclassified to
profit or loss

Currency translation differences:
— Group
— Associates

Revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets

lterns that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss

Revaluation of financial assets at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

Remeasurements of employee benefit
obligations

Other comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Attributable to:
— Equity holders of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated

financial statements.

Note
Bt
F 1R
H At 2 E A -

REAEERENAEE

Rz HEH
P ERR

—A%HE

— BN A 19
ARHESREEN

EEZ 22

RETQENEE
1B a9IE B
BRSERAEAM
ZEBAZ
CREEEES 22
BEBMEEHNENTE
31

FREM2EBA

FARAZEABKA

NI ALREL
—RNAFEEF A A
—FEPER M

B B PR R A4

2019
HK$’000
FER

1,503,655

(300,872)
(11,835)

(2,941)

(1,767)

(317,415)

1,186,240

1,178,322

7,918
1,186,240

M ImERN—F

2018
HK$'000
FET
1,370,314

396,943
12,478

(1,615)

16,646

424,452

1,794,766

1,789,668

5,098
1,794,766

=

5
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ASSETS
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Land use rights
Investment properties
Interests in associates
Loan to an associate

Derivative financial instrument

Available-for-sale financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Trading licence

Non-current deposits and

prepayments

Deferred income tax assets

Current assets
Inventories
Right of return assets
Trade receivables

Deposits, prepayments and

other receivables

Amount due from an associate

Loan to an associate

Derivative financial instruments

Income tax recoverable

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable
to the equity holders of

the Company
Share capital
Share premium
Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S

gE

ERENEE
E RN E
T b A
KEME
REEE R TZEEE
ERT—FKEERA
PTESBTA
AHEEERERE
BRAREF AHAM

ZEHWRAZEHEE

T HHIR
IEMENIE S RIE KIA

FIEFTSREE

MENEE
5B
REIEER R
H ZEWERIE
ZE FERNRER

E h fE U AR TE

U — KB A R BR IR
ERT—XBE QA
TESRMIA
B qER ey
e MIRTTHES

HRE

e

FLFIRERFAA
B RER M

B
B153i 8
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IR af
AR

Note
B 5

16
17
18
19
20
21
22

22

23
30

24
2.2
25

23
19
20
21

26

28(a
28(b

)

=

As at 31 March

#3A31H
2019
HK$’000
T#ER

951,782
483,131
311,716
13,279
99,208

3,134
1,080

105,101
54,643

2,023,074

9,321,522
85,897
362,675

474,014
3,078

56,219
10,571
2,086,522

12,400,498
14,423,572

58,710
2,494,040
7,964,520
10,517,270
45,646

10,562,916

2018
HK$’000
TAETT

547,659
273,019
35,810
67,593
94,927
50,782
6,075

1,080

212,167
47,114

1,336,226

7,991,727

359,796

364,765
13,173
43,190

8,134
2,097,867

10,878,652
12,214,878

58,710
2,494,040
7,482,019

10,034,769
44,968

10,079,737



As at 31 March

»3A31H
2019 2018
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
M RE THET FET
LIABILITIES &\
Non-current liabilities ERBDAR
Deferred income tax liabilities FEIEFTISTRAE 30 133,690 100,714
Employee benefit obligations BE®AEME 31 10,823 8,237
144,513 108,951
Current liabilities mBAR
Trade payables, other payables B S REMIRIE - HAth
and accruals JETBR 18 K BT FR0A 27 975,840 1,125,453
Contract liabilities AHEE 2.2 122,502 =
Derivative financial instrument TESMITA 21 3,929 =
Sales refund liabilities HERNAR 2.2 155,768 =
Amount due to an associate e — R & A FBRIA 19 2,715 3,555
Bank borrowings RITEN 32 1,855,224 415,000
Gold loans =5E2EE 33 450,889 311,283
Current income tax liabilities BNERFTS R a & 149,276 170,899
3,716,143 2,026,190
Total liabilities Bk 3,860,656 2,135,141
Total equity and liabilities ReErRafEEsE 14,423,572 12,214,878

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the 4RA KRR TIHEEEN2019F6 27 Bt
Board of Directors on 27 June 2019 and were signed on its JEW&EH FIEERERES -
behalf.

Wong Wai Sheung Chan So Kuen
HER FR%®18
Director Director

= EFE

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated — B&Fff i s+ B4r & B BRI —2 5 °
financial statements.

Annual Report 2018/19 E#i



For the year ended

31 March 2018
At 1 April 2017
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Remeasurements of employee
benefit obligations

Currency translation differences

Revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets

Total other comprehensive
income

Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners

Dividends paid

Acquisition of additional equity
interest in a subsidiary from
a non-controlling interest

At 31 March 2018

# E201853A31H
LERE
R2017F4A1R
2EYA

F R

X2 EMA
ERER AN
B R
EXER
G S BAED
BEZ

K2 TN

2EABA

BERAZZS
EREE

B IR KB
—RH B AR
BINEA B

K201853A31H

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Share
capital
AR
HK$'000
FET

58,710

58,710

ARAEEREAEMN
Share

premium Reserves

W 1n s B L

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TET

(Note 29)

(Fft & 29)

2,494,040 6,320,600

- 1,369,393

- 16,646

- 405,244

- (1,615)

- 420,275

- 1,789,668

- (645,8198)

- 17,569

2,494,040 7,482,019

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S

Non-
controlling
Subtotal interests
Nt IEERER
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
8,873,350 106,590
1,369,393 921
16,646 -
405,244 4,177
(1,615) -
420,275 4,177
1,789,668 5,098
(645,818) -
17,569 (66,720)
10,034,769

Total
equity
Tk
HK$'000
FET

8,979,940

1,370,314

16,646
409,421

(1,619)

424,452

1,794,766

(645,818)

(49,151)

44,968 10,079,737



For the year ended
31 March 2019

As at 31 March 2018

Change in accounting policies
(Note 2.2)

Restated total equity as at
1 April 2018

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Remeasurements of employee
benefit obligations

Currency translation differences

Revaluation of financial assets
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Total other comprehensive
income

Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners

Dividends paid

Dividend paid to a non-controlling
shareholder

Acquisition of additional equity
interest in a subsidiary from
a non-controlling interest

At 31 March 2019

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated

financial statements.

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Share
capital
Bz
HK$’000
FE&T

B ¥20193A31H
ILEE
7201843 A31H
SRR E S
(P3E2.2) -
R2018F4A1H K E7)
Tz
2@EKA

F A5 7l -
Hi2EERA
EERAFEEH

B E -
[E X =% -
BAREFAEMEE
WAZEREER

EEZ -

Htt2EAKA

58,710

58,710

2ERKA -

BEBAZXS
ERRE =
7 — & JE R BR
PIRELES) -
EE eyl g
—HKMB AR
BONR AR -

720193 H31H 58,710

FLAFEBHEARMG
Share
premium Reserves  Subtotal
Bi&RE o it
HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000
FE&T FET FET
(Note 29)
(P&E 29)
2,494,040 7,482,019 10,034,769
- (50,003) (50,003)
2,494,040 7,432,016 9,984,766
- 1,492,747 1,492,747
- (1,767) (1,767)
- (309,717)  (309,717)
- (2,941) (2,941)
- (314,425) (314,425)
- 1,178,322 1,178,322
- (645,818) (645,818)
2,494,040 7,964,520 10,517,270

Non-
controlling Total
interests equity
FHEEREE HIEH
HK$000  HK$'000
FHET FET
44,968 10,079,737
- (50,003)
44,968 10,029,734
10,908 1,503,655
- (1,767)
(2,990) (312,707)
- (2,941)
(2,990) (317,415)
7,918 1,186,240
- (645,818)
(5,944) (5,944)
(1,296) (1,296)

45,646 10,562,916

BEPMH FERER A BB mMERN — & -
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Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash generated from operations
Hong Kong profits tax paid
Overseas income taxes paid

Net cash (used in)/generated
from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property,
plant and equipment
Prepayment for purchase of
property, plant and equipment
Purchases of land use right
Purchases of investment properties
Decrease in short-term bank
deposits, with maturities
over 3 months
Interest received
Loan repayment from/(advanced to)
an associate
Proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from bank borrowings
Proceeds from gold loans with
cash settlement

Repayment of bank borrowings

Repayment of gold loans with
cash settlement

Interest on bank borrowings and
gold loans

Dividends paid

Dividend paid to non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary

Note
B 5

2EEHCRERE

BEEL R GFE 34
ENEENEH
2B INTSH

LEEY (A EEZ

R FE

REEDZHRERE

BEWE BELEERE
16

BEDE BEEREZ

B HIA
BB HEME 17
BEREME 18
FHEEE=EAN

FEERRTT I BUR

EHFIE
PN
& ()
TEUEN 191
BB

KREEBMACHESFR
BELRBZIREARE

RITERAEHIA
NEEEER
BEREEMREHIA
%

EERITER
BEAR S HEEK

= (H S
EoEE

RITEHRK
BELEEMNE
EMRE
7] Ff /8§ 2 =)
FEPE Bt R 5 AR

Acquisition of non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary

Net cash generated from/(used in)

financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash

equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April

Exchange differences
Cash and cash equivalents

at 31 March

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S

WEB B AR
FEIE PR 2s

BEFE

& ANFRR

P4A1EZIRE M

ReEED

PE 3 = FE
R3ABIAZHE REAEE

BY)

RekBeHFEMZ

MEEHEE (FTA)Z

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated
financial statements.

26

2019
HK$’000
TEx

188,325
(104,680)
(196,641)

(112,996)

(647,445)

(239,472)
(46,694)

197,808
32,368
43,190

3,850
(656,395)

2,622,810

463,421
(1,182,586)

(140,692)

(34,253)
(645,818)

(5,944)
(1,296)

1,075,642

306,251

1,900,059
(119,788)

2,086,522

2018
HK$'000

TR
679,433

(62,573)
(147,023)

469,837

(81,160)

(131,543)

134,760
19,624

(23,190)

787
(80,722)

738,000

140,448
(323,000)

(6,392)
(645,818)

(49,1561)

(145,913)

243,202

1,629,206
127,651

1,900,059

BER P T SR AR MR — B0



Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 3 September 1996 as a
company with limited liability under the Companies Act of
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the sourcing, designing,
wholesaling, trademark licensing and retailing of a variety of
gold and platinum jewellery, and gem-set jewellery products.

The Company’s shares were listed on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 6 May 1997.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated, and
have been approved for issue by the board of directors on
27 June 2019.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRS”) and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap.622. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention except that certain financial assets,
gold loans, and financial liabilities are carried at fair
values, as explained in Note 4.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS ¥R MY AL

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGE IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

@)

144

New standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretations that are effective
for the first time for the financial year beginning
1 April 2018 and are relevant to the Group’s
operations:

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfer of investment property

Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual improvements 2014-
2016 cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
measurement of share-
based payment transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial
instruments” with HKFRS 4

“Insurance contracts”

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers
Amendments to Clarifications to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15

Apart from aforementioned HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 15, there are no other new standards
or amendments to existing standards and
interpretations that are effective for the first time
for this year that could be expected to have a
material impact on the Group.
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21 WEEE(])

@)

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7<{8&E (EI%) HRAE

R2018F4 1B M 2 BT B
FEAEHRERT BARER
KEBE I ER REE

Bl ZEsT A Rt

BRGIHEN  EEEAME
F40%
(B5TR)

BEPERE  2014FE2016FBH
BHI(BETA) 2FERE

ERMBRE  URDAERZ
SERE255 SRRHZAER
(1831K) iE

EEMBRE ERBEUMBREE
A 455, BIEF [emT
(BFTR) B -HEAEE

B E ER 54
5 MRBAY)

BEMBRE  SRIR
A |95

BREBRE HEPIBIANE
155 EZHRA

BRMBHRE ARMBRSENE
AR E155 1552 BB
(1831K)

B ol &8 B 75 R 5 RS9
FREBEBMGHREERAFE5
SRON BN A FE B RAER
AR AREELS
RS EAM AT LKA
BEAZETRN ke



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS ¥R MY AL

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGE IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
Certain new standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretations relevant to the
Group have been published that are mandatory
for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 April 2019, which the Group has not
early adopted, are as follows:

()

Annual improvement
projects

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKAS 19

HKFRS 16

HK(FRIC) - Int 23

Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting
2018

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Annual improvements 2015-
2017 cycle

Long-term interests in an
associate or joint venture!”

Prepayment features with
negative compensation'”

Employee benefits: plan
amendment, curtailment or
settlement”

Leases!”

Uncertainty over income tax
treatments'

Revised conceptual framework
for financial reporting®

Insurance contracts®

Sale or contribution of assets

between an investor and its
associate or joint venture®

2 REEEREHREH (&)
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(b)  Certain new standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretations relevant to the
Group have been published that are mandatory
for the Group’s accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 April 2019, which the Group has
not early adopted, are as follows: (Continued)

M Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1
January 2019

@ Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1
January 2020

@ Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1
January 2021

@ To be announced by HKICPA

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result
in almost all leases being recognised on the balance
sheet by lessees, as the distinction between operating
and finance leases is removed. Under the new
standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item)
and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised.
The only exceptions are short-term and low-value
leases.

Impact

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for
the Group’s operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of approximately HK$817,000,000. Of
these commitments, approximately HK$119,000,000
relate to short-term leases which will be recognised
on a straight-line basis as expense in profit or loss in
the year ending 31 March 2020. For the remaining
lease commitments, the Group expects to recognise
right-of-use assets of approximately HK$672,000,000
and lease liabilities of approximately HK$696,000,000
on 1 April 2019 (before the adjustment of deferred
tax). A corresponding adjustment of approximately
HK$24,000,000 will be recognised in opening balance
of retained earnings.

(o) AN ABEMBAER2019F4
A1Hskz &Rz AEES
FHEAfESR B E A - HEAE BN
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(b)  Certain new standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretations relevant to the
Group have been published that are mandatory
for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 April 2019, which the Group has not
early adopted, are as follows: (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Date of adoption by the Group

HKFRS 16 is mandatory for financial years starting
on or after 1 April 2019. The new standard is not
expected to be applied by the Group until the financial
year ending 31 March 2020. The Group intends to
apply the modified retrospective approach and will
recognise the cumulative effect of initial application
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings at 1 April 2019 and will not restate
comparative information. Right-of-use assets will be
measured on transition as if the new rules had always
been applied (adjusted for any prepaid or accrued
lease expenses).

Apart from aforementioned HKFRS 16, the Group is
in the process of assessing the financial impact of
the adoption of other new standards, amendments to
existing standards and interpretation. The Group will
adopt the new standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretation after they become
effective.

The following explains the impact of the adoption
of HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and HKFRS 15
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements and also
discloses the new accounting policies that have been
applied from 1 April 2018, where they are different to
those applied in prior periods.
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The Group elected to adopt HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15
without restating comparatives. The reclassifications
and the adjustments are therefore not reflected in the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2018, but
are recognised in the opening consolidated balance
sheet on 1 April 2018.

The following table shows the adjustments recognised
for each individual line item. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included. The
adjustments are explained in more details by standard
below.

31 March 2018

AREBEBRABTENHREE
RO R BB H M E ERIF15
S W EBIILBISE AL &
oo 18 Ko 5 B 201853 A 31
AZEABEERBRTRE  ER
2018 FA 1B R AEERBR
RRER -

NREFIESEE B PriER HE
WEIRAZEHFE IR 1%
ERIBI D 2 % FFER T
B o

As originally
presented
2018%
3A31H
37
HK$'000
Consolidated balance sheet (extract) FAEE&ER (1K) TET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets EHESHEE 6,075
Financial assets at fair value through BARBHAEMZENAZ
other comprehensive income SREE -
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables B AR 359,796
Right of return assets REREE -
Current liabilities mBAR
Trade payables, other payables ECV DL
and accruals Hft R EREREHHE 1,125,453
Contract liabilties ARBE -
Sales refund liabilities HERFERE -
Equity a2
Reserves [ 7,482,019

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S

Effect of Effect of
adoption of adoption of 1 April 2018
HKFRS 9 HKFRS 15 Restated
BnER BMEE 20185
BEREEN HEREEN 4R1H
FORCKE BIMINE 4]
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET FET
(6,075) - -
6,075 - 6,075
(2,244) - 357,552
- 86,551 86,551
- (110,519) 1,014,934
- 105,037 105,037
- 139,792 139,792
(2,244) (47,759) 7,432,016



(a)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” — Impact

of adoption

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39
that relate to the recognition, classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments,
impairment of financial assets and hedge

accounting.

The total impact on the Group’s retained
earnings due to classification and measurement
of financial instruments as at 1 April 2018 is as

follows:

At 1 April 2018

Opening retained earnings
- HKAS 39

Reclassify investments from
available-for-sale financial assets to
financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Increase in loss allowance for
impairment of trade receivables

Adjustment to retained earnings from
adoption of HKFRS 9

Opening retained earnings
- after HKFRS 9

#2018%F4A1H

MmkERN

— FHE g ERIE30R

() FEMEBEENRESRI&
MIA] —HwMzieE
FRMBHRE LR FSRAN
BAEGEAEIREHE
BMEERCRBECER.
DB E  SRMIAKILHE
R eREERENRETEE
BRIR o

MR2018F4A1H &/ I A
BN EENAEBREA
Rz BEEFENMT

HK$'000
TR

Notes

B 5E

7,482,019

# 1% & A 5 At

BEEM N BARE

NREFARMER

WAZEREE (i -
B 5 R KRB R EREE

BEB M

(ii) (2,244)

MBI B REER
SEOSE M ¥R & & A

fe > 9%

(2,244)

HMOGREERT —RnEE

P 365 45 5 4 R SEORR 1%

7,479,775
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(a) HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” - Impact
of adoption (Continued)

0

Classification and measurements of
financial assets and financial liabilities
HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into
three principal classification categories:
measured at amortised cost, at fair value
through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”") and at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL”). The classification of financial
assets under HKFRS 9 is based on the
business model under which the financial
assets is managed and its contractual
cash flow characteristics.

On 1 April 2018 (the date of initial
application of HKFRS 9), the Group’s
management has assessed which
business models apply to the financial
instruments held by the Group into the
appropriate HKFRS 9 categories.

The impact of the reclassification on the
consolidated balance sheet is as follows:

(@)

At 1 April 2018 #2018%F4A1H

Opening balance e —F8EH
- HKAS 39 HERI SB35k

Reclassify investments from SR E R E
available-for-sale financial CRHEEENNE
assets to financial assets at BIEASERA
fair value through other Hip2EBAZ
comprehensive income TREE

Opening balance RHmEe —FnEE
- after HKFRS 9 MHREEN

SEoRR &
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FEMBEHEENESR &
MIA| —HRMZE (#)
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SR E

BB RS ERF
FREMEED A=
REER R SHAC AR
B BARERAEM
2ERHBA ([FRARER
AEMEERAL) kIR
N ERT AR ([1RA
REFAEE]) -FE
R 755 g o 2 I B 957 TR
TEMEEZNETIA
FreBemEE X%
BEAREARRERE
FrimE%E-

MN2018F4 /18 (&
fE B BB E 28]
FORER) AEEY
EBEBOMAEETR
PRIASEABEES
7 B TS 3R A E B 5205k
Rz mAEREAE
AP o

B BHGAEER

BRZEEWNT
Financial
assets at

Available- fair value
for-sale through other
financial comprehensive
assets income
BRoRitE

AHHE ARMZE
SHMEE BAZEMEE
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET TET
6,075 -
(6,075) 6,075

- 6,075



(@) HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” - Impact

of adoption (Continued)

i Classification and measurements of
financial assets and financial liabilities

(Continued)

At 1 April 2018

Opening balance
- HKAS 39

Reclassify investments from
available-for-sale financial
assets to financial assets at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

Opening balance
- after HKFRS 9

#2018%F4H1H

MR —FEast
HERISE395R

KRE mr &
TREEEHN N
RRDREFA
Hip2EmBAZ

HniER — FnEE
MBEREER
FONR %

(a) FEMBGWEERFESR R
IR —HMZRE (&)
() EHEERTHEEZ
PR E (F)

Available-
for-sale
financial
assets
revaluation
reserve

A E
eMRE
B (G W
HK$'000

TAET

(5,949)

5,949

Financial assets
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income
revaluation
reserve
BRORERA
HEti2ElkA
ZEMEE
B4R
HK$'000

FET

(5,949)

(5,949)
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(a)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” — Impact
of adoption (Continued)

0

(i)

Classification and measurements of
financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

The Group makes an election to
designate its investment in equity
securities as financial assets at
FVOCI such that subsequent changes
in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income without
subsequent reclassification to profit or
loss. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. Where
such an election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the financial assets
at FVOCI revaluation reserve until the
investment is disposed of. At the time
of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the financial assets at FVOCI revaluation
reserve is transferred to retained earnings.
Dividends from an investment in equity
securities are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed
the Group’s impairment model by
replacing the HKAS 39 “incurred loss
model” to the “expected credit losses
(‘ECLs”) model”. Under HKFRS 9, the
losses allowances are measured on either
using the 12-month ECLs model: the
ECLs that result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; or the lifetime ECLs model:
ECLs that would result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S
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(@) HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” - Impact
of adoption (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
The Group has three types of financial
assets as at 1 April 2018 that are subject
to HKFRS 9’'s new expected credit loss
model:

° Amount due from and loan to an
associate

° Other receivables

° Trade receivables

The Group was required to revise its
impairment methodology under HKFRS
9 for each of these classes of financial
assets. The Group makes estimates and
assumptions concerning the future which
are discussed below:

The loss allowances for financial assets
are based on assumptions about risk
of default and expected loss rates. The
Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the
Group’s past settlement pattern, existing
market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

(a) FEMBGWEERFESR R
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(a)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” — Impact
of adoption (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
While cash and cash equivalents, short
term bank deposits and bank balances
are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss by the directors of
the Company was determined to be
immaterial.

The Group has applied the general
approach and recorded 12-month
expected credit losses on its other
receivables, amount due from and loan to
an associate based on the estimated loss
of possible default events within the next
12 months. The directors of the Group
have considered that the allowance on
impairment loss is immaterial upon the
initial adoption of the standard.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach
to provide for the expected credit losses
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected loss
provision for all trade receivables.

By using the lifetime ECLs model, an
additional provision for trade receivables
of HK$2,244,000 was recognised as at 1
April 2018.

See Note 4(a)(iv) for details of provision for
impairment of trade receivables as at 1
April 2018.
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(a)

(b)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” — Impact

of adoption (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)
The provision for impairment of trade
receivables as at 31 March 2018 reconcile
to the opening provision on 1 April 2018
as follows:

At 31 March 2018 - HKAS 39

Amounts additionally provided in
adoption of HKFRS 9

Opening provision as at 1 April 2018
- after HKFRS 9 restatement

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” - Impact of adoption

HKFRS 15 replaces the provisions of HKAS 18,
which resulted in changes in accounting policies
that relate to revenue recognition, contract
costs and presentation of contract assets and
liabilities.

Details of accounting policies of HKFRS15 are
disclosed in Note 3.20.

(a) BHHEMBEEERESERER
TR BRzE (|
() ZHEERE(E)
B S RWARIE (&)
MR2018F3A31H 2 &
2 FE YRR TR R (B B % £
2018F4 818 Z 1%
BEHERAT:

HK$’000
TAETT

2018%3A31H

— FE Y ERI 305k -
RINE B 5 2R

FORRREINEE 2 5 2,244
#2018F48 18 Z B 9% i

— EFEMBREER

EORREIIE 2,244

(b) FEMHEMELAUFEISHENR
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(b) HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts (b) FEMBRESENE155ER

with Customers” — Impact of adoption ERZHEMSRAEERA ]
(Continued) — Bz E ()
The impact on the Group’s retained earnings as R2018F4 410 H A&
at 1 April 2018 is as follows: REBEBMNZZENT
HK$’000
At 1 April 2018 #2018%4H1H FHET
Retained earnings RERF FEUBHRE
- after HKFRS 9 restatement HERFIEREI® 7,479,775
Increase in sales refund liabilities with ERANE S B 75 R o5 ZE B
the adoption of HKFRS 15 FIRERIHERKABE M (47,759)
Retained earnings - after HKFRS 9 and # & &% — FHMBEREER
HKFRS 15 restatement B R EEMBIIREER
E1SRET & 7,432,016

Adoption of HKFRS 15 — Sales refund liabilities

It is the Group’s policy to sale of jewellery
products to its retail and wholesale customers
with a right of returns in a designated time
period at certain agreed discounts on the
original selling price. Also, the Group allows
its licensees to have credit refunds of royalty
and service income when certain credit refund
criteria are met. Prior to the adoption of HKFRS
15, the Group recognised revenue from the sale
of jewellery products to retail and wholesale
customers at fair values of consideration
received/receivables, net of returns and trade
discounts, and royalty and service income on an
accrual basis in accordance with the substance
of the relevant agreement.
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(b)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts

with Customers” - Impact of adoption
(Continued)

Adoption of HKFRS 15 — Sales refund liabilities
(Continued)

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, the rights
of returns or credit refund are considered
as variable consideration. The Group uses
expected value method to estimate the return
or credit refund that best predicts the amount
of variable consideration on the above revenue
streams. As such, the Group presents a
sales refund liability and an asset for the right
to recover products from a customer upon
return or refund separately in the consolidated
balance sheet and an aggregated amount
of HK$47,759,000 opening adjustment was
recognised in the retained earnings as at 1
April 2018 to reflect the adoption of the new
standard.

Adoption of HKFRS 15 — Reclassification of
contract liabilities

The Group has established a customer loyalty
program in which customers could earn reward
points via their purchases. Under the program,
customers could utilise these reward points
to redeem gifts and coupons over a specific
period. Upon adoption of HKFRS 15, a portion
of the transaction price shall be deferred and be
recognised only when the customers redeem
their points or due to the expiration of these
reward points. The deferred revenue related
to this loyalty programme of approximately
HK$5,435,000 previously classified as “trade
payables, other payables and accruals” are
reclassified to “contract liabilities” upon the
adoption of the new standard.
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(b)

(a)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers” - Impact of adoption
(Continued)

Adoption of HKFRS 15 — Reclassification of
contract liabilities (Continued)

Also, the Group reclassified the receipt in
advance from customers and licensees of
approximately HK$99,602,000 previously
classified as “trade payables, other payables
and accruals” to “contract liabilities” as at 1 April
2018 upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 15.

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used
to account for all business combinations,
regardless of whether equity instruments or
other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

(i) fair values of the assets transferred

(i) liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquired business

(i) equity interests issued by the Group
(iv)  fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration

arrangement, and

(v)  fair value of any pre-existing equity interest
in the subsidiary.
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(a)

Business combinations (Continued)
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the:
(i) consideration transferred,

(i)  amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity, and

(i)  acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in consolidated
income statement as a bargain purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either
as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in consolidated income
statement.
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(a)

(b)

Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in
consolidated income statement.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately
in the consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated balance sheet
respectively.
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(c)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or
joint control. This is generally the case where
the Group holds between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting after initially being recognised at
cost.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds
its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in Note
3.9.
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(d)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a loss of
control as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. A change in ownership interest results
in an adjustment between the carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests
to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognised in
a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss
of control, joint control or significant influence,
any retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair
value becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRS.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture
or an associate is reduced but joint control
or significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-makers. The chief operating
decision-makers, who are responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, have been identified collectively
as the executive directors and senior management
who make strategic decisions.

(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK$, which is the
Company’s functional and Group’s presentation
currency.
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(b)

()

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised within ‘Other
(losses)/gains, net’ in the consolidated income
statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘Finance income, net’.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in consolidated income statement
within ‘Other (losses)/gains, net’.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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(c)

(d)

Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to
consolidated income statement.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
consolidated income statement. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interests in associates that
do not result in the Group losing significant
influence) the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified
to consolidated income statement.
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Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land interests classified as finance lease
and other property, plant and equipment commence
amortisation/depreciation from the time when the
assets becomes available for their intended use.
Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance
lease and depreciation on other assets is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
as follows:

Leasehold land interests Shorter of remaining lease term of
classified as finance leases ~ 16-51 years or useful life
Buildings 50 years or over the unexpired
lease period of leasehold land,
whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements 5 years or over the unexpired lease
period, whichever is shorter
Furniture and fixtures and 5 years
computer equipment
Plant and machinery 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.
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An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 3.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing net proceeds with carrying amount of the
relevant assets and are included in the consolidated
income statement.

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, (if
any). Cost represents consideration paid for the rights
to use the land on which various plants and buildings
are generally situated for a period from 19 to 50 years.
Amortisation of land use rights is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and is not occupied
by the Group.

Investment property is measured at cost, including
related transaction costs, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line
method to write off the cost of the investment
properties over their estimated useful lives of 30 to 50
years. Where the carrying amount of an investment
property is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount, it is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount.
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Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probably that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied,
it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment. At
the date of reclassification, its cost and accumulated
depreciation are transferred to property, plant and
equipment and become its cost and accumulated
depreciation for accounting purposes. If an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed, it is reclassified as
investment property.

Trading licence with indefinite useful life represents
a membership in Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange
Society and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

Inventories, comprise raw materials and finished
goods, are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis. The cost of finished goods comprises
raw materials, direct labour and other direct costs.
[t excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

(@) Accounting policies applied from 1 April
2018
i Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently
at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income, or through
profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised
cost.
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(a)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April
2018 (Continued)

v

(i)

Classification (Continued)

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains
and losses will either be recorded in profit
or loss or other comprehensive income.
For investments in equity instruments that
are not held for trading, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt instruments
when and only when its business model
for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on trade-
date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

(a)
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(a)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April
2018 (Continued)
(i) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss

are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. The Group classified its
debt instruments as financial assets at

amortised cost.

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented in
other losses, net, together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented in separate line item

in the consolidated income statement.

(a)
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(a) Accounting policies applied from 1 April (a) H2018F4B1HBERZE

2018 (Continued) FHBUSE (§8)

(i) Measurement (Continued) (i) Fr=ZE (&)
Equity instruments AT A
The Group subsequently measures AEEBERIZ A ERT
all equity investments at fair value. EFERERE WA
Where the Group’s management has SEEEEDEERH
elected to present fair value gains and ftb 2 E U A 2 71| ik 42
losses on equity investments in other WE 2 A EWE N E
comprehensive income, there is no BRI EREZIER
subsequent reclassification of fair value Bk BEREUVESEND
gains and losses to profit or loss following EALBER=EEBER
the derecognition of the investment. BB ASEWEA
Dividends from such investments continue R ERHELE - B 7
to be recognised in profit or loss as other WE R BHEENER
income when the Group’s right to receive RRERAEMIA -
payments is established.
Changes in the fair value of financial BERARBEHABZNE
assets at fair value through profit or MEEAABEEE
loss are recognised in other losses, net RirEERRHEAM
in the consolidated income statement B8 FREER (WE
as applicable. Impairment losses (and ) A BT AEAM
reversal of impairment losses) on equity FEHBAFERRAR
investments measured at fair value B2 REREE(RRE
through other comprehensive income Eﬂﬁﬁé@)ﬂz 2 /\/\1‘@
are not reported separately from other ANAEZEOHE
changes in fair value.

(iv)  Impairment (v) JAE

AEBIZAEEEET (R
HR#EEK AR 2ERLT
ﬂﬁ@%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%o%ﬁ
%Wﬂﬁﬁtﬁ?ET

() ﬁj([pﬂiigj]uﬁﬁﬂi"

The Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.
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b) Accounting policies applied until 31 March

2018

Y

Classification

The Group has applied HKFRS 9
retrospectively, but has elected not to
restate comparative information. As
a result, the comparative information
provided continues to be accounted for
in accordance with the Group’s previous
accounting policy.

Until 31 March 2018, the Group classifies
its financial assets in the following
categories: loans and receivables, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification
of the Group's financial assets at initial
recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

The Group classifies financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss if they are
acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term, ie are held for
trading. They are presented as current
assets if they are expected to be sold
within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period; otherwise they are
presented as non-current assets. The
Group has not elected to designate any
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss.

b) 2018%FE3A31HEIERAZ®:t
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b) Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018 (Continued)

v

Classification (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for those with maturities
greater than 12 months after the end of
the reporting period. These are classified
as non-current assets. The Group’s loans
and receivables comprise ‘Loan to an
associate’, ‘Trade receivables’, ‘Cash
and bank balances’, ‘Deposits and other
receivables’ and ‘Amount due from an
associate’ in the consolidated balance
sheet.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end
of the reporting period.

b) 2018%E3A31HRIEAZ®

BE (&)

() D (E)
BRI ARIR
ERREKRIET AR
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b) Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018 (Continued)

(i)

Recognition and measurerment

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on trade-
date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
and available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of the “financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss” category
are presented in the consolidated income
statement within ‘other gains, net’ in
the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of
‘Other income’ when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

b) 2018%FE3A31HEIERAZ®:t
Bk (48)
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b) Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018 (Continued)

(i)

Recognition and measurerment
(Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary
and nonmonetary securities classified as
available for sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for
sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated
fair value adjustments recognised in equity
are included in the consolidated income
statement as ‘Other (losses)/gains, net’.

Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of “other
income”. Dividends on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of
‘Other income’” when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

b) 2018%E3A31HRIEAZ®
Bk (48)

(i)
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b) Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018 (Continued)

(i)

Impairment

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, and
where observable data indicate that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

b) 2018%FE3A31HEIERAZ®:t
Bk (48)
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b) Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018 (Continued)

(i)

Impairment (Continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)

For loans and receivables category,
the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement. If a
loan or held- to-maturity investment has
a variable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined
under the contract.

As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

b) 2018%E3A31HRIEAZ®
Bk (48)

(i)
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b) Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018 (Continued)

(i)

Impairment (Continued)

Financial assets classified as available-for-
sale

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. For debt
securities, the Group uses the criteria
referred to in (a) above. In the case of
equity investments classified as available
for sale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its
cost is also evidence that the assets are
impaired. If any such evidence exists
for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in consolidated
income statement — is removed from
equity and recognised in consolidated
income statement. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the consolidated income
statement. If, in a subsequent period, the
fair value of a debt instrument classified
as available for sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in consolidated
income statement, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated income
statement.

b) 2018%FE3A31HEIERAZ®:t
Bk (48)
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Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the company or the counterparty. The Group has
also entered into arrangements that do not meet
the criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related
amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such
as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair values. The
method of recognising the resulting gains or losses
depends on whether the derivative is designated
and qualified as a hedging instrument, and if so, the
nature of the item being hedged. Since the derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group do
not qualify for hedge accounting, changes in fair value
of any derivative financial instruments are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement.

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment.

See Note 3.11(a) for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.
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In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and other
payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are carried initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is
no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.
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Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
balance sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,
is recognised in consolidated income statement.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.
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(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred
income tax is also not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and when
the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.
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(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

Provisions for profit sharing and bonus plans are
recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate
of the obligation can be made.

Pension obligations

Hong Kong

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) which is registered under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held in a separately administered fund. The
MPF Scheme is generally funded by payments
from employees and by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme
are expensed as incurred and are reduced by
the employer’s voluntary contribution forfeited
from the MPF Scheme by those employees who
leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions.
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(c)

(d)

Pension obligations (Continued)

Mainland China

As stipulated by rules and regulations in
Mainland China, the Group contributes to state-
sponsored retirement schemes for its relevant
employees in Mainland China. The state-
sponsored retirement schemes are responsible
for the entire post-retirement benefit obligations
payable to the retired employees.

The Group’s contributions to the state-
sponsored retirement schemes are expensed as
incurred and are fully and immediately vested in
the employees.

Defined benefit obligation - long service
payment

The Group’s net obligation in respect of lump
sum long service amounts payable on cessation
of employment in certain circumstances under
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the
amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods. The obligation is calculated
using the projected unit credit method by a
qualified actuary, discounted to its present
value, and the fair value of any related plan
assets is deducted. The discount rate is the
yield at balance sheet date on Exchange Fund
Notes that have maturity dates approximating
the terms of the Group’s obligations. All
remeasurement gains/losses of defined benefit
plans are recognised immediately in other
comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Past service costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the average period until the benefits become
vested.
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Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax,
sales returns and discounts, after eliminated sales
within the Group.

(@) Sales of goods — wholesale
() Accounting policies applied from 1 April

2018

The Group manufactures and sells a
range of gold jewellery and gem-set
of jewellery products to its customers.
Sales of goods are recognised when a
Group entity has delivered products to
the customers, retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree
usually associates with ownership nor
control over the goods sold, and there is
no unfulfiled obligation that could affect
the acceptance of the products. Delivery
does not occur until the products have
been delivered to the specified location,
the risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to the customers, and
either the customers has accepted
the products in accordance with sales
contract, the acceptance provisions
have lapsed, or the Group has objective
evidence that all criteria for acceptance
have been satisfied.

A sales refund liability and an asset for
the right of return goods are recognised
in the consolidated balance sheet. The
Group uses the expected value method
to estimate the credit refund or return
which best predicts the amount of reliable
consideration to which the Group entitled.
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(@) Sales of goods — wholesale (Continued)

(i)

Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018

Sales of goods are recognised when a
group entity has delivered products to
the customers, retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree
usually associates with ownership nor
control over the goods sold, and there is
no unfulfiled obligation that could affect
the acceptance of the products. Delivery
does not occur until the products have
been delivered to the specified location,
the risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to the customers, and
either the customers has accepted
the products in accordance with sales
contract, the acceptance provisions
have lapsed, or the Group has objective
evidence that all criteria for acceptance
have been satisfied.

(b) Sales of goods - retail

v

Accounting policies applied from 1 April
2018

The Group operates a chain of retail
shops selling a variety of gold and
platinum jewellery and gem-set jewellery
products. Revenue from the sale of goods
is recognised when a group entity sells a
product to the customer.
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(b)

Sales of goods - retail (Continued)

0

(i)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April
2018 (Continued)

Payment of the transaction price is
due immediately when the customer
purchases the gold and platinum jewellery
and gem-set jewellery products. It is
the Group’s policy to sell its products to
the end customer with a right of return
within one year at an agreed discount on
the original selling price. A sales refund
liability and an asset for the right of return
goods are recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet. The Group uses the
expected value method to estimate the
sales refund or return which best predicts
the amount of reliable consideration to
which the Group entitled.

Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018

Sales of goods are recognised when
a group entity sells a product to the
customer. Retail sales are usually in cash
or by credit card. It is the Group’s policy
to sell its jewellery products to the end
customers with a right of return within one
year at a certain discount on the original
selling price. Accumulated experience is
used to estimate and provide for such
returns at the time of sale.

(b)
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(c)

(d)

(e)

U]

(9)

Royalty and service income

()  Accounting policies applied from 1 April
2018
Royalty and service income in respect
of the use of the Group’s trademarks is
recognised overtime on an accrual basis
in accordance with the substance of the
relevant agreements. The refund of credit
to licensees when certain credit refund
criteria is met are considered as variable
consideration. The Group uses expected
value method to estimate the credit refund
which best predicts the amount of variable
consideration to which the Group entitled.

(i) Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018
Royalty and service income in respect
of the use of the Group’s trademarks
is recognised on an accrual basis in
accordance with the substance of the
relevant agreements.

Consultancy fee income

Consultancy fee income in respect of technical
support and consultancy services are
recognised over the period in which the services
are rendered.

Interest income from bank deposits
Interest income from bank deposits is
recognised on a time proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease period.

Commission income
Commission income is recognised in the period
when the referral services are provided.
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Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease. When a component of the lease payment
which is not fixed but is based on future amount of
a factor, other than with the passage of time, such
as percentage of sales or concessionaire fees, the
amount is recognised as expenses as it arises.

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks, including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and
fair value interest rate risks, commodity price risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The Group uses
derivative financial instruments to manage certain risk
exposures. The use of financial derivatives to hedge
certain risk exposures is governed by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S

REHERERAE BB AR
MEHDELEAMEZHE R
EEEHEEXNzEE (MK HHA
AFfe T 2AEMERR) LEHRX
EHMERABERMG -WEE
SRR E A BRI FE L TE 1 =R 2
AR (RRERARIN) (WHERE
B LSRSRREER) 2 RKFA
A E RIZFASRELRERS
P °

AARRRBERD KBS ERE
ERARARRRAES (REABR
e ) 4t/ A - A= BB 7%
BREAR/EE-

AEBEEBAZERBRYBER B2
EINERR R RERASEN
xRk mmERRR FERRK
MENE 2 E

AEENBERAREENEHBIRN
TR TISHATER 2 W FK
BEREHAEEMBREBEHE
THEE - AEENMAITESRT
AEEETRR - ERERITET
AR ETRBRIEARNREEER

B o



(@

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with
most of the transactions settled in HK$. The
Group also has retail and wholesale operations
in Mainland China, Macau, Canada, the United
States, Australia, Malaysia and Singapore.
Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial transactions or recognised assets
or liabilities are denominated in a currency that
is not the entity’s functional currency. The Group
is exposed to foreign exchange risk from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to
Renminbi (‘RMB”).

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk
by performing regular reviews of the Group’s net
foreign exchange exposures. The Group also
use foreign exchange derivative contracts to
manage their foreign exchange risk arising from
future commercial transactions and recognised
asset or liabilities denominated in a currency that
is not the group companies’ functional currency,
primarily with respect to RMB, if necessary.

The Group’s assets and liabilities, and
transactions arising from its operations primarily
do not expose the Group to material foreign
exchange risk. The Group’s assets and liabilities
are primarily denominated in the respective
group companies’ functional currency.

At 31 March 2019, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against HK$, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit would
have been approximately HK$34,968,000
(2018: HK$19,237,000) higher/lower
respectively.
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(i)

(iii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates as the Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets except for
the convertible bonds subscribed and loans
to an associate which were issued at fixed
rates and interest free respectively, and expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
Group’s interest rate risk also arises from gold
loans and bank borrowings. Gold loans at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest-rate
risk. Bank borrowings at variables interest rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk.
The Group does not enter into derivatives to
address these risks.

At 31 March 2019, if interest rates on
borrowings had increased/decreased by
50 basis points with all other variables held
constant, the impact on post-tax profit for
the year would have been approximately
HK7,746,000 (2018: HK$1,733,000) lower/
higher respectively.

Commodity price risk

The Group mainly engaged in the sales of gold
ornaments. The gold markets are influenced by
global as well as regional supply and demand
conditions. A significant decline in the prices
of gold could adversely affect the Group’s
financial performance. The Group manages
commodity price risks mainly by hedging gold
price fluctuations through certain derivative
financial instrument-trading of gold contracts,
gold loans and gold future contracts. Should
the gold price go up, the Group would charge
a loss representing the increase in gold price
compared to the contract price, and largely net
against the increase in turnover of gold products
as a result of gold price increase.
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(iii)

Commodity price risk (Continued)

The gold contracts are settled on daily basis and
the differences between the contract price and
market price are immediately recognised in the
consolidated income statement. As at 31 March
2019, the notional value of the outstanding gold
contracts amounted to HK$176,514,000 (2018:
HK$181,186,000).

The gold loans (Note 33) are settled at maturity
which usually mature in 1 to 6 months from
date of inception and the fair value changes
are immediately recognised in the consolidated
income statement. As at 31 March 2018, gold
loan contracts of 510 kilograms amounting
to HK$170,591,000 involved physical
settlement, which were fully settled during the
year ended 31 March 2019. As at 31 March
2019, gold loans of HK$450,889,000 (2018:
HK$140,692,000) represents gold loans
involved cash settlement.

The gold future and gold forward contracts are
settled at maturity which usually mature in 1 to
2 months from date of inception and the fair
value changes are immediately recognised in the
consolidated income statement. As at 31 March
2019, all the gold future contracts and gold
forward contracts are settled.

As at 31 March 2019, if the market price of gold
had increased or decreased by 5%, post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 March 2019, due to
changes in fair values of gold contracts, would
have been approximately HK$7,370,000 (2018:
HK$7,565,000) lower or higher respectively.

As at 31 March 2019, if the market price of gold
had increased or decreased by 5%, post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 March 2019, due to
changes in fair values of gold loans, would have
been approximately HK$18,825,000 (2018:
HK$13,125,000), lower or higher respectively.
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(iv)

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk. The carrying amount of the loan to
an associate, amount due from an associate,
trade and other receivables, deposits and bank
balances included in the consolidated balance
sheet, the principal amount of the subscribed
convertible bond and the amount of contingent
liabilities as disclosed in Note 36 represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to its financial assets and contingent
liabilities.

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, substantially
all the bank balances as detailed in Note 26
are held in major financial institutions located
in Hong Kong and Mainland China, which
management believes are of high credit quality.
The Group has a policy to limit the amount of
credit exposure to any financial institution and
management does not expect any losses arising
from non-performance by these counterparties.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products on credit terms are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history and
the Group performs periodic credit evaluations
of its customers. The Group’s concessionaire
sales through department stores are generally
collectible within 30 days from the invoice date
while credit sales are generally on credit terms
within 90 days. Normally the Group does not
require collaterals from trade debtors. The
existing debtors have no significant defaults
in the past. The Group’s historical experience
in collection of trade and other receivables
falls within the recorded allowances and the
directors are of the opinion that adequate
provision for uncollectible receivables, if any, has
been made.
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(iv)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has the following types of financial
assets that are subject to the expected credit
loss model:

° Amount due from and loan to an
associate

o Other receivables

° Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables.

To measure expected credit losses, the Group
categorises its trade receivables based in the
nature of customer accounts and shared credit
risk characteristics.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period of 36
month before 31 March 2019 or 1 April 2018
(date of initial adoption of HKFRS9) respectively
and the corresponding historical credit losses
experienced within the respective period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information on
macro-economic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables.
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(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The lifetime expected credit loss allowance of
trade receivables as at 31 March 2019 was

determined as follows:

1-30
days
Current  past due
bk
B 1-30%
Gross carrying amount BEAE
(HK$'000) (F#x) 360,501 320
Lifetime expected creditloss 2 HiEHEEHERE
allowance (HK$'000) (Fi&m) = =
The lifetime expected credit loss allowance of
trade receivables as at 1 April 2018 (on initial
adoption of HKFRS 9) was determined as
follows:
1-30
days
Current  past due
Ak 1-30K
Gross carrying amount BERmEE
(HK$'000) (T#T) 341915 8,769
Lifetime expected creditloss 2B HEEHERE
allowance (HK$'000) (FA1) - -

The lifetime expected credit loss rate is 0% (1
April 2018: 0%) for current to 180 days past
due, and 50% (1 April 2018: 50%) for over 180
days past due, respectively.
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(iv)

31-60 61-90 91-180  Over 180

days days days days
pastdue pastdue pastdue pastdue

Total

31-60%  61-90%  91-180% 180KLL ait
220 173 165 2592 363971
- - - (1,296) (1,296)
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(iv)

Credit risk (Continued)

(v) fEEEEBR ()

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) EREEWE (&)
The movement of loss allowances for trade 2 o REKIRIBRERE
receivables is as follows: wm
Trade
receivables
BHEWKIEE
HK$’000
FHET
Loss allowance at 31 March 2018 #2018E3A31A 2 B IR 1% i
- HKAS 39 — HEYERNEIR -
Amounts additionally provided on RN E B T s 22 R 09R By
adoption of HKFRS 9 BINBEE 28 2,244
Opening loss allowance at #2018F4A1A Z A MG IR IR R
1 April 2018 - HKFRS 9 — HRMHEREERER 2,244

Increase in loss allowance recognised in

ENBRERER Z BREEEN

profit and loss 25,877
Written off of loss allowance T8 S 1R (26,825)
Loss allowance at 31 March 2019 1201938318 Z B8 1% e 1,296

Trade receivables are written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst
others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group, and a failure to
make contractual payments upon termination of
business relationship.

The Group has applied the general approach
and recorded 12-month expected credit losses
on its other receivables and deposits, amount
due from an associate and loan to an associate
based on the estimated loss of possible default
events within the next 12 months. The directors
of the Company has considered that the
allowance on impairment loss is immaterial upon
the initial adoption of the standard and as at 31
March 2019.

B 5 R ARIEN I & A 2 4K
B 5RIE 2 TR RS 85 © 15 1R
TESEWRBIFKEZERE
Em(EPERE)EHAKRER
REBETERE S MR
IEEBRRRERBEER B T

Eo
A °

AEBECDEA AL WE
RARK12E A AL EL S
4 2 A 51 B 18 5L H b & U BR
HRES  BR—REE QT
RBEMERT —RBEQT
81512 ATEHRE EE 1B - K
REIEERE RUIZERMNZ
B8 K A20193 A31H »

WEBEREBLTEK
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(iv)

v)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

While cash and bank balances are also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9,
the identified impairment loss by the directors of
the Company was determined to be immaterial
upon the initial adoption of the standard and as
at 31 March 2019.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances
and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements
have been for additions of and upgrades on
property, plant and equipment, payment on
debts, purchases and operating expenses. The
Group finances its working capital requirements
through a combination of internal resources and
bank borrowings, as necessary.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure it maintains sufficient cash and bank
balances and has available funding through
adequate amount of committed credit facilities
to meet its working capital requirements.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S
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V)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance date
to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows, including interest
payments computed using contractual rates,
based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay.

Maturity Analysis — Undiscounted cash outflows

Repayable
on demand
ABRERHEE
HK$'000
TET
As at 31 March 2019 #2019%3A310
Trade payables and other payables & 5 & 18R 18 [t
Hit R -
Amount due to an associate ER—REE ARRE -
Gold loans with cash settlement  BEREELEE -
Bank borrowings BITER 1,866,393
1,866,393
Financial guarantee contracts BBRRAH (F)
(Note) =
As at 31 March 2018 1#2018%3A31H
Trade payables and other payables & 5 &1 878 [t
Hi BB -
Amount due to an associate ER—FREE ARRE -
Gold loans with cash settlement B4R EELEE -
Bank borrowings BITER 415,626
415,626
Financial quarantee contracts ~ BIFEERA 4 (W)
(Note) -
Note:

The amount included in the above financial guarantee
contracts represent the outstanding financial guarantee
issued to several banks in respect of bank facilities granted
to an associate of the Group as disclosed in Note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

v)

Within 1 year

—£R
HK$'000
TET

742,811
2,715
451,475

1,197,001

1,075,000

888,925
3,566
141,029

1,033,509

898,630

mEE R ()
TREAEESREERER
HEAZSXEIER 268 T B
TN D EBBEIEA
ARl KA 2 HIBTIRE
REETEEERNR 2T
HEIRTE 2 & ARSI
2 (PREERGOFNETED
FIERFK) ©
P AST — KA BEE2
HE
More than More than
1 year 2 years but Total
but less less than  undiscounted
than 2 years 5years cash outflows
BE-F BEmE RERES
EYREBE EIREE in B Rt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR
- - 742,811
- - 2,715
- - 451,475
- - 1,866,393
- - 3,063,394
- - 1,075,000
- - 888,925
- - 3,555
- - 141,029
- - 415,626
- - 1,449,135
- - 898,630
B 3 -

B ONER & 5 AR P RES6RT I B - &
M B ERA LT RATDIBRERE T A
SEBEARNRITRERSE TRT
BITHARBEEBER-
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(v) Liquidity risk (Continued) (v REVELEBE ()

Maturity Analysis — Bank borrowings subject PIEIH 54T — R7T B BIRIE
to repayment on demand clauses based TETEZ (BIZENFE)E
on scheduled repayments including interest T EKANEE R
payable
More than More than
1 year 2 years Total
Within but less butless  undiscounted

1 year than 2 years than5years  cash outflows
BE—-F BamE e R R
—-%f BOREE BORIF ki) )

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET THT FTHET
As at 31 March 2019 #2019%3A31H
Bank borrowings FIER 1,786,374 50,941 29,078 1,866,393
As at 31 March 2018 #2018%3A31H
Bank borrowings RITER 415,626 - - 415,626
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(v) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Maturity Analysis — Undiscounted cash outflows
(Continueq)

The table below analyses the Group’s derivative
financial instruments that will be settled on a
gross basis into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances
due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is not

significant.
Within
1 year
—ER
HK$'000
THET
As at 31 March 2019 #2019%3A31H
Foreign exchange forward MEREAL
contracts
- Inflow —mA 239,492
- Outflow —it 241,176

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets,
including cash and bank balances, trade receivables,
other receivables, deposits, amount due from an
associate and loan to an associate and the Group’s
financial liabilities, including trade and other payables,
amount due to an associate and bank borrowings
approximate their fair values due to their maturities.

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as gold loans) are based on quoted
market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price.

(v) HEVEREEE ()

P AP — R EBE LR
HE (&)
TERIBEEEABRAMGKRT
HRERMEHNE  HAKHE
MR IR EERENTTES
BT AZERIMAAMARET
DT RABRBENEBERAL
REBRIRERE - ANRIRA
FETK 128 AR DI HH
R EREAREE -

More than More than
1 year 2 years Total
but less butless  undiscounted

than 2 years than5years  cash outflows
Bé—-F BamE RUERRS&
BOREE BORIF i E#at

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
- - 239,492

- - 241,176

rEBEeREE (BERAS LR
e B HRWIRA  Hi IR
B e BB E R AIRRIA N
ERT—RBERR)UARAKNER
TRHEBE(BREZNEMBEMNE
BN KB ERRRE LR
EF)RSEMHR  HEmERR
SRERE-

REBMSEENERTA (MR
EEE)NARE BRREERNT
LHREME - RAKERKERE
EXRANTSRESEMEAE-
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The fair values of financial assets and liabilities not
traded in active markets are estimated by discounting
the future contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for similar
financial instruments.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried
at fair values, by valuation method. The different levels
have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table present the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair
values at 31 March 2019.

Level 1
B
HK$’000
T#ET
As at 31 March 2019 #2019%3A31H
Assets BE
- Derivative financial instruments  —$T4 £ @M T A
-~ Convertible bond —AHRRES -
- Financial assets at fair value —RAREFA
through other comprehensive Hitn2EBRAZ
income THEE 3,134
Total asset BEE 3,134
Liabilities =N
- Derivative financial instrument  —$T4 & T A
— Foreign exchange forward —SNERBRE A
contracts -
- Gold loans with cash -HeRHESEE
settlement 450,889
450,889

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S

ARNEBRMSEENTHEENRA
B2 ARETNEAEBEHALUSE R
TAREGZREMSMERRER
KANBEREMMART -

TRAERBEBEEHZAENER
MNEMTENDIT-BERENTRE
WA

\
o

s FEBEEXREBERLRE
EE®RE CRERHE) (
) o

\m
;_v'/:_:’v

i3

s KBREEMBRENKEN &
ERBENAER (AER)
HEE (ARERSL)BER
PRisEAE (=40 -

e UHREABERMESHEE
EHEESRERAE (BT
ABRBAE) (Z=4)-

TREANAKEERKR201943A31H
BARBEFENCREERSRE

::gE\ o
Level 2 Level 3 Total
gt} B=R st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TET TER
56,219 - 56,219
- - 3,134
56,219 - 59,353
3,929 - 3,929
- - 450,889
3,929 - 454,818



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=IVAN
Aref

AR5 MRt

\

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

4 MERREHE (W)

Fair value estimation (Continued) (b) AREME ()
The following table present the Group’s financial TEREZSAEEN2018F3A31H
assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair BAREFENEHEERSRA
values at 31 March 2018, (£
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE—H FIR BE=H BET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
As at 31 March 2018 R201843A318
Assets BE
— Derivative financial —fTEemIA
instruments
— Convertible bond - #REES - 50,782 - 50,782
— Available-for-sale financial —-AERESREE
assets 6,075 - - 6,075
Total asset BEE 6,075 50,782 - 56,857
Liabilities a&E
- Gold loans with cash -ReREELEER
settlement 140,692 - - 140,692
The following table present the Group’s liabilities that TRE5AEER2018F3A31H
are measured at fair values at 31 March 2018. BAREHENARE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—H E_M| FE=4 FOEY
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET THT THET
Liabilities afE
- Gold loans with physical - BYREELEE
settlement 170,591 - - 170,591

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer into and
transfer out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused
the transfer.

There were no transfer between levels 1, 2 and 3
during the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2019.

AEENBRENEREH 2 E4F
BAERIBERNEZ AERBELS
BEEREANE -

#H E20184 K2019E3A31H IF 5
BR F— E-HMEE=HHEL
4 (T (o] B 8% o
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The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payments to shareholders, issue of new shares or
obtain new bank borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of
gearing ratio. The gearing ratio is calculated as net
debt/(cash) divided by total capital. Net debt/(cash)
is calculated as total borrowings (including bank
borrowings and gold loans) less cash and bank
balances. Total capital is calculated as “equity”, as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet, plus net
debt/(cash).

The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure
as at 31 March 2019:

AEBEEREANBRABRELRE
BRAEEERE S fEM AR
# [l ¥ ~ A EL A F) 25 48 B 2 fe 4R
g A R AR FF IR AR B B AR ZRAE DARE

AEEEREARE T EEEE
BHOBBEL BE - BRI K
BAARE AEETARINT
B BB PR 7T T A S G 3
BTEH

AEETAGBEEL KERH
GA-BEEENRELFEE
(B$)BINEE AT E - FEE/
(B%) RN BEHBE (RERTE
FRELEE) BB RRTES
SIS o BB AT [H28) (10
BAEERABERT) INEEE
(B$)EHEEH -

NEFER2019F3A31H 2 EALE
BT

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FAET
Bank borrowings (Note 32) HRITEF (MIE32) 1,855,224 415,000
Gold loans (Note 33) H&EE (M:33) 450,889 311,283
Less: Cash and bank balances R e MIRTTHE R
(Note 26) (FF3¥26) (2,086,522) (2,097,867)
Net debt/(cash) FEE (Re) 219,591 (1,371,584)
Total equity B 10,562,916 10,079,737
Total capital FEE= N 10,782,507 8,708,153
Gearing ratio BEEELR 2.0% N/AZR 38 F
The Group’s strategy is to maintain a solid capital REENEBEREFRTNERELR A
base to support the operations and development of REEEBEREKEREHERASE-

its business in the long term.
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Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial
statements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are set out below.

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature.
It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycle. Management reassesses these
estimates at each balance sheet date.

Investments in associates and non-financial assets
including property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and land use rights, are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations
or fair value less costs to sell. These calculations
require the use of judgements and estimates.

TR L TS MR R P ER A 2 b T B 1 -
TzEEERREMEER (BRERIETH
BRI ARRE MR Z A IETRRT) TEN{E
HEHE -G et EREER B8
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REUT - MRFEEERARBZIEE
BAFHERHBZ G RER-

KT S IFE A B R ETE
{4 BN i3 52 TR R B4
%14 O B UL 15 3 YRR
B R R R B A R
B R T (- 3] I B
VS AT T R AT
B A ER T A EA R
ERENE G A BRI S
st

i 3R B AT E B BRI B
REIZBERFEREE (BEY
X BEIEBE REDERLH
M) REEREEEKE - AIZA
B RL(E © AT YR [ BUEE T AR 1R
B E SRR RER & KA
i o W ERH B R E R A R AhE
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Management judgement is required in the area of
asset impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether
an event has occurred that may indicate that the
related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii)
whether the carrying value of asset can be supported
by its recoverable amount, being the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset in the business; and
(iiiy the appropriate key assumptions to be applied
in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
net present value used in the impairment test and as
a result affect the Group’s reported financial condition
and results of operations. If there is a significant
adverse change in the projected performance and
resulting future cash flow projections, it may be
necessary to take an impairment charge to the
consolidated income statement.
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The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and other jurisdictions. Judgement is
required in determining the provision for income taxes
in each of these jurisdictions. There are transactions
and calculations during the ordinary course of
business for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such as differences will impact the income
tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made. Deferred income
tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management
considers it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the temporary differences
or tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities relating to undistributed
profit of those subsidiaries in Mainland China are
recognised based on the undistributed profit of those
subsidiaries in Mainland China generated since 1
January 2008 which is expected to be distributed
in the foreseeable future. When the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such differences
will impact the recognition of deferred income tax
assets and liabilities and taxation charges in the period
in which such estimate is changed.

AEBEEHREL TEAMEE
fRERER AN BT S A
EREMASHERR  FIELH
B - A BXBHEE T RERTE
RRBENR S MFE ML ESE
HOREBBEERE BIR K08
MEBE A AREZReYEETH
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BRZBERSHEE REEE
RABRNAE R 8 IR R BUE N AT
REREZ SR ZRRBIARE
T R
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The chief operating decision-makers (‘CODM”) have been
identified as the executive directors and senior management
collectively. The CODM review the Group’s internal reporting
in order to assess performance and allocate resources. The
operating segments are reported in accordance with the
internal reporting reviewed by the CODM.

CODM consider the business by nature of business
activities and assess the performance of the following
operating segments:

Retailing — Hong Kong, Macau and overseas
i Retailing — Mainland China
ii. ~ Wholesaling — Hong Kong
iv.  Wholesaling — Mainland China
V. Licensing

CODM assess the performance of the operating segments
based on segment results. Finance income and costs,
corporate income and expenses and share of results of
associates are not included in the results for each operating
segment that is reviewed by the CODM. Other information
provided to the CODM is measured in a manner consistent
with that in the consolidated financial statements.

Assets of reportable segments exclude interests in
associates, certain land and buildings, investment
properties, deferred income tax assets, income tax
recoverables and corporate assets, all of which are
managed on a central basis. Liabilities of reportable
segments exclude deferred income tax liabilities, current
income tax liabilities, bank borrowings, gold loans and
corporate liabilities, all of which are managed on a central
basis.

Sales to external customers are stated after elimination
of inter-segment sales. Sales between segments are
carried out at mutually agreed terms. The revenue from
external parties, assets and liabilities, reported to the
CODM is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement and balance sheet.

WTEERSREEBARREERR
BEERRE ([REEERKE]) &
BEERREREEHNARE Z AR
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RREERREEHN AL REERE
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TE —FF R &EH
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iv.  HtE — AR
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ERHEERRERED BEETFEEE
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Revenue - at a point of time
Sales to external customers
Sales of scrap

Inter-segment sales

Sales of merchandises
Revenue - over time
Royalty and service income
Consuttancy fee income

Total

Results of reportable segments

A reconciliation of results of
reportable segments to profit
for the year is as follows:

Results of reportable segments
Unallocated income

Unallocated expenses

Operating profit

Finance income

Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Profit before income tax

Income tax expenses

Profit for the year

Less: Profit attributable to
non-controlling interests

Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company

A~ RERE
4 EFIE
pean

NEEEE
HEAM

BA — R-EHE
RiERRBEMA
ElEECON

@t

TEESBRE

MERDBRERERN
EAEEMT :

TEESBRE
LN
APERX
BERY
FHBA
HHER

B ERRRE
B E R AT
FBREAX
FRH

B SRR R )

FARRGHAARKERT

Retailing -
Hong Kong,
Macau and
overseas
PE—ER
AR
HK$'000
TER

9,660,983

9,660,983
104,741

9,765,724

9,765,724
776,769

Retailing -
Mainland
China
E-
FERY
HK$'000
TET

2,414,204

2,414,204
602

2,414,806

2,414,806
164,122

Year ended 31 March 2019

BE019F3ANALER
Wholesaling -
Wholesaling - Mainland
Hong Kong China
#E— #e—
L FER
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
106,835 2,842,039
28,937 -
135,772 2,842,039
2,374,997 682,588
2,510,769 3,524,627
2,510,769 3,524,627
130,993 274,149

Licensing

wRE
HK$'000
TER

718,560
88,432

806,992
554,192

Inter - Reportable

segment segments
elimination total
TEH
Sl
HK$'000
TET

i ]
HK$'000
FER

- 15,024,061
- 28,937

- 15052,998
(3,162,928) o

(3162928 15,052,998

- 718,560

= 88,432
(3162928 15,859,990

- 1,900,825

1,900,825
74,906
(122,689)
1,853,042
30,053
(34,253)
(42,479)
1,806,363
(302,708)

1,503,655

(10,908)

1,492,747
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Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Amortisation of land use rights

nE HERRENE

HitERERS

Depreciation of investment properties % & H1 £ &

Additions of non-current assets

Segment assets

Interests in associates
Land and buildings
Investment properties
Deferred income tax assets
Income tax recoverable
Other unallocated assets

Total assets
Segment liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities
Current income tax liabilties
Bank borrowings

Gold loans

Other unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

ERPEERE

NHAE

iNEL-UNCIPA 5
T RET
REmE
EEFBRREE
L EER
HitR PR EE
BEE

HHAaE

ERAERER
HAREREE
RITER
ERfEE
EMADRERE
BaR

Retailing -
Hong Kong,
Macau and
overseas
SE—EE
AR5
HK$'000
TER

(41,846)

29,737

Retailing -
Hong Kong,
Macau and
overseas
PE &
AP R &5
HK$'000
TR

5,352,196

(370,099

Year ended 31 March 2019
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BE019F3AMALEE
Retailing - Wholesaling - Inter -
Mainland Wholesaling - Mainland segment
China  Hong Kong China Licensing  elimination ~ Unallocated
oH - #E— #a—
FER & tEAM  RRRE  SPEHE ROE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TiET
(18,835) (3,778) (12,635) (6,578) - (28,829)
- - (427) (8,845) - (1,672)
- - - - - (3,002)
24,937 1,359 10,311 14,484 - 852,783
As at 31 March 2019
1#2019%3A31H
Retailing - Wholesaling -
Mainland ~ Wholesaling - Mainland
China Hong Kong China Licensing  Unallocated
H— e — e —
FE AL EiE FEAY RERY A8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TRT TET FET
1,683,713 1,263,750 3,542,066 587,827
13,279
620,470
311,716
54,643
10,571
983,341
(52,961) (66,092) (206,891) (488,507)
(133,690)
(149,276)
(1,855,224)
(450,889)
(87,027)

Total

ot
HK$'000
TR

(112,501)
(10,944)
(3,002)
933,611

Total

it
HK$'000
TET

12,429,552

13,279
620,470
311,716
54,643
10,57
983,341

14,423,572
(1,184,550)

(133,690)
(149,276)
(1,855,224)
(450,889)
(87,027)

(3,860,656)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS ¥R MY AL

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SEBMER (#])
Year ended 31 March 2018
HR01853A31ALEE
Retailing -
Hong Kong, Retalling - Wholesaling - Inter - Reportable
Macau and Mainland ~ Wholesaling - Mainland segment segments
overseas China Hong Kong China Licensing elimination Total
ZE—FH TE— BE— B — PES:
RFIRESN HER BE FERY mieEn  HPHHH P
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#n Fitn T Fitn Fitn Fin Fitn
Revenue KA
Sales to external customers NERHE 8,771979 2,023,114 65,050 2,023,920 - - 13,284,083
Sales of scrap HERH - - 641,144 - - - 641,144
8,771,979 2,223,114 706,194 2,223,920 - - 13,925,207
Inter-segment sales AHEHE 133,162 262 2,429,032 476,822 - (3,039,278) -
Sales of merchandises HERD 8,905,141 2,223,376 3,135,226 2,700,742 - (,039,278) 13,925,207
Royalty and service income RERRBEERA - - - - 591,951 - 591,951
Consultancy fee income BRERA - - - - 61,251 - 61,251
Total feh 8,905,141 2,223,376 3,135,226 2,700,742 653,202 (3,039,278) 14,578,409
Results of reportable segments 2R MR 697,739 159,353 160,148 222,460 440915 - 1,680,615
A reconciliation of resuts of RN BEEEFR
reportable segments to proft AEENT
for the year is as follows:
Results of reportable segments 2R EEE 1,680,615
Unallocated income FATMA 53,707
Unallocated expenses FAERT (113,516)
Operating profit #Eian 1,620,806
Finance income Ep L ON 28,922
Finance costs HEER (6,392)
Share of results of associates EEBENREE (29,897)
Profit before income tax RARRAAT 1,613,439
Income tax expenses MR (043,125)
Profit for the year Emighl 1,370,314
Less: Profit attributable to L EERER R
non-controlling interests (921)
Profit attributable to equity FARHAREARGRT
holders of the Company 1,369,393
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS ¥R MY AL

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SEER (&)
Year ended 31 March 2018
HZ001853A81H LR
Retailing -
Hong Kong, Retalling - Wholesaling - Inter-
Macau and Mainland  Wholesaling - Mainland segment
overseas China  Hong Kong China Licensing elimination  Unallocated Total
ZE—Fi TE— i B —
BFRESN  hEIR EE REME  oRER SPRYH *AR @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TEL TAL TERL TEL TAR TERL TEL

Depreciation of property, nE BRRRXENE
plant and equipment (52,906) (23,060) 4,170) (11,281) (5,790) - (19.849)  (117,056)
Amortisation of land use rights tiERESE - - - (435) (8,929 - (319) (9,677)
Depreciation of investment properties % & H1 £ & - - - - - - (1,177) (1,177)
Additions of non-current assets FRBEAERE 39,004 29,112 842 4172 4,050 - 135,433 212,703
As at 31 March 2018
1201853318
Retailing -
Hong Kong, Retailing - Wholesaling -
Macau and Mainland ~ Wholesaling - Mainland
overseas China Hong Kong China Licensing Unallocated Total
TE—FE- 2E— #E— HE—
R RSN RER BE FERH REER OB 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT FHET FiET FHT FHET T
Segment assets AHEE 5,050,651 1,963,530 766,839 2,976,945 485,622 11,243,587
Interests in associates NN 67,593 67,593
Land and buidings T RiET 267,844 267,844
Investment properties REME 35,810 35,810
Deferred income tax assets EEMEHEE 47,114 47114
Income tax recoverable AlEFEH 8,134 8,134
Other unallocated assets H KA REE 544,796 544,796
Total assets HEE 12,214,878
Segment liabilties AHELE (047,842) (46,198) (180,403) (196,307) (381,331) (1,052,081)
Deferred income tax liabilties ELFMEHAR (100,714) (100,714)
Current income tax liabiliies HEBMEHRAE (170,899) (170,899)
Bank borrowings RITER (415,000) (415,000)
Gold loans e (311,289) (311,283)
Other unallocated liabilties Ht kA EREE (85,164) (85,164)

Total liabilities BAR (2,135,141)

212  Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 (EIPR) HRAE]



The Group’s revenues are mainly derived from Hong Kong
customers, Mainland China visitors to Hong Kong and
Macau and Mainland China customers. An analysis of the
Group’s revenue by location in which the transaction took
place is as follows:

Revenue ON
Hong Kong BB
Mainland China A A i
Macau and overseas SERPT K g AN

An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other than
deferred income tax assets, financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income, derivative financial
instrument, non-current deposits, interests in associates
and loan to an associate) by location of assets is as follows:

overseas
AARE5H
HK$'000
TET

22,670

2019
Hong Mainland  Macau and
Kong China
EE  hERR
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FE#7
Property, plant and equipment nE- HERRE 688,225 240,887
Land use rights TiERE - 483,131
Investment properties REME 252,609 59,107
Prepayments for purchase of BEME MR RERENR
property, plant and equipment, TEREzBNHE
and land use rights - -
Trading licence R5HR 1,080 -

941914 783,125

22,670

AEBZWMAFEZREEBZRFE RE
BBz PBAMRE R B A2
BE-BRGETZHEE S 2 AEE
ADHTIATR

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000

FExT FAET
7,633,013 7,407,584
6,006,981 5,063,673
2,219,996 2,107,152

15,859,990 14,578,409

WEEMGEHEI D 2 AKRERRBDEE
(TEREEMESHREE HARERA
He2ERAZEREE TESRT
B ERBRe RBERARZBERE
KT —FKBERB) DT :

2018
Hong Mainland ~ Macau and
Total Kong China overseas Total
it & REm  ORMREN @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TET TAL TER TER TEL
951,782 312,421 214,020 21,218 547,659

483,131 - 273,019 - 273,019
311,716 15,963 19,847 - 35,810
- 131,543 2,966 - 134,509

1,080 1,080 - - 1,080

1,747,709 461,007 509,862 21,218 992,077
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= AN

wIN (4 /\ﬁﬂv’%ﬁ&% M\T EE

214

OTHER INCOME 7 Hlk A
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FAET
Government subsidies I8 43l B
- Value-added tax (“VAT") —BEH (EEH])
refund (Note i) RR (BT aEi) 204,811 121,782
— Other subsidies (Note ii) —HE AL (MI5Ei) 48,265 34,634
Rental income G ON 8,522 4,974
Others HA 16,599 21,974
278,197 183,364
Notes: B EE
(i) This represents refund from the tax authority in Mainland China. The 0] WAKEPBEANMHEERE 2 RR - BRE

amount of refund is based on the VAT payment made in excess of 4%
of the original input VAT. The Group is entitled to the refund as it is a
member of the Shanghai Diamond Exchange and the diamonds are
imported through the Shanghai Diamond Exchange.

(i) This represents subsidies from a municipal government in Mainland (ii)
China.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7<{8&E (EI%) HRAE

BB B RETIE ETHA%E L 2 S EB R
AH RN AEES LEBORIRZKE
MEAMEBEEBEAXHERN AL
B BB RN

L 7% o B P T AT B A 2 A B o



The operating profit is stated after charging the following:

Cost of sales (Note (i) & (ii)
— cost of inventories sold
— cost of licensing business

Staff costs (including the directors’
emoluments) (Note (i)
Operating lease
— minimum lease payments
— contingent rents
Commission expenses to
credit card companies
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment (Note 16)
Depreciation of investment properties
(Note 18)
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 17)
Impairment loss on trade receivables
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit services
— Non-audit services

Notes

R s NI TIIEB &I

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
S RIS (B R ) B (i) )
—BEEFEKR 11,588,145 10,637,774
— M EEK AR 238,009 199,258
11,826,154 10,837,032
BIRA(BIEEZME)
(P EG) 913,928 864,985
KERE
—HEAENK 591,677 626,939
—AREe 193,491 196,778
SERRARZ
BeMx 103,354 100,665
W WERERETE
(MIzE16) 112,501 117,056
wEYERE (KizE18)
3,002 1,177
4 fF A 6 (BT RE17) 10,944 9,677
2 ZREBERIBEREEE 25,877 =
HEWME - BEREEZ
18 11,034 1,783
% ELRD BN &
— B %R 5,640 5,487
— BRI 1,157 1,701

[0] Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) of HK$376,850,000
(2018: HK$317,483,000) are included in cost of sales.

(i) Breakdown of total staff costs are as follows:

Basic salaries, wages, bonus and allowance

Pension costs — defined contribution plans
(Note 14)

Long service payment (Note 31)

ERFE HE LA RE

RIKS AN — EEER S
(MF7E14)

REIBR & (FI5E31)

Bt
0 HERABEEIXA (BEREEMNS)
376,850,000/ 7T (20184 : 317,483,000/

JT) e

(i BTRABEIWT :

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TR
1,212,462 1,105,076
77,469 76,159
847 1,233
1,290,778 1,182,468
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2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET FHET
Net realised gains/(losses) on derivative PTESRIT A
financial instruments (Note) BEBR W, (EiE)
FER () 9,844 (29,551)
Realised fair value losses on China Gold FEESREBBR AR
Silver Group Limited share option BRE s E#RANE
EitE - ©)
Fair value gains on convertible bond ARRES 2 AR EREE
(Note 21) (KzE21) 5,437 1,803
Net realised (losses)/gains on gold loans HEBEZEER
(EB8) Mz F5E (14,002) 1,981
Net unrealised gains on gold loans EeBECAER KR
(Note 33) F78 (MI5E33) 12,532 2,020
Net unrealised losses on forward RHEIMNES K 2
exchange contracts KRB EIBFE (3,929) -
Net realised gains on forward EHIINEGH 2
exchange contracts B IR W 5 FRE 6,707 -
Net exchange (losses)/gains N (B8R), R F5E (32,934) 37,339
(16,345) 13,583

Note:

Derivative financial instruments mainly represent the gold contracts and gold
future contracts. These derivative financial instruments are not qualified for
hedge accounting.

FATSHA
—IRITH B A

Finance income:

— Bank interest income

— Effective interest income on

non-current loan to an associate ERMEBERZ

EEAEHBA
— Interest income on the convertible bond
— Interest income on the loan to

an associate

ZF B WA

Finance costs:
— Interest expenses on bank borrowings
— Interest expenses on gold loans

BTG -

Finance (costs)/income, net

— AR ES 2 R M A

=S T : TV AN
—EBERT—xEEA

—RITERZMEMAX
—HEBEZMERAX

ME(RE) WA $HE

M eE

MELBRTAIEARSANRESHEAN %
TESBMTATTAE TG ER-

— BT —FHE AR

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FAET
23,681 22,323
4,281 4,097
1,712 1,712
&l
379 790
30,053 28,922
(30,751) (2,485)
(3,502) (3,907)
(34,253) (6,392)
(4,200) 22,530
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Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of
16.5% (2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group

ERMNEH IR AT E G ER S
FIE T &R16.5% (20184 : 16.5% ) 5118
BE - BINGEF 2 BB AF E (AR E
RBRN R A EBEBRATERERE SFH

KEE o

TRl F
operates.

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FHET

Current taxation: BVHARH 18
— Hong Kong profits tax —BENER 83,601 88,296
— Overseas taxation — G HNEIE 231,522 174,379
— Over-provision in prior years —BTFEREAE (37,862) (37,434)
Deferred income tax (Note 30) BIEFTS T (M47E30) 25,447 17,884
302,708 243,125

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax
weighted average tax rate applicable to the profits of the

consolidated entities as follows:

Profit before income tax
Add: Share of results of associates

Tax calculated at domestic tax
rates applicable to profits
in the respective jurisdictions

Income not subject to taxation

Expenses not deductible for
taxation purposes

Over-provision in prior years

Tax losses of which no deferred tax asset
is recognised

Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses

Withholding tax on undistributed profit of
those subsidiaries in Mainland China
(Note 30)

7 5% [ B P 15 B0 A i ) 2 B 7R B4 R 5

ARGHERENINEFITRFE
ZEmRBERENT

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
B AT A5 %54 A1 5 1,806,363 1,613,439
o (R E AR EE 42,479 29,897
1,848,842 1,643,336
BEBANS e AER
HAEMHRFE
a 297,464 261,473
BARBZ WA (912) (5,639)
NI s
9,789 3,539
BEFERERE (37,876) (37,434)
RERELERIBEE 2
TIBEE 9,242 1,681
By AL R ERBIEEE
(116) (1,521)
P B A B B A A
Rk 2 TEIFL
(MF5E30) 25,117 21,026
302,708 243,125
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The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company of HK$1,492,747,000 (2018: HK$1,369,393,000)
and the weighted average number of 587,107,850 (2018:
587,107,850) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 March
2019 and 2018 is the same as the basic earnings per
share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding during the years.

BREAZNTIRIBEARBIERITE A
16 7K £ B35 F1,492,747,0007% 7T (2018
F :1,369,393,0008 7C) R FNBEEHITE
NG hnHE 15 #587,107,8508% (2018
£ 1 587,107,850/% ) 51 & o

AR FEATEDEITEETEEEREN
RAY - WA 20194 201843 H31H
HFEZERBERNEGRERET
EIER

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
2018/19 interim dividend, paid, BR2018/194F & Hif% B
of HK$0.55 (2017/18 interim dividend: B BR0.55%E T
HK$0.35) per ordinary share (2017/185FE
FREARE B 1 0.3578 D) 322,909 205,488
2018/19 special dividend, paid, B &2018/19F Z R Rl i% B
of HK$NIl (2017/18 special dividend: BRELBEREET
HK$0.20) per ordinary share (2017/18F E
RIS 1 0.2078 7T ) - 117,421
322,909 322,909
2018/19 final dividend, proposed, ¥K2018/19F E R AR B
of HK$0.60 (2017/18 final dividend: B EAR0.6078 7T
HK$0.55) per ordinary (2017/18F E
share (Note) FRHEARE B 1 0.55%8 70 )
(M3E) 352,265 322,909

Note:

At a meeting held on 27 June 2019, the directors recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.60 per ordinary share. Such dividend
is to be approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of
the Company on 22 August 2019. This proposed dividend is not reflected
as dividends payable in these consolidated financial statements, but wil
be reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year ended 31
March 2020.

GEE

R2019F6A2THRIT & L EZEHRN A
fi% 8.8 ik X 8 A%0.6078 0 - A AR B AR AR
A1PR20194F8 A22 A 8297 2 IRFRIBF K& #Lf o L #i
TEAR B A I B AR A I R R R P E R AR B
WS IR AE E2020F3A31 B ILFE 2 REAFID
fii o

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S



Net contributions to pension plans charged R4RA B R B 2

to the consolidated income statement

The expense is recognised in the following line items in the
consolidated income statement:

Cost of sales SHE KA
Selling and distribution costs HERDHER
Administrative expenses TRER

The Group'’s contributions to pension plans are mainly for
employees in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Summary of
the pension plans are as follows:

(i) The Group contributes to a MPF Scheme for its
employees in Hong Kong, under which the Group and
each employee each makes monthly contribution to
the scheme at 5% of the qualifying earnings of the
employee, subject to a maximum of HK$1,500 (2018:
HK$1,500) per month.

(i)  The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China also
contribute to retirement plans for their employees in
Mainland China at a percentage of their salaries in
compliance with the requirements of the respective
municipal governments in Mainland China. The
municipal governments undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligation of all existing and future
retired employees of the Group in Mainland China.

BAKSETEIY

F R

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000
T TAT
77,469 76,159

ERAXINEEBRmRZATIEBR

7 -
s -

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#xT THETT
33,689 26,890
40,059 45,680
3,721 3,589
77,469 76,159

AEBZEREFBIRRER /BB RF
AR B ek - BINEFTEIBLA T -

(i)

AEBEAERBRERIEHIER
Bests BHAEEREREEY
BIREBZABEBRABLWBIES AH
oS B EE EBR 1,500 7T
(20184 : 1,500/ 7T ) °

AEBRFE A2 M BARIRE
3B <FABRE P B A T IR 2 ARE R
ERmEARLNEEFELERESS
—E B2 BIKF B - K
R FE AR AN SR B P B A B O PR
BERB RARIENER 2 RIKEH
Bif-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS ¥R MY AL

15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15 EFEREHRETEARRIRESR
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s (a EFEREEITHARHMS
emoluments
The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to the FARNARTEERERITHA
directors and chief executive of the Company during SrefmNT

the year were as follows:

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000

TFHET FHET

Fees ik 2,170 2,170

Salaries e 63,283 62,585
Performance and discretionary WRIBMIBEER 2L

bonuses 34,712 31,204

Contributions to pension plan RIREETEIH K 514 492

Total directors’ emoluments, payable fEf & E R4 A B G HRER

and expensed in the consolidated TH ESME B

financial statements 100,679 96,451
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Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a MAEBALTEEAARREWBA
person’s services as a director, whether of the AESE M ERNG
Company or its subsidiary undertaking:

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E20195F3A31HILLEE

Performance Estimated Employer's

and money  contribution to
discretionary Housing  values of other a retirement Total
Fees Salary bonuses allowance benefits  benefit scheme emoluments

Name of director and EERBEOH BEARE EbiEfle BEmBHET
chief executive ARREE e i BRZTEA EERN  AHRWERE AR He#g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TR TR TET TET TET
WONG Wai Sheung (Note )~ &2 % (i) 55 55,114 16,964 - - 185 72,318
TSE Moon Chuen Bk 55 1,495 2,610 - - 62 4,222
WONG Hau Yeung Easle 55 1,024 6,525 - - 42 7,646
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy B 55 766 5,742 - - 32 6,505
CHUNG Vai Ping E2K 55 713 261 - - 30 1,059
CHAN So Kuen BRzR 55 3,931 2,610 - - 163 6,759
WONG Ho Lung, Danny B 110 60 - - - - 170
YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline HER 110 60 - - - - 170
HUI Chiu Chung RT 110 60 - - - - 170
LI Hon Hung TER 110 60 - - - - 170
TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander  EiEIR* 300 - - - - - 300
IP Shu Kwan, Stephen* Ene 300 - - - - - 300
MAK Wing Sum, Alvin* AR 300 - - - - - 300
WONG Vu Pok, Marina® g 250 - - - - - 250
HUI King Wai* ARAS 250 - - - - - 250
2,170 63,283 34,712 - - 514 100,679
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS ¥R MY AL

15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15 EFREREEARRHIRES

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued) (#8)
(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s (a) EERESTHRAEMNE
emoluments (Continued) (#)
For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZE2018F3A31ALEFE
Performance Estimated Employer's
and money  contribution to
discretionary Housing  values of other a retirement Total
Fees Salary bonuses allowance benefts  benefit scheme emoluments
Name of director and EIRERTH BRARE BBz EXRRAERN
chief executive -1 ik ¢ BHZEL BREH  HHENER RIS e sm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn FiEx TR TR FiEn TFign FiEn
WONG Wai Sheung (Note )~ =18 % (i) 55 54,867 15,307 - - 178 70,407
TSE Moon Chuen B 56 1,447 2,826 - - 61 4,389
WONG Hau Yeung Esl 55 967 5,652 - - 4 6,715
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy Bl 55 695 4711 - - 29 5,490
CHUNG Vai Ping Bk 55 684 353 - - 29 1121
CHAN So Kuen BRzR 55 3,685 2,355 - - 154 6,249
WONG Ho Lung, Danny BEE 110 60 - - - - 170
YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline HE%R 110 60 - - - - 170
HUI Chiu Chung B 10 60 - - - - 170
LI Hon Hung TER 110 60 - - - - 170
TAl Kwok Leung, Alexander  EiBIR* 300 - - - - - 300
IP Shu Kwan, Stephen® B 300 - - - - - 300
MAK Wing Sum, Alin# Bk 300 - - - - - 300
WONG Yu Pok, Marina* BgE 250 - - - - - 250
HUI King Wai SRE 250 - - - - - 250
2,170 62,585 31,204 - - 492 96,451
# Independent non-executive directors # BAUIEHITES
Note: B3 -
0} Mr. Wong Wai Sheung is also the chief executive officer of the i) HREBRENABRNARZITHRER
Company.
No directors waived their emoluments in respect of #H 22018 20193 A31H [FF
the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2019. B WEEEHNEEMNS -
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Aggregate emoluments
paid to or receivable by
directors in respect of
their services as
directors, whether of
the Company or

Aggregate emoluments
paid to or receivable by
directors in respect of
their other services in
connection with the
management of the
affairs of the Company

its subsidiary

undertakings
HEEFLFH
ERBARESRZ
RBEEHEER
ExRGMesE
HK$’000

For the year ended HZ2019F3A31H
31 March 2019 EFE

For the year ended HZ2018F3A31H
31 March 2018 EFE

Except for the employer’s contribution to a retirement
benefit scheme as disclosed in (a), no other retirement
benefits were paid to the directors of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2019 in respect of
their services as directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries (2018: same).

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year ended 31 March
2019 (2018: same).

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company
did not pay any consideration to any third parties
for making available the services of themselves as
directors of the Company (2018: same).

TET

2,170

2,170

or its Subsidiary

undertakings Total
HERTEFLTH
EMBELTEHZ
EREtRBEAH

i &4 b4t ] #E

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FET

98,509 100,679

94,281 96,451

B (@)JE FT % 52 2 18 £ MR KR AET
S AN B E2019F3831H IE
FE - WEMAAGZEEHERE
EARRIRENBRARIESAMIE
M2 R A HE MR IREF) (2018
F AR

REZ2019F3A31H IEFE - #
M|ERLC I BB BERE
A (20184 : #H[A]) °

REE2019F3A31HLEFE &
AETEEERE=Z A REE AR
NARBESEERB LA EARE
(20184 : /A °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m

15

224

B MmN

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors
No loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements
were entered into by the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking in favour of the directors of the Company,
a controlled body corporate or a connected entity
of such directors at any time during the year (2018:
same).

() Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts
Save for transactions disclosed elsewhere in the notes
to these consolidated financial statements, no other
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company has a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time during
the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: same).

(g) Five highest paid individuals

Among the five highest paid individuals, all (2018: all)

of them are directors of the Company and the details

of their remuneration are disclosed in the preceding

paragraph.

(h) Senior management’s emoluments

The emoluments fall within the following bands:

15 EERERTEARBIRER

(#8)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

FRLUESR BZEFEEZRRE
EERERESZSAZHER
FURRRAMBEEZER

NS e o G N/NES) = )
BARSEITIARNABES %
EEE/XMAESHETEEAT
BAZER BEUERRHEMESR
ZHE (20184 : #8[A) °

EENXS RHEISHZEX
g2
BRZEGRAVBHREM T EMIBS
FTEBE RSN RARILEFEA
EEERTUARRESNESSE
BAREEEEERSBREZE2019
FIASIB L FEL R LT NT
RFAERZEMEARS T
B A4 (20184 : FH[A) °

IEEeHFMAL
hTE&EaFMALTES =4
(2018F : 28) RARBESE K
HFzMeFBER LRIE-

EREEARNE
WEZBME N F THAR

2019 2018

HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T 2,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$3,500,001 - HK$4,000,000 3,500,0017% 7T 24,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$4,000,001 - HK$4,500,000 4,000,0017% 7T 4,500,000/ 7T - 1
2 2

Senior management represents senior management
staff who are non-directors.

SREEERFEFTISMERA
EO
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Furniture and

fixtures and
Land and Leasehold computer Plant and Motor
buildings  improvements equipment machinery vehicles Total
HEME KA -RER
THERETF ke EEEE BERES RE 1]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FiEn FiEn Titn TEL FhL
At 1 April 2017 #2017¢4R18
Cost [ 474,596 498,825 189,784 48217 23,867 1,235,280
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (81,829) (395,793) (187,737) (34,376) (21,284) (671,019
Net book value REFE 392,767 103,032 52,047 13,841 2,583 564,270
Year ended 31 March 2018 BE2018F3ANALER
Opening net book value ENERFE 392,767 103,032 52,047 13,841 2583 564,270
Additions HE 2,624 45,670 31,360 3,647 483 83,784
Disposals & - (1,425) (545) (455) (145) (2,570)
Depreciation charge TEZM (11,369) (73,478) (24,837) (6,027) (1,345) (117,056)
Exchange differences EREE 13,179 2,270 2,612 1,015 155 19,231
Closing net book value FREEFE 397,201 76,069 60,637 12,021 1,731 547,659
At 31 March 2018 #¥2018%3RA31A
Cost [ 493,474 508,451 225,154 54520 25,407 1,307,006
Accumulated depreciation 2HTE (96,279) (432,382) (164,517) (42,499) (23,676) (759,347)
Net book value FETE 397,201 76,069 60,637 12,021 1,731 547,659
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE2019F3[ALEE
Opening net book value FNREFE 397,201 76,069 60,637 12,021 1,731 547,659
Addltions RE 640,207 92,309 42,268 1,983 2,131 778,988
Disposals et - (5,229) (9,636) (19) - (14,884)
Transfers to investment properties ERRRANE (234,778) - - - - (234,778)
Depreciation charge REZM (15,250) (62,322) (26,905) (6,497) (1,527) (112,501)
Exchange differences EXER (7,977) (1,334) (2,515) (768) (108) (12,702)
Closing net book value FREEFE 779,493 99,493 63,849 6,720 2,227 951,782
At 31 March 2019 R2019%3A31A
Cost [ 822,722 549,539 234,501 52,682 25,400 1,684,844
Accumulated depreciation 2HE (43,229) (450,046) (170,652) (45,962) (23,173) (732,062)
Net book value RRFE 779,493 99,493 63,849 6,720 2,227 951,782

As at 31 March 2019, land and buildings of
HK$575,864,000 (2018: Nil) were pledged to the Group’s
bank borrowings of HK$983,244,000 (2018: Nil).

M2019F3A31H L K #&F
575,864,000/ T (20184 : &) B2 A {E
7N = B 4R 77 B $7983,244,0007% 7t (2018
F ) IR -
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At 1 April
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Year ended 31 March
Opening net book value
Additions

Amortisation charge
Exchange differences

Closing net book value

At 31 March
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

At 1 April
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Year ended 31 March

Opening net book value

Additions

Transfers from properties,
plant and equipment

Depreciation

Exchange differences

Closing net book value

At 31 March
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

At valuation (Note)
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"W3H31H
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REHiE
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2019
HK$’000
FT#x

327,619
(54,600)

273,019

273,019
239,472
(10,944)
(18,416)

483,131

545,022
(61,891)

483,131

2019
HK$’000
TER

42,661
(6,851)

35,810

35,810
46,694

234,778
(3,002)
(2,564)

311,716

321,040
(9,324)

311,716
892,342

2018
HK$'000
TAT

287,873
(40,092)

247,781

247,781
8,809
(9,677)
26,106

273,019

327,619
(54,600)

273,019

2018
HK$’000
TET

40,446
(5,426)

35,020

35,020

(1,177)
1,967

35,810

42,661
(6,851)

35,810
101,401



Note: PaE -

The valuation of the investment properties was determined by an BREMEZEETRB L GEMRIMBELEER
independent valuer BMI Appraisals Limited at open market values (2018: BMI NENEAFTEEE (20184 : A MIBBAFEBR D
Appraisals Limited). al) e
Future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non- IRIE T AT 2 482 F0 & 0 R SRR
cancellable operating leases are as follows: JEEHSBENAT
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Not later than one year —FR 23,599 10,006
Later than one year and not later than —FRETBBAT
five years 207,076 5,544
230,675 15,550
As at 31 March 2019, investment properties of 7201993 A31H 12 & %1 321,914,000
HK$21,914,000 (2018: Nil) were pledged to the Group’s BT (20184 B ) E AEA S EIRTTE
bank borrowings of HK$983,244,000 (2018: Nil). 7£983,244,000/% 7t (20184 : &) Ay 3K
o
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT T
As at 1 April R4HA1H 67,593 85,012
Share of results of associates for the year ~ FRE(REE & A B %4 (42,479) (29,897)
Share of reserve movement of FAREEEE QR FEE
associates for the year (11,835) 12,478
As at 31 March A3HA31H 13,279 67,593
Amount due from an associate (Note i) FEU — KBt & 2 R BRIA
(B &ED) 3,078 13,173
Amount due to an associate (Note i) JE — KB A RIERIR
(Hf5ED) (2,715) (3,555)
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Particulars of the associates of the Group as at 31 March
2019 are as follows:
Particulars
Place of of issued
Name incorporation share capital
£ o 1 B 3L 3t ERITREHE
Luk Fook Diamond Hong Kong HK$6,120,000
Company Limited* ~ &# 6,120,000/ 7T
NREABRA R
China Gold Silver Group The British Virgin USDS3,334
Company Limited Islands (“BVI") 3,334% T
(‘cGS"y HKBHEBERES
TRESREERRAR ([HBEAR
(MhEE:R]) " #5851

Notes:

(i)

Pursuant to the shareholders’ agreement, this associate is controlled
by a third party, who holds the casting vote in the directors’ meetings.

The financial statements of this company are audited by firm other
than PricewaterhouseCoopers. The financial year of this associate is
not conterminous with that of the Group and the financial statements
used for equity accounting are for the 12 months period ended 31
December 2018. This associate uses 30 June as its financial year to
conform with its holding company’s reporting date. Pursuant to the
shareholders’ agreement, the company is controlled by its holding
company, which holds the casting vote in the directors’ meetings.

Amount due from an associate of HK$3,078,000 (2018:
HK$13,173,000) is trade in nature. Amount due from/(to) associates
are denominated in HK$ and are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

The Group’s associates did not have any significant capital
commitments as at 31 March 2019 and 2018.

7201
R

AT T

9F3A3IAAREE

42
Jr

% of attributable interests

held indirectly

Principal activities

MEsAREEGESL FEXH
2019 2018
50% 50%  Manufacturing and
wholesale of diamond
products
EOERBE R
50% 50%  Retailing and franchising

BT

operations of gold and
jewellery products in
Hong Kong, Macau
and Mainland China
EEE RFRPENM
REZSRUBEE
EmZ TERFHE

& 2
=i

BREBRRGBZ ZHEARBREFS
ARRERZE =T

ZARZHBEREABERKESTMER
itz SN oAt B TS FTE8 A% o 3% 4 A B 2 BB
FERASETR EUBERRDEARERE
@i MERE20185FE 128310 (H121@ A
HARE o 3% R AR A6 AS0 R fE A E BT B
EFER UEERRARNREBH K-
IRIRAR SR e - X A R E IR A AR HI - 3%
ERARNESEEZTIRATE-

FEM — KB & A B8R 183,078,000/ 7T (2018
118,173,000 70) AE S5MHE - el (JE
M BERRRBENETHE  BIKF - 28
RERERIEE-

AN B A Tl R20194 K%201843 A31
B 3 BT & KA AN AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS ¥R MY AL

19

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Summarised consolidated financial information
for an associate

Set out below are the summarised consolidated financial
information of CGS.

19 REBEARZER (])
—EKBEAFIZFAMBRHAER

PR RZEEUBEEMREERIIIT -

Summarised consolidated balance sheet FeEEARKREE
As at Group’s
31 December attributable
2018 interest
R20184F REH
12H318 JEIE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Non-current asset EMBEE 244,489 122,245
Current Asset mBEE 2,101,930 10,50,965
Current liabilities mEa & (240,431) (120,216)
Non-current liabilities Fkmeas (2,075,117) (1,037,559)
Net assets FEE 30,871 15,435
Summarised consolidated statement of FEXEBAEREE
comprehensive income
For the
year ended Group’s
31 December attributable
2018 interest
B Z2018F REE
12A318IEFE FEL R
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Revenue ON 1,380,294 690,147
Loss for the year FAEE (84,584) (42,292)
Other comprehensive income HEa2mEUA (22,203) (11,101)
Total comprehensive income FHEBHKA (106,787) (53,393)
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Non-current portion
Loan to an associate (Note i)

Current portion
Loan to an associate (Note ii)

Notes:

(i

FREES
(PMEED)
REEH

(B =i

In connection with the acquisition of CGS on 6 June 2014, the
Group and Hong Kong Resources Holdings Limited (‘HKRH”)
each agreed to provide funding of HK$100,000,000 to CGS by
way of shareholder’s loan for general working capital and business
expansion purpose.

The shareholder’s loan is unsecured, interest-free and not to be
repaid within one year after the end of the reporting period. The
carrying amount is denominated in HK$.

The difference between the nominal value of the loan and its fair
value of HK$80,207,000 at the time of acquisiton amounting to
HK$19,793,000 is regarded as part of the cost of the investment in
CGS.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group and HKRH each agreed to provide
a short-term shareholder loan of HK$43,190,000 to CGS. The short-
term shareholder’s loan is interest bearing at 2% per annum and with
maturity within one year, which was fully settled during the year ended
31 March 2019.

ERT—FBERT

BT RBEA

(il

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FT#x THETT
99,208 94,927

- 43,190

99,208 138,117

PLR2014F6 A6 A W iEH Bl £ IR - A& [E &
EBERERARRA ([EHERER])
HREZESB—EREEFR AP ESRELH
100,000,000 L& & FA—REEES K

PRRE ST EEM 28 BEERRESR
B—FNEE -FREEDABITFE

EXvHEHEEAEARAKERN DA
80,207,000/ JT 2 7 #819,793,000/% 7T # 18
BRESRIEERARZ —&D -

M2018F3A31H  AEB R EAERER
5 [R &\ A B % R 42 443,190,000/ 7T 1) 52
HARG SR B 5K - 52 BAPR BR B S IR2% 2 F | K5t
B YR—FREH -ZERREREREE
2019F3A31AILFE RS-
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Non-current asset
Convertible bond (Note i)

Current asset
Convertible bond (Note i)

Current liabilities
Foreign exchange forward contracts

FREBRE

REEE

id AR

(Note ii)

Note:

On 6 June 2014, the Group subscribed a convertible bond of
HKRH of HK$57,080,000 with 3% interest rate per annum and 5
years of maturity from the date of issuance. The conversion period
commences on the 2nd anniversary of the issue date and expires on
the date which is three days before its maturity. On 26 June 2019,
the Group entered into an agreement with HKRH to extend the final
repayment date of the convertible bond to 9 September 2019. The
convertible bond shall bear an interest at 8% per annum from 6 June
2019 to the date of repayment.

The convertible bond comprises a loan receivable component and
option component which together have been designated as derivative
financial instrument by the Group. The fair value as at year end was
valued by an independent valuer using a Trinomial Tree model with
the following key assumptions:

Share price of HKRH

Exercise price * 1T fE"

Dividend yield fig B =

Effective interest rate HIRF %

Volatility B 8

Risk free rate = 3 b

* Pursuant to the resolution passed by HKRH on 17 July

2018 and with effective from 18 July 2018, every four issued
and unissued ordinary shares of HKRH with par value of
HK$0.01 each are consolidated into one consolidated
ordinary share of the HKRH with par value of HK$0.04 (the
“Share Consolidation”). Upon the completion of the Share
Consolidation and according to the terms of the convertible
bond of HKRH, the exercise price was adjusted.

AR E S (M)

Al E S (M)

SNERHRA ) (B aEN)

BRERERRNER

GEE

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FT#x THETT
- 50,782

56,219 S
56,219 50,782
3,929 S

M20145F6A6H  REBEREEFHERIZR
A #A% E%557,080,000/8 7T FFIL3% » b3
THHEIRESFEREIH - RN BT AR
38 4 00 2= B B B BISK 8 M © 72201946
A26R - AEBEBREBERIERITLHZE 1§
ZABRREFNRERERAHERZE2019F
9A9B - Z A AR EH K FFE A8% ' 5T B
A A2019F6 A6B EE KB -

AR ESBEERESR R BRE BAE
BEER/TESR IR -FRAAEHRBEY
HEEERA = XAEE R A TR RERETT
(G

As at 31 March

#3A31H
2019 2018
HK$0.16# T HK$0.087% 7T
HK$0.712# 5T HK$0.178/& 7T
0% 0%
16.46% 16.18%
33.94% 39.14%
1.37% 1.22%

* RIEE B ERIERMN2018F7 A17H
BB 20187 A18H £z k&
R BBERIER SR SREE.O1
BILZBEBRITRRETETBRREMA
ERERER—REE.ABTZA
BrEER (TIRDEH]) - BRI EHT
BB RARIEE A B TR IR AT AR (E 5
g 1T EE FREE-
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Note: (Continued)

M (&)

[0) (Continued) (i) (%)
The fair value gain of HK$5,437,000 (2018: HK$1,803,000) was NS AW EFEE,437,0008 T (20184 -
included under “Other (losses)/gains, net” in the consolidated income 1,803,000/ 7T ) 5t A B 2201943 A31H 1
statement for the year ended 31 March 2019. FEZEGESER Y [Hib (BB) ks
B o
(ii) The notional amount of the outstanding RMB denominated foreign (ii) R2019F3A31H R FBEUAREFEZ I
exchange forward contracts as at 31 March 2019 represented RMB EERHENZEREHEARKINEERRS
exchange forward contracts of HK$239,492,000. (2018: Nil) #9239,492,00078 7 (20184F : &) °
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET T
Financial assets at fair value through BRAREFAEM2HEIA
other comprehensive income ZE&REE (20185 :
(2018: Available-for-sale AHHESRMEE)
financial assets)
At 1 April R4H1H 6,075 7,690
Net fair value loss transfer to equity HEREER 2 FANE
(Note 29) &8 (FT5E29) (2,941) (1,615)
At 31 March MR3H31H 3,134 6,075
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive BARBRFAEMEARAZSBEE
income represent common shares issued by a company BEBBHERXGMBRAG EMZA
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The ABITZEBR AR E AHEMEE
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive WAz &EENEITFE  WARRE
income are denominated in HK$ and stated at fair values. HI| B o
These investments were classified as available-for-sale MR2018F3H31H % FIwE N B AR #
financial assets at 31 March 2018. Please see Note 2.2 to HESHEE BANRABET RS
the consolidated financial statements for the reclassification AR EORIER2018F4 1B % ERE
of these investments from available-for-sale financial assets RAREESREEETS»BAREAR
to financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive Bt AHMEEBAZSREE 2R
income on 1 April 2018 upon the adoption of HKFRS 9. AR EWF2.2
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2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET FHET
Non-current JEENRA
Rental deposits Meke 102,334 77,658
Prepayments (Note) TEfTSRIE (M5E) 2,767 134,509
105,101 212,167
Current EpHf
Rental deposits Here 53,584 85,456
Value-added tax recoverable AT El R (B A 223,807 148,768
Prepayments B FEIE 88,362 64,720
Interest receivables FE UL FI) B, 1,017 7,023
Other receivables H At e BR IR 57,955 27,944
Other deposits Emize 49,289 30,854
474,014 364,765
579,115 576,932
Note: fsE -
As at 31 March 2018, included in non-current prepayment is an amount 201853 A31H  EMEN TS 5/ IEH 131,543,000/
of HK$131,543,000 prepayment for the acquisition of several commercial TAEBREBMNNREENE THEYENTENTE
properties located in Hong Kong. The amount has been transferred to MR2018FAATR R 5% RSB EREZME -
property, plant and equipment upon the completion of the transaction in April R R R
2018.
The carrying amounts of the deposits, prepayments and e TENFEREMEWIRIE Z BREE
other receivables approximate their fair values and are BEENAERE WA TIEE BN :

denominated in the following currencies:

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
HK$ BT 167,191 295,853
RVMB AR 351,606 231,496
MOP BT 48,102 42,521
Other currencies Hip g 12,216 7,062
579,115 576,932
The credit quality of deposits and other receivables has e RhHMERKERB EELEENER
been assessed by reference to historical information about DEFBREFHIEREE 2 BEEE#E
the counterparty default rates. The existing counterparties Tt - R AHF T RE W BB
have not defaulted in the past. Note 4 sets out the MiaE4Ek A B A R AR TER B R AN &
information about the impairment of other receivables and EmEE 2 EERRBINEE - ASEILER
the Group’s exposures to credit risk. The Group does not Hite R H M BRI A E(H I -

hold any collateral for its deposits and other receivables.

Annual Report 2018/19 E#i



The inventories net of provision are as follow:

Finished goods BIRY on
Raw materials B E

At 31 March 2019, inventories carried at net realisable
value amounted to approximately HK$268,182,000
(2018: HK$92,055,000). As at 31 March 2019, the Group
recognised inventory provision of HK$26,818,000 (2018:
HK$9,206,000), resulted in inventory provision charged
amounting to HK$17,612,000 (2018: HK$4,477,000) and
included in ‘cost of sales’ in the consolidated financial
statements.

MR EzFERT

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER TET
9,248,683 7,855,443
72,839 136,284
9,321,522 7,991,727

R2019F3A31H & Al & [ FE VR
2178 %) 45268,182,000/% 7T (20184 :
92,055,000/ 7T ) ° 20193 A31H * &
EERERT E1526,818,000/8 7T (2018
F 19,206,000 1) F BT E & #HH
17,612,000/ Jt (20184F : 4,477,000
BIT)  WaT ARERE B IE 3R KR [ E K
K]

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TABT

Trade receivables 2 5 RWIRIA 363,971 359,796
Less: Allowance for impairment BB 5 REWERIERERE

of trade receivables (1,296) -

362,675 359,796

The Group’s sales to retail customers comprised mainly
cash sales and credit card sales. Concessionaire sales
through department stores and sales to wholesale
customers are generally on credit terms ranging from O to
90 days.

AEERNTEEFPHEIZREASH
EMERRHEE - AERSHFHEER
A EEFHE 2 EEH RN F0E0
=
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The ageing of trade receivables is as follows:

0 - 30 days
31 - 60 days
61 — 90 days
91 - 120 days
Over 120 days

Less: Allowance for impairment

of trade receivables

0&30H
31%260H
61%290H
91%120H
381200

B HRWIRIAE 2 BRERIN T

2019
HK$’000
FER

311,167
34,784
12,103

2,214
3,703

363,971

W E 5 R B E B

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their
fair values and are denominated in the following currencies:

HKS$
RMB
MOP
Other currencies

BT
AR
MBFITT
Hitp 5 #

The credit quality of trade receivables has been assessed by
reference to historical default rate of the counterparty. The
existing counterparties have not defaulted in the past. The
Group does not hold any collateral for its trade receivables.

(1,296)
362,675

2018
HK$'000
TATT
244,820
76,925
20,170
8,769
9,112

359,796

359,796

BH WA REEEE A ERE -

WA TINEE BEL :

2019
HK$’000
TEx
133,186
210,333
17,578
2,874

363,971

2018
HK$’000
TET
67,452
270,887
19,088
2,369

359,796

BHRYIEBREEEENER2EYHT
TBERR L RETHE - REHTF B
EWEIE R - AEE L EREE HE

WAk RIS A EEHE A
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The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure expected credit losses which use a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. The Group
also continuously monitors the credit risks by assessing
the credit quality of respective counterparties. When
necessary, the Group will make specific provision for those
balances which cannot be recovered apart from the general
provision arise from the expected credit loss model. Upon
the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018 and as at 31
March 2019, the loss allowance was HK$2,244,000 and
HK$1,296,000, respectively. Note 4(a)(iv) provides for details
about the calculation of these loss allowance. The loss
allowance for impaired trade receivables had been included
in ‘administrative expenses’ in the consolidated income
statement. Amounts charged to the allowance account
are generally written off, when there is no expectation of
recovering additional cash.

REBEERB BB RS ERFEH
ERTEEBEERE URMEE RN
RERAXBHERGEREG - NEEIT
BRTHEBEFINEEEERES
TEERB -NEERE KRIEHEEEIE
RAEEN—MREEIN FEEEHZS
R BEUR B #9425 B 1 T F TE B B - 722018
F4A1 A RN BB RS LR FI% 1%
R A201943 A31H » B EEE D Al A
2,244,000/ 7T 1,296,000/ 7T ° & B 7%
LEEBENTTEFBEHRNT4E@)W) °
EREEZEURIENEERED A
RAEBRRANIITHRER] SHEHE
FEWEREINR SR REBEEENRNESE
— A& DA S o

Short-term bank deposits, with A LR=ME A

maturities less than 3 months REERIRTTIE X
Cash at bank and on hand RITEREFERS
Cash and cash equivalents RekRECEED
Short-term bank deposits, with FHBABA-@EAN

maturities over 3 months g BRER 1T 3K

Re RIRTTHEBREE

Total cash and bank balances

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TAET
224,796 707,164
1,861,726 1,192,895
2,086,522 1,900,059
- 197,808
2,086,522 2,097,867

As at 31 March 2019, the cash and bank balances
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$1,126,766,000 (2018: HK$1,442,671,000) are held by
the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China. The conversion
of the RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

As at 31 March 2019, short-term bank deposits with
maturities less than 3 months of HK$224,796,000 (2018:
HK$707,164,000) bear an average interest rate of 2.34%
(2018: 4.27%) per annum with maturity in April 2019 (2018:
from April 2018 to June 2018). As at 31 March 2018,
short-term bank deposit with maturities over 3 months of
HK$197,808,000 bear an average interest rate of 4.4% per
annum with maturity in July 2018.

R201943A31H  MARESTEMNRE
K $8 17 45 84 #91,126,766,000/% 7T (2018
F 11,442,671,0008 7C) Ty AEE R
Witz B R EIEE - KiZSEUARE
FHEMESHRIRE BINE BB ST B BT
T 9845 2 HINEE & 1) 45 Bl K2 4R 471

MR2019F3A31A BB A LR =MA
#9542 B4R 17 17 224,796,000/ 7T (2018
707,164,000 7T ) A F 15 F F =
2.34%51 8 (20184 : 4.27% ) » 2019
F4 7 (20184 : 2018F 4 A £201846
B ) E|E - 201843 A31H » BIHfHERSE
= & A #9528 B3 $R 17 17 $197,808,000/% 7T
LA FEFIE4.4%51 8 - WR201847 A
Eap:ip
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2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET FHET
Trade payables Z P EMNRIE 292,456 380,134
Deposits from customers and licensees REBFEREBZ £ 345,269 389,348
Salaries and welfare payables B EH < REF 206,959 193,894
Other payables H b fERTRRIE 105,086 119,443
Accrued expenses et E A 26,070 42,634
975,840 1,125,453
The ageing of trade payables is as follows: B HRENERB ZRERNT
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
0 - 30 days 0% 30H 255,580 276,949
31 - 60 days 31£260H 25,396 79,244
61 — 90 days 61290H 7,908 19,596
91 — 120 days 91£120H 2,663 4,345
Over 120 days HBim120H8 909 =
292,456 380,134
The carrying amounts of the trade payables, other payables B ZFETIRIA - HAbFE T BRIE R E 5T 5IR
and accruals approximate their fair values. ZHREEEEEZ ARERE-
2019 2018
No. of shares HK$'000  No. of shares HK$'000
BB FTH#T Bt 20 B FET
Authorised: VETE
Ordinary shares of FREEAB T
HK$0.1 each TR 800,000,000 80,000 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: 2 31T R AR
Ordinary shares of ~&RHEE0.1ETZ
HK$0.1 each TR 587,107,850 58,710 587,107,850 58,710
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET FHET
At 31 March M3A31H 2,494,040 2,494,040
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Representing:
Reserves

(excluded proposed dividend)
Proposed dividend

At 31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2018
At 1 April 2017

Comprehensive income

Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Other comprehensive income

Currency translation differences

Remeasurement of employes benefit B EBFIZAHEH:TE

obligations (Note 31(d)
Revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets (Note 22)

Total other comprehensive
income

Transactions with owners
2016/17 final dividend paid
2016/17 special dividend paid
2017/18 interim dividend paid
2017/18 special dividend paid
Acquisition of additional equity

interest in a subsidiary from a non-

controlling interest

At 31 March 2018

Representing:
Reserves

(excluded proposed dividend)
Proposed dividend

At 31 March 2018

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S

1

e
(TRERERS)

BiEks

2017837318

#E2018%3A310
LEE
R2017%54E18

2ERA
ARRERREA
BIEE
Eb2EHA
EiEE

(f5%31(d))
TRENESBEEN

EERD (i)

A2 ERMA

LELINA L

ER016MTEERERE
B201617EESBIRE
BR017/18EE T HRE
E201718F ERAIRE
EERAC I NG

RENBAE S

#2018F3A318

B

fth
(TeERERS)

BERS

201853831

Capital
reserve

ey
HK$'000
TET
(Note i)
(W)
135,713

135,713

136,713

135,713

135,713

135,713

Available-

for-sale

Capital financial

redemption assets

reserve reserve

RERE  WiiHe

fifi REERR

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TET
(Note iv)
(M&iv)

200 (4,334)

200 (4,334)

200 (4,334)

- (1,619)

- (1,619)

200 (6,949

200 (6,949

200 (6,949

Exchange
reserve

ER G0
HK$'000
TET

(214,755)

(214,755)

(214,755)

405,244

405,244

190,489

190,489

190,489

Statutory
reserve

EE
HK$'000

TER
(Note ii)
(W)

92,620

92,620

92,620

92,620

92,620

92,620

Other
reserve

Rt E
HK$'000

TR
(Note i)
(Piiii)

17,569
17,669

17,569

17,669

17,569

Retained
earnings

REEH
HK$'000
Fign

5,988,247
322,909

6,311,156

6,311,156

1,369,393

16,646

1,386,039

(645.819)

7,061,377

6,728,468
322,909

7,051,377

Total
én

HK$'000
TFET

5,997,691
322,909

6,320,600

6,320,600

1,369,393
405,244
16,646

(1,619

1,789,668

(234,843

17,569
(628,249)

7,482,019

7,159,110
322,909

7,482,019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS ¥R MY AL

29 RESERVES (Continued) 29 fiEfim (#8)
Financial
assets
at fair value
Available- - through other
for-sale comprehensive
Capital financial income
Capital  redemption assets  revaluation  Exchange Statutory Other Retained
reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total
BARERA
E2ERA
B5EE  THHE  zemEE
BHEH HiF SMEERE 2 EGGH 2 ERRE 0 ZEGE 0 RMRE  GEEN 1]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TR TR TER TR TR TR TER
(Note ) (Note iv) (Note ii) (Note iii)
(W) (MWitwv) (W) (ki)
Representing: &
Reserves [

(excluded proposed dividend) (T eERRRS) 135,713 200 (5,949 - 190,489 92,620 17,569 6,728,468 7,159,110
Proposed dividend RERS - - - - - - - 322909 322909
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3A31R 135,713 200 (5,949) - 190,489 9,620 17,569 7051377 7482019
Change in accounting policis &3 f R £ % (Hi3t22)

Note 22) - - 5949 5.4 - - S R0y (000
Restated total equity as at R201854A18

1 April 2018 BEj|EGLH 135,713 200 - (5,949) 190,489 92,620 17560 7000374 7432016
For the year ended HBE2019%3A31A

31 March 2019 LEE
Restated total equity as at R2018F4A18

1 Aorl 2018 aEjlEnes 185,713 200 - (5,049) 190,489 92,620 17569 7001374 7432016
Comprehensive income 2ERA
Proft atiributable to equiy VA sz YN ]

holders of the Company - - - - - - - 1,492,747 1,492,747
Other comprehensive income Xt 2 Ek A
Currency tranglation differences  EZEE - - - - (309,717) - - - (309,717)
Remeasurement of employee ~~ EEBHIELHEH;TE

benefit obligations (Note 31(d) ~ (i&31(d)) - - - - - - - (1,767) (1,767)
Revaluation of financial assets ~ EALEFALB2ERA

at fair value through other LEBAEEERY

comprehensive income (Note 22)  ({5£22) - - - (2,041) - - - - (2.941)
Total other comprehensive ~ EfI2EEKA

income - - - pot)  EoeT - - 14090 117832
Transactions with owners BEEALZS
2017/18 final dividend paid BR01T18FERER S - - - - - - - (322,909) (322,909)
2018/19 interim dividend paid BR01819F R ER S - - - - - - - (322,909 (322,909

- - - - - - - Bs81g (645819
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3A31R 135,713 200 - (8,890) (119,228) 92,620 17,569 7,846,536 7,964,520
Representing: &
Reserves [

(excluded proposed diidend) ~ (FRERERS) 185,713 200 - B89%0)  (11928) 92,620 17569 7494271 7612255
Proposed dividend F ) - - - - - - - 352,265 352,265
At 31 March 2019 Ro019%3Fs18 13,718 20 - B0 (19228 W60 17569 TH6E% 796450
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Notes:

(i

(i)

()

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at
the time of the Group’s reorganisation in 1997.

Statutory reserves are non-distributable and the transfers of these
funds are determined by the Board of Directors of the relevant
Mainland China subsidiaries in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations in Mainland China.

Other reserve represents the differences between the fair value of the
consideration paid and carrying amount of additional equity interests
acquired in non-wholly owned subsidiaries.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group purchased
2,000,000 of its shares on Hong Kong Stock Exchange at a total
consideration of HK$29,143,000. All the repurchased shares were
cancelled and the issued share capital of the Company was reduced
by the nominal value of these shares accordingly. The premium paid
on repurchase was charged against the share premium of the Group.
An amount equivalent to the nominal value of the shares cancelled
was transferred from retained earnings to the capital redemption
reserve.

Deferred income tax of the Group is provided for in respect

MeE:

(i)

)

REEZ BARBEASER907F EHEE
FAT Y2 B PR BB 1% ) 2 PR A TED L B R MR B AT AR
REBRH zEERER 2 E8 -

EERBEBIAA DK BRARMKAETRA
B B A E R R EE SRR B AE
BER KR PIRE

Hibmao MREZAREEGFZER
BRRMBRERINEAERREE  E/E

REE2016F3A3IALLFE  RNEE UL
X 1829,143,0008 TN B B X MEEH
2,000,000/% A& 17  FT G & Bl AR 17 59 B 51 85
MARRKEBITRACHERDZSRG
ZEAE-ERAMZMOEENEAEER
BHEENR BEFHEHROEERSZS
BEERBANEREZEABERRFEE-

REERLERSH T T 55 B IE L #
=

of:
Undistributed profit of
Tax depreciation Unrealised profit on those subsidiaries in
allowances and tax losses  closing inventories Mainland China Total
hE AR
RERERGRRAEGR NXEHIKERETN MELABXFEARF #a
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAR TET FAR TERT FAER TERT FET
At 1 April »w4A1A 3,507 1,723 38,613 39,238 (95,720) (76,677) (53,600) (35,716)
Credited/(charged) to the  #FABZER:TA
consolidated income /(1K)
statement (Note 11) (HzE11) 25,079 1,784 (25,409) (629) (25,117) (19,043) (25,447) (17,884)
At 31 March R3A31A 28,586 3,507 13,204 38,613 (120,837) (95,720) (79,047) (53,600)
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Representing: =k
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHETT
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTSTEE
— Deferred income tax assets to be —RiEE@+—E A% EIkE
recovered after more than 12 months MIREFTISTHEE 35,160 12,580
— Deferred income tax assets to be —RT @A AL
recovered within 12 months HIRE TSI & B 19,483 34,534
54,643 47,114
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFFSHRAE
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be —RABR+T @ A%ZEIKE
recovered after more than 12 months FIEEMSHREE (126,631) (100,236)
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be —R+ =@ AREKE
recovered within 12 months HEELEFTSHBE (7,059) 478)
(133,690 (100,714)
Deferred income tax liabilities, net BEFTEMEE 3 (79,047) (53,600)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable profit
is probable. As at 31 March 2019, the Group had
potential unrecognised deferred tax assets amounting
to HK$27,507,000 (2018: HK$18,381,000) in respect of
tax losses to be carried forward against future taxable
income. Cumulative tax losses of HK$74,983,000 (2018:
HK$43,187,000) can be carried forward indefinitely;
cumulative tax losses of HK$53,802,000 (2018:
HK$45,020,000) will expire (if not utilised) within the next five
years. The remaining balance of the cumulative tax losses
of HK$8,250,000 (2018: Nil) will expire (if not utilised) in the
next seven to twenty years.

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group
is obligated to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to certain employees
who have completed at least five years of service with
the Group. The amount payable is dependent on the
employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
The Group does not set aside any assets to fund any
remaining obligations. The long service payments are paid
out from the Group’s cash in hand when such payments are
required.

The latest actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2018 and
31 March 2019 specifically designated for the Group’s
employees was completed by a qualified actuary, Towers
Watson Hong Kong Limited, using projected unit credit
method.

BEREFESREEDMEHE 2 HIEE B
R EEA BB ARERT R
#EAE R TR B F 25 2 IR - R20194F 3 A 31
B AEBEEEERERELCHEEE
27,507,000/ 7T (20184 : 18,381,000
BIL) BB TAEIREHEE
MMM A HIBEE - R HIEEE
74,983,000/ JT (20184 : 43,187,000
B ERBPALS . R HEEE
53,802,0005% 7T (20184 : 45,020,000/%
T B A - AR KRR A FE R M e
ZETFIBEE R &R T 45 828,250,000/ 7T
(20184 « &) & A - Bl R AR R4
E+FRNEm-

RIEEER (REED)  AEBEEER
HTERAT RERBAKERDAFZ
FTEEREZEERES N —RER
B BNFBADETEREE Z&RFE
KRS FHBME - WK EANE BRI S
BT RAEEZHREIE 2 REER A
SEVERDTAEEFE/EMHTE
TzEe REEXNEHFKAR €18
AEE 2 FBEREBERN PR E -

SARBEMBEERUEBRR AN
Bt B EEATRERAEEERM
"% 2201853 A31H K201943 A31H
AR E A
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The amount recognised in the consolidated balance (@)
sheet is as follows:

Present value of defined benefit
obligations

RERMEEZRE

Movements in the net liability recognised in the (b)
consolidated balance sheet are as follows:

At 1 April »4HA18

Expenses recognised in the REFEBERRER X
consolidated income statement

Remeasurements recognised in other 7 E b 2 m U A FE R

comprehensive income BHETE
Benefits paid directly by employer EBEEEINZEF
At 31 March M3A31H
Expenses recognised in the consolidated income (c)
statement is as follows:
Current service cost BVHARR 75 &
Interest cost FEAK A

RiERAEABEERZFELN
—It .
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TAET
10,823 8,237
RiFBAEABRERZ AEFE
BEmT
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THAT
8,237 23,754
847 1,233
1,767 (16,646)
(28) (104)
10,823 8,237

REFABBERERZMAAT

2019
HK$’000
FEx
635

212

847

2018
HK$'000
FAET
775
458

1,233



Income recognised in the consolidated statement of (d)
comprehensive income is as follows:

Remeasurements of EERANEEMEFTTE
employees benefit obligations

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31 (e)
March 2019 and 2018 (expressed as weighted
average) are as follows:

RERE2ERAREKER 2 WAL
T~
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
1,767 (16,646)

20194 20183 A31HE A 2
FTERBERD (LAI#EFHEY)) 0
—F :

2019 2018
Discount rate AhIR & 2.5% 2.6%
Future salary increment KRR Fr &GI8 3% 3%
Return of MPF balances BB AHREIRE 3% 3%
Impact on employee benefit obligations
HESBEAREHRE

Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
REEE fRE% 18 BERED
Discount rate 0.25% Decrease by 2.85% Increase by 2.35%
ARER = 0.25% B 2.85% #102.35%
Salary growth rate 0.25% Increase by 3.25% Decrease by 2.75%
FogRX 0.25% 18 713.25% RA2.75%

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change LA ESRRE DT IR IR R R &

in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and
changes in some of the assumptions may be
correlated.

ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁl@fﬁ““”&ﬁ?“i?ﬂlc’ g
BR L IR AR RESR A - — LR
R E) A BEARRE
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Bank borrowings, secured
Bank borrowings, unsecured

As at 31 March 2019, bank borrowings of HK$983,244,000
(as at 31 March 2018: Nil) were secured by land and
building of HK$575,864,000 (as at 31 March 2018: Nil) and
investment properties of HK$21,914,000 (as at 31 March
2018: Nil), which bear interest at floating rates ranging from
1.6%-2.5% (as at 31 March 2018: Nil) per annum and were
denominated in HK$.

As at 31 March 2019, the bank borrowings of
HK$871,980,000 (2018: HK$415,000,000) bore interest at
floating rates were due for repayment within two months
(2018: within three months). The interest rates of the bank
borrowing ranged from 1.6%-3.1% (2018: 1.7%-1.8%) per
annum and were denominated in HK$.

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximated
their fair values, as the impact of discounting was not
significant due to their short-term maturities.

Gold loans are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period and the change in fair value is recognised
in “Other (losses)/gains, net” in the consolidated income
statement.

As at 31 March 2019, gold loans of HK$450,889,000
(2018: HK$140,692,000) represent borrowings from
banks of which the repayment amounts are pledged with
gold prices. As at 31 March 2018, gold loan balances
of HK$170,591,000 represent borrowings of gold which
involved physical settlement.

As at 31 March 2019, the gold loans are interest bearing at
0.90%-0.98% per annum (2018: 0.98%-2.6% per annum),
with original maturity of 1-83 months (2018: 2-6 months)
from date of inception.

The net unrealised gain on gold loans arising from change
in fair value of HK$12,532,000 (2018: net unrealised gain
of HK$2,020,000) has been recognised in “Other (losses)/
gains, net” in the consolidated income statement.

RITEF - HEM
RITER - BIEA

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx TR
983,244 -
871,980 415,000
1,855,224 415,000

R2019F3A31H  RRIITER
983,244,000/ 7T (7201843 A31H :
) 5 DA £t 2 #8 57575,864,00078 7T
(FR2018F3A31H ) MIEEME
21,914,000/ 7T (74201843 A31H : )
IR - ZFRITEFIRF BT LT B
K B1.6%E2.5% (201843 A31
B:#) UBTiHE.

M2019F3A31H EITEXK
871,980,000/ 7T, (20184 : 415,000,000
B FB ARG EBAR2EARN
B8 (2018F :3H A W) ~RITERF
TR AE1.6%%23.1% (2018F : 1.7% =
1.8%) ' A TTEHE

RRITERNHREE - BRTEIK
Hit - RITERZEHEERE R RER

MN2019%43A31H &EAS EE
450,889,0007% 7T (2018%F : 140,692,000
BIL) BIRITER ERSHEUESER
EEN2018F3A31H T EE &%
170,591,0008 T2 F R EY XN ES
BE-

HR2019F3A31H 2 B E1%0.90% =
0.98% (20184 : 0.98% £2.6% ) Z F 7|
KB RESEAEBEMBBRE
3@ A (20185 : 2&6@A ) »

BEeEBEANBEEIMELS 2 RE RN
F 58 £12,532,000/8 7T (20184F : RE I
Uk 25 )% 882,020,000 7T ) TR r & B e
RIEM (E18) W B8] PR -
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Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated (a)

from operations:

Profit before income tax
Amortisation of land use rights
(Note 17)

Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment (Note 16)
Depreciation of investment
properties (Note 18)
Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment (Note 8)
Provision for long service payment

(Note 31(c))

Impairment loss on trade receivables

(Note 8)
Net realised gains on
gold loans
Net unrealised gains on
gold loans (Note 9)
Finance income (Note 10)
Finance costs (Note 10)
Fair value gains on
convertible bond (Note 9)
Fair value losses on derivative

financial instruments (Note 9)

Share of results of associates
(Note 19)

Operating profit before working
capital changes

Decrease/(increase) in rental deposits

Increase in inventories

Increase in trade receivables, deposits, £
prepayments and other receivables

Decrease in amount due from/to

associates

(Decrease)/increase in trade payables,

other payables and accruals

Decrease in employee benefit
obligations (Note 31(b))

Net cash generated from operation

B P15 B A )4 7
s AR 8 (P RE17)

WE BENREITE
(FftzE16)
WEWMENE (KE18)

HEME - BELREZE2
518 (FI5E8)
RHRE S BE
(HMi3E31(0))
g S REBERIBREEE
(Ff5E8)
=eBEEE
Llﬁml/?ﬁﬁ
ESEECARBRKEFE
(Kt3E9)
B (BE5E10)
M%ER (HF10)
Tﬁ%ﬁﬁz
A ERE (HFE9)
1/ E = Fﬁﬁiﬂz
ANAREEE (M)
iy N
(FFaE19)

LEETEPAKL L]

£

ﬁﬁm
E\

e
R

wemd, (3ghm)
i

ZEWIRIE 1B E
?Eﬁm H
H i FE U BR IR E AN

IO AR WNE]
SIER

B S RNMNERIA - A fhERS
BRIA N R FRIR OFLA)
e b

EERRANE TR
(BFEE31(0))

EEEECH ST

\”]]LY H4>

o ) B AR

S

2019
HK$’000
TER

1,806,363
10,944
112,501
3,002
11,034
847
25,877
(435)
(12,532)
(30,053)
34,253
(5,437)
3,929

42,479

2,002,772
6,411
(1,613,311)

(212,446)

9,255

(4,328)

(28)
188,325

SEE RS HEK:

2018
HK$’000
TATT
1,613,439
9,677
117,056
1,177

1,783

1,233

(1,981)
(2,020)
(28,922)
6,392

(1,803)

29,897

1,745,937
(15,617)
(1,086,284)

(64,307)

22,517

67,291

(104)
679,433
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Significant non-cash transactions

As at the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
entered into gold loan contracts with physical
settlement amounting to HK$170,591,000. The
repayment and borrowing of gold loans with physical
settlement are included in the inventories in the
consolidated statement of cash flows as non-cash
transactions.

Net debt reconciliation

Below sets out an analysis of net debt and
movements in net debt for each periods presented:

b)) ERFREXRH

HZE2018F3A3IB L FEE A&
BRI UNEBEYRINESEESYD
{E{8170,591,0008 7T ° B R &=
SEENEERERERIERER
AR EGRERERTHTEER
To

© EFFBELKR

TREHEBFEONEE 2

Gold loans with physical BEYRENES
settlement (Note (b)) (MizE())

Gold loans with cash settlement ReXRIMNESEE

Bank borrowings RITERK

Net debt BHRHE

Liabilities from financing activities:

At 1 April 2017 #2017%481H

Net cash inflows — BeMAFE —
financing activities & EE)

Unrealised losses on gold loans =& & 2 K& HEE

At 31 March 2018 and ®¥2018%3A31H R
1 April 2018 2018%4A1H

Net cash inflows — BEeMAFE—
financing activities & EE)

Unrealised gains on gold loans =& E& 2 K& H IR

At 31 March 2019 #20195£3A31H

RIERF N R
2019 2018
Total Total
#Et HET
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FABT
- 170,591
450,889 140,692
1,855,224 415,000
2,306,113 726,283
MEZHEENEE:
Gold loans
with cash Bank

settlement borrowings Total

Rexan
HeEE MITHER #Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TERT FERT
140,448 415,000 555,448
244 - 244
140,692 415,000 555,692
322,729 1,440,224 1,762,943
(12,532) - (12,532)
450,889 1,855,224 2,306,113
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Contracted but not provided for:
— property, plant and equipment
— investment in financial assets
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Total capital commitments contracted
but not provided for

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
ERTAEREL B
—%  WE M 11,090 481,712
—RERARETA
Huz2mEmkAZ
TREE 6,456 6,923
ERTHMERERBE 2
BAREEERE 17,546 488,635

As at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, there are
no capital commitments which are authorised but not

contracted for.

As at 31 March 2018, the capital commitment of
HK$476,604,000 included above represents the
remaining consideration for the acquisition of several
commercial properties in Hong Kong with total
consideration of HK$560,710,000. The consideration
and related transaction costs paid up to 31 March
2018 is included in the non-current prepayment (Note

23).

At 31 March 2019, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of land and buildings as

follows:

Not later than one year

Later than one year and not
later than five years

Later than five years

—FR
—FREMBBAF

HBehF

The actual payments in respect of certain operating
leases are calculated at the higher of the minimum
commitments as noted above and the amounts
determined based on a percentage of the sales of the

related outlets.

M2019%3A31H &2018%3 A 31
A WEEREEKRTL 2 E RN
}J?EEO

MR2018%F3A31H - A LFFE 2 &
AAEHEAT6,604,00078 LIS L AR B
560,710,000 T ER B A T
EWEZ FIBARE - #EZE2018F3H
STHEXNHWREREBERZKA
T ASERE A FIE (M 5E23) ©

R2019F3A31H  NEE G ity
MEFREBEARE 2 CEHEM
RARRIN 2 &EHEM BN
T

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x THETT
448,059 563,598
368,951 397,699
817,010 961,297

ETREMEERMNRIZ LA
st B A BAR SR AR R S A 8 S AR
—EBNUMEEEE LB ER

o

i
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As at 31 March 2019, the Group had an outstanding
financial guarantee amounting to HK$1,075,000,000
(2018: HK$898,630,000) issued to several banks in
respect of 50% of the aggregated amount of bank facilities
granted to an associate. As at 31 March 2019, the
bank facilities utilised by the associate is approximately
HK$1,834,000,000 (2018: HK$1,534,000,000). It was
estimated that the fair values of these financial guarantees
were not significant at initial recognition.

The major shareholder of the Company is Luk Fook (Control)
Limited (“Luk Fook Control”), a company incorporated in the
BVI, which directly owns 39.89% of the Company’s shares.
The remaining shares of the Company are widely held.

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and his family including Mr. WONG
Ho Lung, Danny and Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy are
discretionary beneficiaries of the Wong's Family Trust (the
“Trust”). The Trust is the beneficial owner of the entire issued
share capital of Kwai Kee Cheung Jewellery & Goldsmith
Company Limited which is the beneficial owner of 36.72%
of issued shares of Luk Fook Control. The remaining shares
of Luk Fook Control are held by various shareholders.

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny and
Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy are directors of the Company.

The Group has entered into supplementary licensing
and maintenance agreement with GS Tech Company
Limited (92% owned by the Wong's Family Trust)
for acquiring a license to use certain computer
programmes and to receive maintenance services
fees. For the year ended 31 March 2019, license
fees of HK$2,588,000 (2018: HK$3,114,000) were
capitalised in the consolidated balance sheet,
maintenance services fees of HK$4,931,000 (2018:
HK$4,542,000) and rental expenses of HK$611,000
(2018: HK$839,000) were charged in the consolidated
income statement, respectively.

R2019F3A31H  REB BT T — R
LN AMIRTTRVE % 2 50% M A T RTT
BITH R E & B S #E (R 21,075,000,000
7 7T (20184F : 898,630,000 7T ) ° A
201943 AH31H K& AR B AR
Bh & A #91,834,000,00078 7T (20184 :

1,534,000,000% 7T ) ~ fETE B - 2 S B
BERAOAASERVTERELREK -

ARBZEERRA N @ (EBR)AR
AR ([REER])  SREBEER
BHEEMKZ 2 E BEEEAALRT
39.89% %% ° N AR NN 70 B A -

BRELENEFTE (BEEEELER
B/ BRERREERE (HMEFE])
DA - FERAELERERTE
RAREMEBETRAZESEAA &
CHEREETERAREREANEE
B36.72%E 1T {0 o /N AR R R ER T K
MHAZERREE -

BEFLLE BEREASERERF/MAY

AEFEEHSEENBRBERA
A (K%t mm = KR IE(EEH
BRI LEFREEBETHE A
EEETEMER RIS
%8 2 Rt i - Bl E 201953 H31
H IE ¥ F - %57 # & F2,588,000
# 7t (20184 : 3,114,000/ 7T )
REEEEBERERN L #
1& BR 7% #4,931,00078 jt (2018
4,542,000 ) RHEERAX
611,000/ 7T (20184F : 839,000/
TT) ERERA B R AR -
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The Group has entered into a lease agreement of
a premise with tenancy period of 36 months with
New Merit Corporation Limited, an entity jointly
controlled by Mr. Wong Wai Sheung and other two
independent third parties. As at 31 March 2019, rental
deposits of HK$2,550,000 (2018: HK$2,550,000)
were recognised in the consolidated balance sheet.
For the year ended 31 March 2019, rental expenses
of HK$8,504,000 (2018: HK$8,953,000) were
charged in the consolidated income statement. This
transaction was carried out at terms mutually agreed
between the respective parties.

Sales of goods HEEm
Sales of fixed assets HERBTEEE
Subcontracting fee paid ENOBEER
Rental income GEER PN
Management fee income ERBRA

Purchase of goods BE

Licensing fee (refund)/paid (BR) /BN GRE
XGER
Interest income on the loan to BERT—REERR
an associate Z ) BN

Notes:

(i) Sales of goods, subcontracting fee paid, rental income,
purchases of goods, licensing fee paid and management fee
income were charged at terms based on mutual agreements.

(ii) As mentioned in Note 36, the Group had financial guarantee
amounting to HK$1,075,000,000 (2018: HK$898,630,000)
issued to several banks in respect of bank facilities granted to
an associate.

7 £ [# B New Merit Corporation
Limited (A EEE L E R BINR A
B E = EREGMERE)R AL
—EWENBE R 1 A36(E
A - R201953A31H G A &
ERERERHEEZRE2,550,000/%8
7t (20184F : 2,550,000/ 7T ) - & &
2019F3A31HIEFE BEREGA
B =P &5 28,504,00078 7T
(20184 : 8,953,000/ 7T ) * % X 5
ThHERAET 4075 B A 17 & G50
7o

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE&xT FET
19,020 35,756
619 -
24,967 20,904
3,911 3,497
764 755

875 11,436
(859) 352
379 790

f it :

0 RARAE B 15 5 E 2 IR SRR 2 35
E8Em ENSRER HERA-B
g ENmEXBERAREEREA -

(i) AN 6T E AR BB T —R
BEARMIRITRERS THRTE
1T H) B1 7 #& 1R /51,075,000,0007% 7T
(20184 : 898,630,000/ 7T ) °
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2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TATT

Loan to an associate
— non-current (Note 20)
Loan to an associate
— current (Note 20)
Amount due from an
associate (Note 19(i))
Amount due to an
associate (Note 19()))

ERT—FKBERT

—FERNHEY (F5E20) 99,208 94,927
BT —REBE QR

—BIES (P 5E20) - 43,190
fEUR — KBt R AR IR

(MFEE19(3)) 3,078 13,173
JES — KB & A RIERIA

LS (2,715) (3,555)

Key management includes directors (executive
and non-executive) and senior management of the
Group. The compensation paid or payable to key
management for employee services is shown below:

FTEEHEREASEES (W17
MIERITES) MR REREAB -3
BRERBENIBENETEEEREZ
BT :

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$ 000
TET FHET
Salaries, allowances and Fe R EREYHN G

benefits-in-kinds 65,226 64,437

Performance and discretionary BRBEBIBER 2L
bonuses 38,888 35,443
Contributions to pension plan BIRESETEIHK 595 570
104,709 100,450
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At 31 March 2019, the Company had the following principal MR2019F3A31H KRR ZE BB A

subsidiaries: AR
Proportion of
Particulars of ordinary
issued share shares held
Place of capital/ Proportion of by non-
incorporation/ registered ordinary shares controlling
Name establishment  Principal activities capital held by the Company interests
FHRER
301 BRTRE/ FiisgER
-1 B TERH EREXEE  FORRSLERLA id7]
Directly Indirectly
HiE M
Luk Fook Investment (B.V.) The BVI Investment holding HK$2 100 - -
Limited EBAARNE REER BT
China Gems Laboratory Limited Hong Kong Authentication of gemstones HK$2 - 100 =
PEREETTLOERAA 0 BREE 28T
Fancy Trend Investment Limited Hong Kong Property holding HK$12,100 - 100 -
RREREBRAT Bk EEERUES 12,100 7T
Ice Collection (International) Limited ~ Hong Kong Retalling of gold and jewellery HK$100 - 100 =
KE (BB BRAR B products 1008 7T
HRBEERTERH
Jewelworld.com Limited The BVI Investment holding, and HK$8,000,000 - 51 49
KEHRBVLERAF HESKBREE  provision of software 8,000,000 7
development and services
relating to internet
REER REFHRER
S ERARERE
Jewellworld.com Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, and HK$100 - 51 49
KEHR (BFH)ERAF B provision of software 1007 T
development and services
relating to internet
REBR REGHFERES
Rl
Luk Fook Bullions Dealers Limited Hong Kong Gold bullion trading HK$14,000,000 - 100 =
NEERARAF 0 EEdeK 14,000,000 7T
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Name

1

Luk Fook Holdings Company Limited
NEEEERAF

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith
(Australia) Pty Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith (HK)
Company Limited
NERESTT (BB)ARAR

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith
(Macao) Company Limited
NERE 21T ORFM)ERAF

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith
(Canada) Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith
(Singapore) Pte. Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery &
Goldsmith (USA) Company Limited

Place of
incorporation/

establishment

ML/
BB

Hong Kong
BE

Australia

B

Hong Kong
BE

Macau

AP

Canada

IEYN

Singapore

I

USA
e

Principal activities

TERH

Provision of management
services to group companies
and wholesale distribution of
gold and jewellery products

REEERBTEERAR
REIHEERGEER

Retalling of gold and jewellery
products in Australia

RENREESRABER
TEXK

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products
BERNBERTERY

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in Macau

REFREESRAEER
TEEY

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in Canada

RNEANRFESRUEER
TEEB

Retalling of gold and jewellery
products in Singapore

RAMEREEL IAEER
TEXK

Retalling of gold and jewellery
products in USA

REAREELRAEED
TEXK

Particulars of
issued share
capital/
registered
capital

BRTRE/
EREREE

HK$2
28T

AU$100,000
100,000% T

HK$100
100/ 7T

MOP1,000,000
1,000,000 7

CA$100
100ME AT

S$1,000,000

1,000,000 13 7T

USD100
100£ 7T

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S

Proportion of

ordinary

shares held

Proportion of by non-

ordinary shares controlling

held by the Company interests

FRRER

Fris&ER

FOFMGHERLA id:]
Directly Indirectly
B M

- 100 -

- 100 -

- 100 -

- 100 -

- 100 -

- 100 -

- 100 -



Name

1

Luk Fook 3D Management Company

Limited
NEDERERAT

Max Forum Development Limited

ERERERAR

Maxigood Enterprises Limited
BRECXERAT

ENE(EN EHBRAA+

BENMREHER A

NEEA (L8 ERAF

NERE (AR)BRDA

BNAREHRIERAR

Place of
incorporation/

establishment

ML/
BB

The BVI
KERRREE

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong
'R

Mainland China
HRE R

Mainland China
FEIAH

Mainland China
RE R

Mainland China
HE R

Mainland China
RE R

Principal activities

TERH

Investment holding

RAEER

Property holding
RAENE

Manufacturing and wholesale
distribution of jewellery
products

RERBENERBER

Manufacturing of jewellery
products in Mainland China
REBNHEREER

Property holding in Mainland
China
RAEAEENE

Wholesale of polished diamond
in Mainland China

RPERGHEETEZER

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in Beijing, Mainland
China

R BRI R EES JIAE
ERTERH

Trademark licensing, brand
building and promotion in

Mainland China
NP B S ERE:
BIEREERE

Particulars of
issued share
capital/
registered
capital

BRTRE/
EREREE

HK$1
BT

HK$100

1007

HK$3,000,000
3,000,000 7T

HK$8,000,000
8,000,000/ 7T

HK$35,000,000
35,000,000 7T

USD200,000
200,000% 7T

HK$29,750,000
29,750,000/ 7T

HK$2,000,000
2,000,000 7T

Proportion of

ordinary shares
held by the Company
FOFRBEERLEH
Directly Indirectly
EE &
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100

Proportion of
ordinary
shares held
by non-
controlling
interests
FRRER
Fiis&ER
id:]
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Name
£
NEREEHEE (R BB ARG

AR (EB)BERAR

AEREEH (BR) AR

AMREHEE (ER)ERAG

EERRBURKENIRRL A+

BERERREEHERAA+

Place of
incorporation/

establishment

ML/
BB

Mainland China
HE R

Mainland China
R E R

Mainland China
HE R

Mainland China
RE R

Mainland China
RE R

Mainland China
HEIR,

Particulars of
issued share

capital/
registered
Principal activities capital
BRITRE/
TEXRH BREFES
Trademark licensing, brand HK$8,000,000
building and promotion in 8,000,000/ 7
Mainland China
ROERBEEEERE:
ElRRERERRE
Manufacturing, wholesale of HK$50,000,000
gold and jewellery productsin -~ 50,000,000/ 7
Mainland China
R BER R ERER B EES
RAKBER
Retailing of gold and jewellery HK$50,000,000
products in Mainland China 50,000,000/ 7T
REERREES RAEER
TEEY
Trademark licensing, brand HK$3,000,000
building, promotion 3,000,000 7
and provision of quality
examination services in
Mainland China
RAEMN i EEREE 8l
REERENRREESE
E R
Manufacturing of gold products RMB5,000,000
in Mainland China AR 5,000,000
REBERNEESESER
Wholesale of polished diamond RMB10,000,000
and jewellery productsin -~ AR#10,000,0007C
Mainland China
R BN BT EEA R
KEEm

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S

Proportion of

ordinary

shares held

Proportion of by non-

ordinary shares controlling

held by the Company interests

FHRER

Fris&ER

FOFRBEERLEH id:]
Directly Indirectly
EE &

- 100 -

- 100 N

- 100 -

- 100 -

- 100 -

- 100 -



Name

1

NERE (BM)BRAA+

EMABSHAEARAF

BEREREEHERARF

REABRREEBR A

EERETHBARLA

Luk Fook Prestige (Malaysia) SDN.
BHD.

Luk Fook Optical Company Limited
NEREBRAR

Place of
incorporation/

establishment

ML/
BB

Mainland China
HRE R

Mainland China

PR

Mainland China
FEIAH

Mainland China
R E R

Mainland China
RE R

Malaysia

SRES

Hong Kong
'R

Particulars of
issued share

capital/

registered

Principal activities capital
BRITRE/

TEXRH BREFES
Manufacturing, wholesale of RMB65,500,000

gold and jewellery products A R%65,500,0007C

in Mainland China
REER R ERER S EES

RAREER

Manufacturing of gold products RMB5,000,000
in Mainland China AR 5,000,000
RAERSHEESER

Retailing of gold and jewellery RMB50,000,000
products in Mainland China A & #50,000,0007C
ROEREEEEE R
LEERTEEK

Retailing of gold and jewellery RMB5,000,000
products in Mainland China A R #5,000,0007C
RPEREREES RTEEM
TEEB

Electronic retailing of gold and RMB5,000,000
jewellery products in Mainland A & #5,000,0007T
China

RPERSREES RTEEM

EFZEEH
Retalling of gold and jewellery MYR2,000,000
products in Malaysia 2,000,000

RERBENFRLRAEER  BRAZCE
TERH

Retalling of optical products in HK$30,000,000
Hong Kong 30,000,000/ 7T
REBREREERTELH

Proportion of

ordinary shares
held by the Company
FOFRBEERLEH
Directly Indirectly
EE &
- 100
- 100
- 51
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100

Proportion of
ordinary
shares held
by non-
controlling
interests
FRRER
Fiis&ER
id:]

49
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Name

1

BRTRHRESARAA

BEMRYEHERLA

EETREESHERAF

BB

b
=t
op
B

S EBHERDA

EEMAHEESERAA

EETMAENESERLA

Place of
incorporation/

establishment

ML/
BB

Mainland China
HRE R

Mainland China
FEIAH

Mainland China
R E R

Mainland China
HRE R

Mainland China
FEIAH

Mainland China
RE R

Principal activities

TERH

Property holding in Mainland
China
RABERRENE

Property holding in Mainland
China
RAEAEENE

Property holding in Mainland
China
INGEIRbESZ RS

Property holding in Mainland
China
RABERREENE

Property holding in Mainland
China
RAEAEENE

Property holding in Mainland
China
NGEIRbESZ RS

Particulars of
issued share
capital/
registered
capital

BRTRE/
EREREE

RMB1,000,000
AK 1,000,000

RMB1,000,000
AR 1,000,000

RMB1,000,000
A 1,000,000

RMB1,000,000
AK 1,000,000

RMB1,000,000
AR 1,000,000

RMB1,000,000
A 1,000,000

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7525 E (ER) HRA S

Proportion of
ordinary shares

held by the Company

FRRMRFEERLA

Directly
B

100

100

100

100

100

100

Indirectly

&

Proportion of
ordinary
shares held
by non-
controlling
interests
FRRER
Fris&ER
id:]



Proportion of

Particulars of ordinary
issued share shares held
Place of capital/ Proportion of by non-
incorporation/ registered ordinary shares controlling
Name establishment  Principal activities capital held by the Company interests
FRRER
BB/ BRTRE/ Fiis&ER
£ B3T3 TERE EMEFHE FOFRBLERILA id:]
Directly Indirectly
EE &
BETEEEHERAA Mainland China  Property holding in Mainland RMB1,000,000 100 - -
RERH China ARH1,000,0007C
RABERRENE
EEMEZEBHERAR Mainland China  Property holding in Mainland RMB1,000,000 100 - S
HER China AR 1,000,007
RAEAEENE
Bright Billion Corporation Limited Hong Kong Property holding in Hong Kong HK$100 100 - =
[ERITERRAR 6 REBBENE 1007%7T
Green Rich Corporation Limited Hong Kong Property holding in Hong Kong HK$100 100 - -
ERERAA 0 REBRENE 100 7T
Talent Up Corporation Limited Hong Kong Property holding in Hong Kong HK$100 100 - -
HE2ERAA 6 REBBENE 1007%7T
Ultra Power Corporation Limited Hong Kong Property holding in Hong Kong HK$100 100 - -
BEARRA 0 REBRENE 100 7T
+ The subsidiaries are established as wholly foreign-owned enterprises + ZEMBRARARFBEARMMK 2 2INE D
in Mainland China. E
Unless otherwise stated, all the above companies operate MrEBMAEEIN LB RRIHEERN
principally in Hong Kong. BB E T
The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company EERE LRV ARRNBAREE
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected HAFEEEERTESLBEXAEERE
the results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the EFEzEEHn EERR EHEHAM
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries MBARZHBEESEEBR IR

would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.
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2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET
ASSETS HE
Non-current asset FERBEFE
Interests in subsidiaries N SIEYNS P 35 3,138,225 3,138,225
Current assets mBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEWI B~ &) BRIE 2,852,041 2,928,711
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHER 154,889 5,165
3,006,930 2,933,876
Total assets wEE 6,145,155 6,072,101
EQUITY #a
Capital and reserve attributable to EAFRBBEA
the equity holders of the Company B4 & R i 0
Share capital [N 58,710 58,710
Share premium B 5% B 2,494,040 2,494,040
Reserves (Note a) M (MizTa) 1,101,163 1,049,758
3,653,913 3,602,508
LIABILITIES af&
Current liabilities mBRE
Accruals FEETFUIE 1,277 1,398
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETHI B A R FRIE 1,288,602 2,327,503
Bank borrowings IRITER 900,000 -
Gold loans EoEE 301,363 140,692
2,491,242 2,469,593
Total equity and liabilities BnkBEEE 6,145,155 6,072,101
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the AAREEABRIVAEEZZN2019F
Board of Directors on 27 June 2019 and was signed on its BHTHILEN KR TIESRKEE -
behalf.
Wong Wai Sheung Chan So Kuen
BE&% PSR
Director Director
EZE EZE
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Note (a) Reserves movement of the Company

For the year ended

31 March 2019
At 1 April 2018
Profit for the year

2017/18 final dividend paid

2018/19 interim dividend paid

At 31 March 2019

Representing:
Reserves (excluded

proposed dividend)

Proposed dividend
At 31 March 2019

For the year ended

31 March 2018
At 1 April 2017
Profit for the year

2016/17 final dividend paid

2016/17 special dividend paid

2017/18 interim dividend paid

2017/18 special dividend paid

At 31 March 2018

Representing:
Reserves (excluded

proposed dividend)

Proposed dividend
At 31 March 2018

# F20195
3B1ALEE

#2018F4A1H8

F % 7l

B 201718 E
RERE

B 42018/19F &
FHEAR B

201943 A31H

R
(TR
Bk 2)
BIRAR S,
2019637318

#E20185F
3ASALEE
20174818
FRRF
2201611 7EE
REAR B
B2016/17FE
RIS
2AR2017/185F 2
FHEIR B
220171852
551 8
20183 A31H

E:

(T el
BRAB)

BRRE

M2018%3A31H

Contributed
surplus
RRan
HK$'000
FERT

298,687

298,687

298,687

298,687

298,687

298,687

298,687

298,687

fFE (@A R R B E S

Capital
redemption
reserve
BXRE G E
HK$'000
FET

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

Retained
earnings
RERT
HK$'000

FET

750,871
697,223

(322,909)

(322,909)
802,276

450,011
352,265

802,276

700,084
696,605

(234,843

(88,066)

(205,488)

(117,421)
750,871

427,962
322,909

750,871

Total
o3
HK$’000
FEXT

1,049,758
697,223

(322,909)

(322,909)
1,101,163

748,898
352,265

1,101,163

998,971
696,605

(234,843)

(88,066)

(205,488)

(117,421)
1,049,758

726,849
322,909

1,049,758
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Note (a) Reserves movement of the Company (Continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares issued
by the Company in exchange for all the issued ordinary
shares of Luk Fook Investment (B.V.l.) Limited and the value
of net assets of the underlying subsidiaries acquired by
the Company during the Group’s reorganisation in 1997.
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus is distributable to the shareholders,
provided that the Company would, after the payment of
dividends out of the contributed surplus, be able to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or the realisable value
of the Company’s assets would thereby not be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities, its issued share capital and
its share premium. At the Group level, the contributed
surplus is reclassified into its component of reserves of the
underlying subsidiaries.

fifE() AABIREES (B)

RRATF 2 EBBBIEARRNFRRZIRLUK
Fook Investment (B.V.l.) Limited% &B 2 3
TEBBRMETRG 2 EEEERRFR
19974F A & (B S AH BRI P U BB AR RA B 38
RElZ BEFEME 2 ZF - RIEARE
(IOBIFE R ADE) (KIER]) - BB AR
AREE TARE - AR R BB BRSNS
BB BENRBEIHRINES: K
KRRz BEEABRERLE T DRE
B HEBFHTRARERMNEE 28
M AEEEEMS  LEHRRBRERN
DEASHBMB AR 2 FE#ESD -

77

1
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